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CHINA XLX CULTURE A B0 032k

We attribute our achievements and breakthroughs to our dedicated team
at China XLX. The team is committed to uphold the vision with integrity,
discipline and strong commitment.
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Company Profile
REER

Chinese high-efficiency fertilizer advocator

Environmental Protection Standard Enterprise established by the
Ministry of Environmental Protection and China National Nitrogen
Fertilizer Industry Association

Awarded “Standard Enterprise for Synthetic Ammonia Efficiency
Leaders” by the China Petroleum and Chemical Industry Federation
for eight consecutive years

New/High Tech Enterprise in the PRC (enjoying preferential income
tax rate of 15%)

First state-level nitrogen fertiliser research center and largest
agriculture service center in the PRC
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First producer mastering the controlled release urea production
patented technology in the PRC
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Strategic geographical “Low-cost + differentiation” Leading enterprise in the Stable, experienced

location production strategy industry management team and highly
BRI IR D MERA+Z R ] Em# TEMEEE _loyal employees
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Obvious cost leadership

Strong brand and sales Strong and healthy operating Continuously improving

PR AR (B FAERRE network cash flow corporate governance and
SN MR RN S A AR SRR RS E IR B R internal supervision
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China XLX was incorporated with limited liability on 17 July 2006 in
Singapore under the Companies Act, with the Group's registered office at 80
Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898. The Group's headquarters and
principal place of business is located in Xinxiang Economic Development
Zone, Henan Province, and Taxihe Industrial Park, Baojiadian Town, Manas
County, Changji Prefecture, Xinjiang Province, the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"). The Group is principally engaged in developing,
manufacturing, and selling of urea, compound fertiliser, methanol, dimethyl
ether, melamine, furfuryl alcohol and related differentiated products,
among which the annual production capacity of urea, compound fertiliser,
methanol, dimethyl ether, melamine and furfuryl alcohol are 2,300,000 tons,
2,900,000 tons, 500,000 tons, 400,000 tons, 120,000 tons, and 50,000 tons,
respectively. China XLX has been listed on the Main Board of the SEHK since
8 December 2009 with stock code “1866".
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Corporate Information
AEEHR

BOARD
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LIU Xingxu (Chairman of the Board)
ZHANG Qingjin
YAN Yunhua

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ONG Kian Guan
LI Shengxiao
ONG Wei Jin
LI'Hongxing

BOARD COMMITTEES
AUDIT COMMITTEE

ONG Kian Guan (Chairman)
LI Shengxiao
ONG Wei Jin
LI'Hongxing

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

ONG Wei Jin (Chairman)
ONG Kian Guan

LI Shengxiao

LI Hongxing

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

LI Shengxiao (Chairman)
LIU Xingxu

ONG Kian Guan

ONG Wei Jin
LI'Hongxing
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

WONG Wing Wang Paul
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YAN Yunhua
Leung Kwan Wai

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Leung Kwan Wai
CHEOK Hui Yee
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LEGAL ADVISORS
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HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN RS EhE T EEE R,

PRC

Xinxiang Economic Development Zone REDAFEE

Henan Province b ER R

PRC 453731 B4R : 453731
STOCK CODE RERE

Hong Kong Stock Code: 1866 BBRMHRR 1866
CORPORATE WEBSITE NE) U
www.chinaxlx.com.hk www.chinaxlx.com.hk
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Financial Highlights
B E
RESULTS PERFORMANCE HERR
2018 2019 Change (%)
(RMB million) (ARBEHET) —E-NFE —E-NEFE [E) L 8418 (%)
Revenue A 9,195 8,928 -3
Cost of sales SHERAR (6,955) (6,987) 05
Gross profit EF 2,240 1,941 -13
Profit before tax M Fi BT &R 777 526 -32
Income tax expense FrigBim = (122) (112) -8
Net profit Fanl 655 414 37
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREARREEET) 5334 27.01 -
(RMB cents) (AREES)
Dividend per share (RMB cents) FEE (ARED) 10 8 -
I
REVENUE BREAKDOWN BY SEGMENT PTEERBA

32% 31%
FY2019 FY2018
—E-NEBREE —T-\MHFE
@® Urea @ Compound Fertiliser DME and Methanol @ Furfuryl Alcohol
& wahe — B AR R A
® AdBlue ® Melamine ® Other
BERAKREAR =FER Hity

HEOED —T-NEFH T




| Major Events in 2019
—E-NEFEARER

@ ABRUAY €3

18 JANUARY

The patent achievement of China XLX vehicle urea won
the Chinese Patent Award
DEOBEAREENKREEREEREZM

2 A FEBRUARY

The opening ceremony for projects in the first quarter of
Xinxiang — the commencement ceremony of China XLX's
industrial upgrading project — were held

AT —FEEESRHIEDELECARERARE
ERIEAEEETA
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New start, new journey, new brilliance - Henan Xinlianxin
Chemicals Group starts a new era of development

FTRERE FTAERE FDEIE DE VB TR EERMBE RN
b : |

48 APRIL

China XLX was honored as “Xinxiang Five-star Industrial
Enterpnse in2018"
DELEKE [FBT 08 FELERTXX A

5A maY

Ms. Yan Yunhua, the Executive Director, won the glorious
title of “National Labour Day Medal”
BRAERE(TER)RB2EL SRS | KB
. |

Innovation Center for Efficient Utilization of Nitrogen

Fertilizer was launched in Xinlianxin Group
AL BFAEIF R OEELEERE B

65 JUNE

Xinlianxin Humic Acid shines 2019 CNCIC Global Special
Fertilizer Conference
O R PIRE 2019 CNCIC 2SI A S B
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Xinlianxin was awarded “Standard Enterprise for Synthetic
Ammonia Efficiency Leaders”for eight consecutive years
E A KRR E R EE

8 3 AuGUsT

Listing of urea futures - China XLX was a designated
delivery factory and an inspection-free delivery brand

enterprise
REHEET DECRIBEREIME R BRI MEE 5
a

O A SEPTEMBER

Henan Xinlianxin Chemical Industry Group held its 50th
anniversary celebration ceremony
DEMEBTEEEEBRATRAFEAASREESRTE

Liu Xingxu, the Chairman, was awarded the medal
"Celebrating the 70th Anniversary of the Founding of the
People’s Republic of China”

BERIEAE [ERPEARKMBRL0EF ] L2
=@

10 8 oCTORER

China XLX was awarded “2019 Henan Environmental
Protection Credit Green Integrity Company”
LR R [2019FABERREAFZEHREELIR

11 B NOVEMBER

China XLX was awarded “the 1st Batch of Industrial
Product Green Design Demonstration Enterprises” by the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology

DEOCETEPRT (A TEERGERFRELX M

12 8 DECEMBER

China XLX was elected as the Secretary-General
Company of China Internal Combustion Engine Industry
Association, Automotive Urea Aqueous Branch B
DEOARNEEPEARKIERRERRZKARSE
W& KRB
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

| would like to express my gratitude to you for supporting and having confidence in
China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. ("China XLX" or “the Company’, together with its subsidiaries,
is collectively referred to as “the Group”). On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to report
the shareholders of the Company the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the fiscal year as of 31 December 2019, while introducing the vision and

planning of the Group for the following year.

BERIRR -

RN AR — B ARG R EOEMEERR AR ([HEOES] 3 [AAF] ]
MEFATERE [ AEE ] NIXFENEE  AAZRKRARFEFE - ﬁ/\,mﬁ

RABESMUREREAEEHZE —_T—NF T+ _A=1+—H It HRFENLE
HEHRE  RRNEASEEESN—FEMNBESMER -

In 2019, the Group continued to promote transformation and upgrading, ~ —Z—F - REBEEBHEEBTI AR -
and according to the development idea of “Fertiliser as base, fertiliser and 2R [LAREAEE(LI R | HBREBE - 7
chemical side by side” gave full play to the advantages of coal gasification ~ D EBERICEMEB MK ARNEE - B5
technology and cost, and meanwhile we adhered to market demand-  LATIS R AE R - HAET T A E @
oriented, increased the research and application of new technologies and IR EFIER - E— P RARNEBETE

new products, and further enhance the Group’s market competitiveness in HFE TS ST
the industry.

The Group continued to optimize its capital structure, and received strategic REBEBEB(LERGEE  BEE - L8
investment of approximately RMB800 million from shareholders such as & MBI F - EFTE = H & i 5§EE E&
CCB, Shanghai Jinpu Guodiao, Xiamen Baodarun and Tongling Lingtong, ~ SREXESMIRENARKESIET - £E—FE
thus further optimized the Company’s financial structure and supported (L A RIBI 4 - X E QA |9%L§’* o [A]
the Company’s rapid development. Meanwhile, the Group has achieved RS EEIFHAL TEFHEIR 7HRE - 17
an integrated circular economy development model on furfural, furfuryl ~ EEFIAEMBEZEEN —BILBERECBLERE
alcohol and biomass power generation in the field of fine chemicals, which X KARRIFNEEIERE -

has become the Company’s new business growth point.

10 China XLX 2019 Annual Report




(&) LI Xingxu 2% 8
Chairman of the Board ZEE & F /&

RESULT HIGHLIGHTS FERR

Realized revenue of approximately RMB8,928 million, an decrease of - BIRWAH AR 928187 » Rt

3% year-on-year. TBE#I3% o

Net profit of the Group was approximately RMB414 million, - REBGHAHARE414187T - A

representing a decrease of 37% year-on-year. LE T BE#) 37% ©

Overall gross profit margin decreased by 2 percentage points year- - BRENXFRL THE2EEHE

on-year to approximately 22%, mainly due to the falling prices of #1220 ETEHRFE  =FEERK

chemical products such as methanol, melamine and DME. N~ RRE  TEMSE NPT -

The Board of Directors recommended a final dividend of RMB8 cents . EELRBRERAKREERAR

per share and a total dividend of RMBS cents per share for the year. gn 2FARRERRKESK
ARS8 -

HELED —T-AFEFR 11
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

BUSINESS REVIEW A E )

The Group adhered to the development strategy of the main business of
fertilizer, strictly implemented the “customer-centric” concept, enhanced
“integration” operation, and flexibly adjusted the product structure
according to market demand and profitability, making the main value
chain more closely linked, thus the flexible production mode of “one head
and multi-tails-ept” was more improved. At the same time, based on the
industry’s leading coal gasification technology and cost advantages, the
Group further extended the product chain, improved and consolidated
product differentiation and circular economy, and realized the Company’s
steady business growth, such as high-efficiency fertilizers, vehicle urea, fine
chemicals, air separation and carbon dioxide. At this point, the “one chess’
pattern in the three major bases was initially formed, and the operating
structure was more reasonable.

q

AREBZBEFMFCEETRNBERE
B BISEE [AFPRPOINES - B
Ml —8] &L RETEHRMNAT
Be) - BARMEMGE  BEXEERE
WHEMER - [—BZRE] HRUELER
AEMTE - R AREEIATRELNE
AR MEANES BRI - — S
En# TENMSEEMEZR(CMBERE
o BRTARSMIE  EAKE - BH
tI - ZHoM_RCRERBRTER -
Et - AEB=AEM [—RH | R FT)
BB - KL EBLEMARE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TEER

With its mission to serve the best interests of the Shareholders, the ~ EFGUBRBREHNZANDZRER - 1
Board has consistently strived to enhance the standard of corporate & TEMRADEEGKTE - U HE - =
governance and to develop a standardised, highly effective and scientific 2~ BHZ2{bLBI A RIEIEME] - REREE_
corporate governance mechanism. The Group held 11 Board meetings ZE—HWEFEQART NAEFTEEH @ HFX

in the year 2019 to review and approve matters including the quarterly
results, interim report, annual report, dividend payout ratio, connected
transactions and development strategies of the Group. The AC, the RC and
the NC have exercised and performed the rights and duties conferred on
them by the Board with a view of raising the standards of the Company’s
risk management and internal control and perfecting the Company’s
governance structure. For internal audit, internal audit was mainly
conducted by the internal audit team of the Company in 2019, focusing
on enhancing internal risk control over procurement management, capital
management and other key processes, and thereby enhancing operational
efficiency.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group highly values its relationship with its investors and
communicates with them through a number of channels. It aims to provide
the latest information on the Group's operations and business development
to its investors, so that they can obtain all necessary information on a timely
manner to make informed investment decisions. Please refer to the “Investor
relations” section of this annual report for more details.
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PROSPECTS

The background of the domestic security and environmental protection
situation remains unchanged. It is expected that more obsolete
production capacity will be eliminated in the future, and the industrial
concentration of the urea industry will be further increased. The Group
will optimize the production lines according to the established low-
cost and product differentiation strategy, enhance the product flexibility
adjustment capability, and strengthen the risk control capability. The
Group has successively launched the relocation project of Plant | and the
coal gasification technology transformation of Plant Il and lll. In the next
two vyears, all the coal gasification equipments of the Company will be
converted into new advanced coal gasification technology. This will further
consolidate the Group's leading position in the industry in terms of safety,
environmental protection, technology and cost. The construction of the
Jiangxi base project is expected to be completed and put into operation
this year. After the operation, the Group's urea production capacity will
exceed 3 million tons. The scale advantage will be further improved.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

Working for a better tomorrow is also our corporate mission, and is the
strong corporate dream that all XLX people always strive for. In accordance
with the overall development strategy of the Group, we continue to adhere
to the operation development direction of “Fertiliser as base, fertiliser and
chemical side by side’, stick to the competitive strategy of “‘combination of
low cost and differentiation”; achieve industry-leading cost consumption,
industry-leading technology level, market-leading brand marketing and
industry-leading safety and environmental protection, ensure the leading
position in the fertilizer industry and strengthen the three major bases.
Lead the industry in the name of “Pioneer of High-Efficiency Fertiliser in
China"; and supporting the continuous exploration of high-efficiency
chemical fertilisers and agricultural science, rewarding farmers and serving
the community, with higher standards in the industry. We will proactively
shoulder more corporate responsibility in leading the industry, and strive to
become “the most respected enterprise in the chemical fertiliser industry in
China"
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Chairman’s Statement
FEBRE
APPRECIATION £

Looking back, we are full of confidence; looking to the future, we are still
confident and never forget our original intentions. We always believe that in
the process of deep transformation and upgrading of the industry, it brings
us not only challenges but also opportunities. No matter how the external
environment changes, we must unswervingly adhere to ourselves and build
our own core competitiveness based on the entire value chain.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my heartfelt gratitude to all Shareholders, the Company’s management
team, all the staff, customers and friends who have been caring for and
supporting us. In 2020, the Group's senior management and staff will
continue working cohesively and work together under the leadership of the
Board to endeavour to achieve better performance and investment returns
for the Shareholders, and the future of XLX will be more brilliant!

ad?

LIU Xingxu
Chairman of the Board
30 March 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED N
()  BUSINESS REVIEW () KO
COAL AND ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION RIS HFEER
2019 2018
Fixed bed technology (& TE PR B i —E-hEF —E—)\F
coal consumption (tons) FEOBFE () S TES BugfK =
Raw coal FREHE 0.605 0.609
Fuel coal BREHE 0.156 0.142
Total coal consumption BERESE 0.761 0.751
2019 2018
Coal water slurry technology IR BB R —E-hEF —\F
coal consumption (tons) FLBRE (ME) S1UTES BWEfR =
Raw coal R 0.774 0.779
Fuel coal PR 0.180 0.186
Total coal consumption BIEREE 0.954 0.965
2019 2018
—E-hEF —\F
KWh per ton KWh per ton
Electricity consumption (KWh) BHEE (TR T T & BT ELIF
Urea (Fixed bed technology) RE=E (EEREM) 798 781
Urea (Coal water slurry technology) RE OKERHRMT) 319 299
.|
SALES VOLUME HEBR
2019 2018
—E-hEF —\F
Urea frRZ= 1,907 1,999
Compound fertiliser BEIE 1,373 1,396
Methanol FR 40 149
Melamine —BEE 130 82
Furfuryl alcohol -3 42 39
Liquid ammonia BR 66 50
Dimethyl ether — ARk 320 314
.|
RELCEL —T-NFFH 15
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED N
REVENUE PN
Revenue decreased by RMB267 million or approximately 3% from WABRBE-_Z—-N\F+=AH

RMB9,195 million in the financial year ended 31 December 2018
("FY2018") to RMB8,928 million in the financial year ended 31
December 2019 (“FY2019"). The decrease of revenue was mainly due
to lower average selling prices of dimethyl ether (DME), melamine,
methanol, furfuryl alcohol and melamine, and the decrease was
partially offset by the increase in sales volume of melamine and
liquid ammonia.

UREA

Revenue derived from the sales of urea decreased by RMB236
million or approximately 7% year on year ("YoY”) to approximately
RMB3,313 million in FY2019 from RMB3,549 million in FY2018
due mainly to a decrease in the sales volume and average selling
price of urea. Urea sales volume decreased by approximately 5%
YoY to approximately 1,906,000 tons resulted from the closure of
Plant | during the relocation of the Group's Xinxiang production
facilities in FY2019. The average selling price of urea decreased by
approximately 2% due to the increase in the supply of urea in the
industry.

COMPOUND FERTILISER

Revenue derived from the sales of compound fertilisers increased by
RMB45 million or approximately 2% YoY to approximately RMB2,852
million in FY2019 from RMB2,807 million in FY2018, due mainly to
the increase in average selling price by approximately 3% as a result
of a higher percentage of high-efficient fertilisers sold.
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METHANOL

Revenue derived from the sales of methanol decreased by RMB283
million or approximately 79% YoY to approximately RMB74 million in
FY2019 from RMB357 million in FY2018, mainly because the Group
chose to further process methanol products into dimethyl ether
products which enjoyed a higher profit margin. As a result, sales
volume of methanol decreased by 73% to approximately 40,000
tons in FY2019, as the Group only produced to maintain relationship
with the most strategic customers. In line with the weakened
international energy prices, the average selling price of methanol
decreased by 23% YoY.

DIMETHYL ETHER (DME)

Revenue derived from the sales of DME decreased by approximately
RMB224 million or approximately 20% from approximately RMB1,142
million in FY2018 to RMB918 million in FY2019. The decrease was
due mainly to a decrease in the average selling price of DME by
21.8% YoY which was in line with the weakened international energy
prices. The impacts of the decrease in DME price was partially offset
by an increase in the sales volume of 2% YoY to 320,000 tones for
FY2019

MELAMINE

Revenue derived from the sales of melamine increased by
approximately RMB96 million or 17% from approximately RMB561
million in FY2018 to RMB657 million in FY2019 mainly due to the
increase in sales volume by 59%. In July 2018, the Group’s melamine
project Phase Il in Xinjiang Plant V with an annual production
capacity of 60,000 tons successfully commenced operation,
enabling the Group’s total annual melamine production increase to
120,000 tons. The increase in sales volume was partially offset by a
decrease in average selling price of melamine by approximately 26%
YoY due to the weakened demand in domestic chemical products.

iR

FEAEERAHR T — N\FHRF
J*E’JZ’J/\EmswooooooEHttﬂ
A ,\U/\Eﬁé}zga 000,000 7T 3% £ 79%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWED

FURFURYL ALCOHOL

Revenue derived from the sales of furfuryl alcohol decreased by
approximately RMB115 million or 22% from approximately RMB522
million in FY2018 to RMB407 million in FY2019. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in the average selling prices of furfuryl
alcohol by approximately 28% YoY as a result of the recovery of
supply in the market followed by the more flexible environment
control in PRC. This was partially offset by the increase in sales
volume of approximately 8% YoY to approximately 42,000 tons for
FY2019.

PROFITABILITY
UREA

Gross profit margin of urea of the Group decreased to approximately
28.1% in FY2019 from approximately 30.8% in FY2018. The decrease
was due to a combination of a 2% decrease in the average selling
price and a 2% increase in the cost of goods sold. The decrease in
the average selling price was the result of recovery of supply from
urea industry. The increase in the cost of goods sold was mainly
caused by the increase in the sales volume of high efficient urea
with higher cost of goods sold.

COMPOUND FERTILISER

Gross profit margin of compound fertilisers of the Group increased
marginally by 0.9% to approximately 15.8% in FY2019 from
approximately 14.9% in FY2018. The increase was mainly due to
the increase in average selling price of approximately 3% YoV, as a
higher percentage of high efficient fertiliser was sold.

METHANOL

Gross profit margin of methanol of the Group decreased to
approximately -0.1% in FY2019 from approximately 15% in FY2018,
mainly due to a 23% decline in the average selling price and
reduced scale of production. The declined average selling price was
in line with the weakened international energy prices.
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DIMETHYL ETHER (DME)

As a result of a 21% decrease of average selling price of DME, the
gross profit margin of DME decreased from 23.5% in FY2018 to 5.1%
in FY2019. As an alternate to liquid natural gas (LNG), the decline in
average selling price of DME was in line with the weakened global
energy prices.

MELAMINE

Gross profit margin of melamine decreased from approximately
52.3% in FY2018 to 35.6% in FY2019. This was due mainly to a 26%
decrease in the average selling price resulting from the weakened
demand in domestic chemical products.

FURFURYL ALCOHOL

Gross profit margin of furfuryl alcohol increased from approximately
8.5% in FY2018 to 15.3% in FY2019. This was due mainly to (1) the
decline in cost of raw materials and (2) reduction of wastage of raw
materials during production through research and development.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains increased by approximately RMB48
million from approximately RMB112 million in FY2018 to RMB160
million in FY2019. The increase was mainly due to (1) the increase
of RMB35 million in gains from disposal of fixed assets and right
of use assets; (2) the increase of RMB10 million in gains from sales
of by-products and the sale of water, steam and electricity; (3) an
increase of RMB10 million of interest received from banks; and (4)
an increase of RMB8 million of the penalties from suppliers for non-
compliance of supply contract. The increase was partially offset
by the RMB34 million fair value change of derivative financial
instruments and fair value change of financial instruments through
profits and loss from a gain of RMB18 million in FY2018 to a loss of
RMB16 million in FY2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWED

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
RMB8 million from RMB508 million in FY2018 to RMB516 million in
FY2019. Such increase was mainly due to (1) RMB8 million increase
in staff salaries; (2) RMB4 million increase in promotion costs; (3)
RMB3 million increase in depreciation charges; and (4) RMB2 million
increase in selling administrative expenses. These are largely the
result of the initial set up expenses of Jiangxi production base.
The increase was partially offset by the decrease in advertisement
expenses by approximately RMB12 million.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses increased by approximately
RMB164 million from approximately RMB497 million in FY2018 to
approximately RMB661 million in FY2019. The increase was mainly
due to the initial set up of new Jiangxi production base and increase
in the number of employees from the acquisition of Shen Leng
Energy, Heli Energy and Black Technology, of which salaries, staff
welfare, staff social security provident funds, environment protection
expenses, entertainment expenses, repair cost and staff education
expenses increased by approximately RMB46 million, RMB23 million,
RMB22 million, RMB12 million, RMB11 million, RMB11 million and
RMB7 million respectively. The increase as partially offset by the
decrease in rental expenses of RMB7 million.
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OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses decreased by approximately RMB207 million from
approximately RMB223 million in FY2018 to approximately RMB16
million in FY2019. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in
the impairment of property, plant and equipment and the foreign
exchange losses of approximately RMB188 million and RMB21
million respectively.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs increased by approximately RMB49 million from
approximately RMB325 million in FY2018 to approximately RMB374
million in FY2019 due to the increase in amount of interest-bearing
borrowings and loans.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense decreased by approximately RMB10 million
from approximately RMB122 million in FY2018 to approximately
RMB112 million in FY2019 due to lower taxable income generated
by the Group.

PROFIT FORTHE YEAR

The profit for the year decreased by RMB241 million or
approximately 36.79% from RMB655 million in FY2018 to RMB414
million in FY2019.
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The decrease in the Group's net profit in FY2019 was mainly due to: ZF% £ ﬂﬁﬂ&z@* % )

(1) the decrease in the sales volume and profit margin of urea. (1) KREFEERFEETEE - K

The decrease in sales volume of urea was resulted from ZHERLIHNRAAR_-Z

the closure of Plant | during the relocation of the Group's —NFAREEEFBEER

Xinxiang production facilities in 2019. MERRB EARIRARASE — R ©

(2)  the decrease in average selling prices of melamine and Q Z=ZEBERE-FBENTH

dimethy!l ether (DME) of 26% and 21% respectively YoY. EER LD Rl T BK26% &

In 2019, international economic environments have been 21% c RZE—NF - B

rapidly changing, China domestic consumption remained KBEIRIBIRIREE - hEHE

weak, while export of petrol chemical products declined. RBBEERS  RAL

These factors have negatively impacted petrol chemical EmBAEEMH - Z5HA=

products market, lowering average selling prices and profit HAtLERMBEKEBEY

margin of melamine, DME and methanol. 2. BHR=FaKE - —FE

kAR TFEEBRFEEX

NP e
(3)  the increase in general administrative expenses of () —MITEHR X @ LG m

approximately RMB164 million YoY, which comprised

#IANE® 164,000,0007T °

mainly increase in salaries, staff welfare, staff social security FTEREHE  BELR
provident providence funds, environment protection M -BEIHFRRAES R
expenses, entertainment expenses, repair cost and staff REAX  BERXZ - #1E
education expenses by approximately RMB46 million, RARBIHERI DA

RMB23 million, RMB22 million, RMB12 million, RMB11 million,
RMB11 million and RMB7 million respectively. The increase
was partially offset by the decrease in rental expenses of
RMB7 million. The increase in salaries and staff welfare was
mainly due to the set up of new Jiangxi production base and

4 AR 46,000,000
7T~ AR®23,000,0007T *
AR ¥ 22,000,0007T © A
E#12,000,0007T * AR
#11,000,00070 ~ AR

increase in the number of employees from the acquisition of ¥ 11,000,000 & A R ¥
Shen Leng Energy, Heli Energy and Black Technology. 7,000,0007T ° &% ¥ 1N &6
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(I FINANCIAL REVIEW m  BAFRE R
GEARING EEER
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt rEEFTREEAGBLXR(AEF
divided by the aggregate of total capital and net debt. The Group's BRABERINBEFEEN) K
policy is to keep the gearing ratio below 90%. ERER - REBNBERGEE
BEILEERFEI0WAT o
2019 2018
—ZE-hE —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R AREFIT
Trade payables B 5 ENFIR 366,636 282,825
Bills payable ANE S 809,050 280,105
Contract liabilities BHAE 582,181 689,951
Accruals and other payables fEstE R R EAEARIE 1,198,812 1,185,463
Due to related companies FERFE A FI3IE 7,543 21,052
Loans from a non-controlling interest IR RS 2 B 48,670 75,500
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5188877 & E A& 6,513,256 5,342,891
Bonds payable FETES 888,697 692,833
Lease liabilities HEaE 170,400 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BE MR EEY (884,448) (346,151)
Pledged time deposits BT EIER (499,346) (258,839)
Net debt BEFH 9,201,451 7,965,630
Equity attributable to owners of the parent  &FA BB A JE(L#EZ 4,235,241 3,921,814
Less: Statutory reserve fund B OETEHES (145,518) (45,753)
Adjusted capital ERREEAR 4,089,723 3,876,061
Capital and net debt BEXRMEEFE 13,291,174 11,841,691
Gearing ratio BEABELX 69.23% 67.27%
N
Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, BEFREBREFEBARTEEME
bonds payable, trade and bills payables, amounts due to a related ;o EAES  BHEMAFKIERE
company, accruals and other payables, and lease liabilities less cash NEE - BNBEEARIE - EiT
and cash equivalents and pledged deposits. Capital includes equity EBR - EENRIBEREESE -
attributable to the owners of the parent less the above-mentioned BRERREEFEMA LB EIRE
restricted statutory reserve fund. HER - EXRBESAGHER AR

e DA ERESE o
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LOANS &N
Group
rEH
2019 2018
—E-hEF —\%
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETT
Analysed into: DR
Bank loans repayable: AEBERITER
Within one year or on demand —FERFIREK 2,590,784 2,682,225
In the second year E_F 2,486,204 1,852,543
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=ZRF(F 896,784 569,788
Beyond five years hFE 41,000 -
6,014,772 5,104,556
Loan from the government: BIFES
Within one year or on demand —FRHIFER 909 -
In the second year E_F - 1,818
9209 1,818
Loans from leasing company JENTAEARER ®E
finance lease payables: HE -
Within one year or on demand —FARIREK 182,476 92,227
In the second year E_F 119,355 99,782
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=ERF(E) 195,744 44508
497,575 236,517
6,513,256 5,342,891
I
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(1)
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PROSPECTS

Since the outbreak of the novel coronavirus in January 2020, with
the strengthening of domestic epidemic prevention and control
measures, the markets and demands for fertilizer and chemical
products in the PRC have been adversely affected to certain extent,
leading to a decline in the prices of the Company’s fertilizer and
chemical products. As the epidemic is continuously under control,
it is expected that the market demand and selling prices of the
Company'’s products will gradually recover. The international
epidemic situation is expected to affect and reduce exports of
fertilizers and imports of grains, and then affect the changes in the
demand in the domestic fertilizer market. This also brings challenges
and opportunities to the Group’s production and operation.

The relocation of Plant | will complete and commence production
in the 2nd half of 2020, while the Jiangxi production base will
complete in the 4th quarter of 2020 and commence production in
2021. The commencement of the new projects will further increase
the scale of the Group, and improve the profitability and production
flexibility of the Group.

Despite the challenging macro-economic environment, the Group
will continue to steadfastly implement low cost and product
differentiation strategies to further increase sale of high-efficient
fertilisers, hence elevating the Group’s competitiveness in the
market. Furthermore, the Group will leverage on its coal gasification
production competitive advantage to further increase its product
offerings. The Group is able to flexibly adjust the fertiliser and
chemical product mix according to changing market conditions,
hence improving overall profitability and its ability to withstand
market volatility.

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMB8
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Proposed
Final Dividend”) (2018: RMB10 cents per share), subject to the
shareholders' approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. The final dividend, if approved, is expected to be
paid on 31 July 2020.
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The translation of RMB into HKD for the purpose of dividend AR BETTABENLE
payment in HKD is made at the rate of approximately RMB1.00 TTEMMRE - TR AR 100D
= HKD1.0912, which is the official exchange rate of HKD against TOONETMERGTE - E-AETT

(V)

RMB as quoted on 30 March 2020 by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited. Therefore, based on the above
translation of the exchange rate, the dividend to be paid in HKD will
be HKDO0.0873 per ordinary share.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

1. OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL RISKS

0)

(1

MARKET RISK

The major market risks of the Group include changes
in the average selling prices of key products, changes
in the costs of raw materials (mainly coal) and
fluctuations in interest and exchange rates.

COMMODITY PRICE RISK

The Group is also exposed to commodity price risk
arising from fluctuations in product sale prices and
costs of raw materials.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The major market interest rate risk that the Group
is exposed to includes the Group's long-term debt
obligations which are subject to floating interest
rates.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's revenue and costs are primarily
denominated in RMB. Some costs may be
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States
dollars or Singapore dollars.
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INFLATION AND CURRENCY RISK

According to the data released by the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, the consumer price
index of the PRC increased by approximately 2.9%
in the year ended 31 December 2019 as compared
with an increase of approximately 2.1% in 2018. Such
inflation in the PRC did not have a significant effect
on the Group's operating results.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group monitors its risk exposure to shortage
of funds. The Group regularly reviews the maturity
of both its financial investments and financial
assets (e.g., trade receivables and other financial
assets) and projects cash flows from operations. The
Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of bank overdrafts and bank loans. As at 31
December 2019, approximately RMB2,774 million (31
December 2018: RMB2,774 million), or approximately
42.59% (31 December 2018: 46.23%) of the Group's
debts will mature in less than one year based on the
carrying value of the borrowings reflected in the
financial statements.
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(VI)  GEARING RISK

The Group monitors its capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders
value. The Group manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may raise new debt or
issue new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018
The gearing ratio of the Group (calculated as net
debt divided by the aggregate of total capital and
net debt) increased from approximately 67.27% as at
31 December 2018 to approximately 69.23% as at 31
December 2019

2. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2018: Nil).

3. MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

As at 31 December 2019, the Group was not involved in any
material litigation or arbitration (2018: Nil).
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SCOPE OF WORK OF ERNST & YOUNG

The figures in respect of preliminary announcement of
group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2019 have
been agreed by the Group's auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, to
the amount set out in the Group'’s consolidated financial
statements for the year. The work performed by Ernst &
Young LLP in this respect did not constitute an assurance
engagement in accordance with International standards on
Auditing, International Standards on Review Engagements
or International Standards on Assurance Engagements
issued by International Accounting Standards Board and
consequently no assurance has been expressed by Ernst &
Young LLP on the preliminary announcement.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee”) has reviewed the accounting principles and
standards adopted by the Group, and has discussed and
reviewed the internal control and reporting matters. The
results for the year ended 31 December 2019 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company devotes to best practice on corporate
governance, and has complied with all the code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK
(the “Listing Rules") during the year ended 31 December
2019.
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10.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUER

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules and its
amendments from time to time as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the directors of the
Company. The Board confirms that, having made specific
enquiries with all directors of the Company, all directors have
complied with the required standards of the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the securities of the Company.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, there were 7,036 (2018: 6,485)
employees in the Group. Staff remuneration packages are
determined in consideration of market conditions and the
performance of the individuals concerned, and are subject
to review from time to time. The Group also provides other
staff benefits including medical and life insurance, and
grants discretionary incentive bonuses to eligible staff based
on their performance and contributions to the Group.

DISCLOSURE ON THE WEBSITES OF THE SEHK AND
THE COMPANY

This report is published on the website of the SEHK
(http://www.hkexnews.hk) and on the website of the
Company (http://www.chinaxlx.com.hk).
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Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretaries
BEE  SREEERARAWE

BOARD
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. LIU XINGXU CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

Aged 65, is principally in charge of overall strategic planning and business
development of the Group. Mr. Liu was appointed as an executive Director
on 26 July 2006. He is also a member of the NC. Mr. Liu has over 20 years
of experience in the chemical fertiliser industry. He is currently the expert
consultant of the Advisory Committee of China Nitrogen Fertiliser Industry
Association. Mr. Liu was appointed the factory head of Xinxiang Fertiliser
Factory, a state-owned enterprise, in charge of factory operations in 1994
and then became the chairman and the general manager of XLX Chem
from July 2003 to July 2006. He was the general manager of Henan XLX
from July 2006 to April 2016, and has also been the chairman of Henan XLX
since July 2006. In February 2003, Mr. Liu was awarded the “Provincial Safe
Production Advanced Worker” by Safe Production Committee of Henan
Province and Personnel Bureau of Henan Province for his outstanding
performance in safety work. In April 2004, he was awarded the "Henan
Province Labour Model (Advanced Worker)” and in 2005, he was awarded
the Henan Province Outstanding Private Enterprise Entrepreneur” by
the People’s Government of Henan Province. He was also the winner of
"National Labour Day Medal” in 2009 issued by All China Federation of Trade
Unions, and was awarded the “China Petroleum & Chemical Outstanding
Private Enterprises Entrepreneurs Innovation Award” in May 2014. He was
awarded the "Henan Economic Celebrity of the year 2014" and "Model

Worker of China”in 2015, and also the "Most Excellent Citizen in Xinxiang”

in 2017. Mr. Liu graduated from Xinxiang Broadcasting and Television
University in July 1986 with a Diploma in Arts. In 2006, he completed EDP
(Executive Development Program) from Guanghua School of Management,
Peking University. In 2010, Mr. Liu was awarded the qualification of "Senior
Economist” by the People’s Government of Henan Province and the EMBA
degree from Tsinghua University. Mr. Liu is the sole shareholder and a
director of Pioneer Top Holdings Limited, a controlling Shareholder.
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Dlrectors, Senlor Management and Compan Secretarles
EE  SAEEERARWE

MR. ZHANG QINGJIN

Aged 53, is principally in charge of the decision making with respect to
overall management and day-to-day business operations of the Group.
Mr. Zhang was appointed as an executive Director on 27 March 2015. Mr.
Zhang was the deputy general manager of Henan XLX from November
2006 to July 2011, and was the executive deputy general manager of Henan
XLX from July 2011 to April 2016, and then he has become the general
manager of Henan XLX since April 2016. He has over 20 years of experience
in the chemical fertiliser industry. He is currently the vice chairman of
China Nitrogen Fertiliser Industry Association. Mr. Zhang joined Xinxiang
Fertiliser Factory in July 1987 and held various positions, including unit
head of equipment and facility department, unit head of production and
technical department, section head of equipment and facility upgrade
and department head of technical upgrade in Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory.
Mr. Zhang was appointed as the manager of the technical centre of
XLX Chem from August 2003 to July 2006. He was also the manager of
the technical centre of Henan XLX from July 2006 to November 2006.
Mr. Zhang graduated from Zhengzhou Engineering College (currently
known as “Zhengzhou University”) in July 1987 with a diploma in chemical
equipment, and obtained the EMBA degree from Tsinghua University in
2009.

MS. YAN YUNHUA

Aged 49, is principally in charge of the decision making with respect to all
financial matters within the Group. Ms. Yan was appointed as an executive

Director on 10 November 2006. Ms. Yan obtained the "Accountant”

certification from the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in May 1997. She
graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University in July 2003 with a degree in
accountancy and obtained the “Senior Accountant” certification from
Henan Province Accountant Series Senior Assessment Committee in
December 2005. Ms. Yan obtained the EMBA (Executive Master of Business
Administration) degree from Guanghua School of Management, Peking
University in July 2009. Ms. Yan has 20 years of accounting and finance
experience. Ms. Yan is currently the executive chairman of the Finance
Research Committee of China Nitrogen Fertiliser Industry Association
and the vice chairman of Henan Provincial Association of CFO. She joined
Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory in December 1997 and held various positions in
Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory, including the deputy head of finance division
and the deputy chief accountant. She was also the chief accountant
in charge of finance of XLX Chem from 2003 to July 2006. She was the
deputy general manager of Henan XLX from July 2006 to April 2016, and
has become the vice chairman of Henan XLX since April 2016. Ms. Yan
was awarded the "Accountants Contribution Award”in the PRC in 2008,
“Advanced Worker in Accounting of Henan Province”in 2009, “Labour Day
Medal of Henan Province”in 2015, and “National Labour Day Medal”in 2019.
Ms. Yan is the sole shareholder and a director of Go Power Investments
Limited, a substantial Shareholder.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. ONG KIAN GUAN

Aged 52, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 11 May 2007. He is also the chairman of the AC and a member of both
the RC and the NC. He is a practising member and a fellow of the Institute
of Singapore Chartered Accountants, and also a partner of Baker Tilly TFW
LLP. He has more than 20 years of professional experience in financial
audits of multinational corporations and public listed companies from
diverse industries. He is currently an independent non-executive director
of RMH Holdings Limited and IAG Holdings Limited (both companies are
listed on the GEM of SEHK) since 22 September 2017 and 19 December
2017 respectively. Mr. Ong resigned as an independent director of Alliance
Mineral Assets Limited (@ company listed on SGX-ST) with effect from 17
December 2019. He graduated from the Nanyang Technological University
in Singapore with a Bachelor of Accountancy degree in May 1992.

MR. LI SHENGXIAO

Aged 57, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 11 May 2007. He is also the chairman of the NC and a member of
both the AC and the RC. Mr. Li has been a professor in Shaoxing University
since 2004, and is currently the Head of Regional Development Research
Centre in Shaoxing University. He has been the instructor of establishment
of small and medium enterprises in Zhejiang Province, Small and Medium
Enterprises Bureau in Zhejiang Province since 2006. Mr. Li has been
appointed as an independent director of Bank of Shaoxing Co., Ltd. since
November 2013. Mr. Li is also an independent director of Zhejiang China
Light & Textile Industrial City Group Co., Ltd (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange). He was as an independent director of Anhui
Jiangnan Chemical Industry Co, Ltd. (@ company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange) between 2012 and 2018. Mr. Li graduated from Hangzhou
University (currently known as Zhejiang University) in July 1987 with a
graduation certificate in politics. He then obtained a master’s degree in law
from Hangzhou University in July 1990. He was awarded the “high school
outstanding youth teacher of Zhejiang Province”in September 1991.
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MR. ONG WEI JIN

Aged 53, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 11 May 2007. He is also the chairman of the RC and a member of
both the AC and the NC. He is a partner in Harry Elias Partnership LLP (a
Singapore law firm). He is currently an independent director of Luzhou
Bio-chem Technology Limited, CFM Holdings Limited and Camsing
Healthcare Limited (formerly known as Jacks International Limited), all these
companies are listed on the SGX-ST. He obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree
from the National University of Singapore in 1990, a Master of Business
Administration degree from University of Hull in 1993, and a Master of Laws
degree from the National University of Singapore in 1995.

MR. LI HONGXING

Aged 44, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director since 16 May 2018. Mr. Li has been the Managing Director of
CDG International Company Limited since 2016. Mr. Li served as the
head of energy, mining and equipment (corporate finance) in CITIC
CLSA Securities from 2010 to 2016; and an equity analyst of HSBC with
a focus on Asian oil and chemicals from 2007 to 2010. Before that, Mr.
Li had worked in BP Group, Dongguan Nokia Mobile Phones Co., Ltd.
and PricewaterhouseCoopers China. Mr. Li received a Master of Business
Administration from Australian Graduate School of Management in 2011
and a Bachelor of Arts in International Business from the Guangdong
University of Foreign Studies in 1997.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MR. MATONGSHENG

Aged 50, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 18 March 2019.
Mr. Ma has over 26 years of experience in the fertiliser industry in China.
Mr. Ma was the supervisor and assistant manager of Xinxiang Fertiliser
Factory* (FT#B{LAE4ARER), a state-owned enterprise, from July 1992 to July
2000. He joined the Group in August 2000, and successively served the
following positions in the Group: the production manager of compound
fertiliser of Henan XLX from August 2000 to October 2005; the deputy
head of Production Plant Il from November 2005 to January 2010; the head
of Production Plant Ill from February 2010 to July 2012; the manager of
production management from August 2012 to December 2016; the director
of Production Management Centre from January 2017 to July 2017; and the
general manager of the Compound Fertiliser Company* (84 /A &)) from
August 2017 to October 2018. He is currently the head of Fine Chemicals
and Biomass Power Generation Development and Research Team of the
Company. Mr. Ma graduated from Zhengzhou University with an EMBA
degree and Nanjing University of Science and Technology with a degree in
Computer Technology.

MR. PAUL WONG WING WANG

Aged 49, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since 18 March 2019.
Mr. Wang has over 20 years of experience in the corporate finance industry
in Singapore. Prior to joining the Group, he has been the managing director
of Crowe Howarth Capital (Singapore) (“Crowe Singapore”) since April
2017, and was the chief executive officer of Partners Capital (Singapore)
Pte Ltd. (a boutique corporate finance firm with a CMS license from the
Monetary Authority of Singapore, which was acquired by Crowe Singapore
in April 2017) from January 2008 to April 2017. He was a partner of SAC
Capital Pte Ltd, a corporate finance advisor in Singapore, from December
2006 to December 2007. Mr. Wong is a member of CPA Australia, and holds
a Bachelor degree of Commerce from Newcastle University in Australia.

it

] n‘&%ig}g
3

BEELE

505% B2019F3 A 18HEETARRE
EHITE  EFBLRITEEA B 260 F K
o BIAEMRI192F 7 HE2000F 7 A
TEAECEFB BN EEREEH
o R 2000F 8 AMMARER - Wik
BEAEAREBR LT : 20004 8 A == 2005
F108  MELEBENERIBEE S EIE
200511 AZE2010%F1 A - F-EERE
B 20102 A E2012F 78 F=4%
ERE R 2012F8 HE2016F 127 * &
EEEIPAAIE : 2017F 1 AZ2017F7 7
HAEEEROMAE  K2017F8 AE 2018
FI10R  BEBRRARBEIE - 1B AR
DA B S REEY S R EREMRT
EFHMEEA  BEAEZEREINAE -
FESEMBAEAL - KRBT AEBTE#
BilTHZ -

EXRELE

495% + B 20193 A 18 H A& I E A B 2
LDEBVBE ERNENCERETE
HEAB20FLR - EMAREE ZF] - 1o
BE2017F4 ARIETREEEE AN IE)
HIE E4AKIR - 37 BN 20084E 1 B & 2017
F4ABRAEEERERNCGIINE) NEE
HITE (ZARAA—RBmbEERERR
ESFINEEREEBBERNEARTISR
AR - R2017 F4 A ESEESR
OIS ) WK HE ) - MR 2006F 12 A &
2007 12 B H1E SAC Capital Pte Ltd. 9B &
A —REFNE XM KER AR - £%&
ARBMIMEFHBees  WiKER
MR RETR R E B L84 o

hELEDL ~T-hEER 35



AN AN AN AN AU
”VTRK*"*\‘\/\/\/ /Y7\/\/\ DD DD N(Q

X)X D)X X DX D)X CXIC
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MR. LIYUSHUN

Aged 59, is the deputy general manager in charge of the research and
development department of Henan XLX since 31 July 2006. Mr. Li has
more than 30 years of experience in the chemical fertiliser industry. He
joined Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory in August 1982 and was appointed as the
deputy factory head of Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory in 1993. Mr. Li was the
deputy general manager of XLX Chem from August 2003 to July 2006. Mr.
Li graduated from Zhengzhou Engineering College (currently known as
Zhengzhou University) in July 1982 with a major in chemical technology. In
2004, he was awarded “First in Third Prize for Adopting the Improved Water
Solution Full Circulation Method Urea Technology to Expand Production
and Reduce Wastage” by the People’s Government of Xinxiang. In
November 2006, he was awarded the “Second Prize in Integrated Treatment
and Environmental Protection Project for Zero Discharge of Waste Water
Produced in the Production of Nitrogen Fertiliser” by China Nitrogen
Fertiliser Industry Association. He was recognised as a “Model Worker of
Hehan Province”in April 2014.

MR. WANG NAIREN

Aged 56, is the deputy general manager in charge of the sales and
purchasing of Henan XLX since 31 July 2006. He has more than 20 years of
experience in the chemical fertiliser industry. He held various positions in
Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory, including the office head of nitrogen fertiliser
plant and the deputy head and assistant to head of Xinxiang Fertiliser
Factory from March 1993. Mr. Wang was the deputy general manager of
sales and marketing department of XLX Chem from August 2003 to July
2006. Mr. Wang obtained a certificate of completion in master’s course of
business administration from Tianjin Institute of Finance and Economics
(currently known as Tianjin University of Finance and Economics) in June
2002.
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MR. ZHAO LIANZI

Aged 57, is the deputy general manager in charge of the strategy and
logistics department of Henan XLX since February 2012. He has almost
20 years of experience in the chemical fertiliser industry. He held various
positions in the Group, including the deputy head of Xinxiang Fertiliser
Factory from February 1999 to August 2000. He was the general manager
of Henan Xinxin Fertilizer Co,, Ltd. Of ¥ #1{LAERR D BR A F]) from
August 2000 to December 2003, the general manager of Compound
Fertilizer Branch, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,, Ltd. (8] f /0y O B BE B BR A
A& A BB A &) from December 2003 to July 2010, and the assistant
to general manager of Henan XLX from July 2010 to February 2012. Mr.
Zhao obtained a certificate of completion in master’s course of business
administration from Tianjin Institute of Finance and Economics (currently
known as Tianjin University of Finance and Economics) in June 2002. In
2007, he completed EDP (Executive Development Program) from Guanghua
School of Management, Peking University.

MR. WANG PINGBIAO

Aged 49, is the deputy general manager in charge of the production
department of Henan XLX since 29 April 2016. Mr. Wang has more than 20
years of experience in the chemical fertiliser industry. He joined Xinxiang
Fertiliser Factory in July 1992 and held various positions, including the
deputy director of technical transformation of Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory
and the deputy head of nitrogen fertiliser plant. He was the head of Branch
ll, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co, Ltd. (A1 Fg 2@ OMEAE B R A Bl =5 A &) from
January 2005 to September 2008, the head of Factory I, Henan XLX
Fertilizer Co., Ltd. ORI EDELMEIEAETR A ) from September
2008 to January 2010 and the head of Branch IV Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,,
Ltd. ORI DEOMERBEBR A BP9 A 7)) since October 2010. Mr. Wang
graduated from Zhengzhou Ehgmeermg College (currently known as
Zhengzhou University) with a tertiary certificate in June 1992, and obtained
a master degree in Executive Master of Business Administration from
Tsinghua University in 2008.
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MR. REN RONGKUI

Aged 51, he was appointed as the Deputy General Manager of Henan XLX
on 18 March 2019. Mr. Ren graduated from Henan Normal University in June
1992 and obtained a master’s degree in business administration from Xi'an
Jiaotong University in January 2017. He was qualified as a safety engineer.
From June 1992 to January 1997, he served as a workshop staff member
of Xinxiang Fertilizer Factory. From January 1997 to July 2000, he served as
director of the Instrument Workshop of Xinxiang Fertilizer Factory. From
July 2000 to July 2005, he served as manager of the agrochemical center
of Henan Xinxin Fertilizer Co,, Ltd,, and served as deputy director of Factory
I, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from January to July 2007. He served as
director of Factory I, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from July 2007 to August
2008, and manager of Branch Il, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,, Ltd. from August
2008 to October 2010, and served as the assistant of general manager of
Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from October 2010 to July 2017.

MS. SUN HONG

Aged 51, she was appointed as the deputy general manager of Henan XLX
on 18 March 2019. Ms. Sun graduated from Henan Normal University in July
1991 with major in chemistry, and obtained a master’s degree in applied
chemistry from Dalian University of Technology in July 1994. He obtained a
Ph.D. in Business Administration from Huazhong University of Science and
Technology in June 2011. From August 1994 to February 2004, he worked in
Henan Xinfei Electric Appliance Co,, Ltd,, as a technician, the deputy director
of the manufacturing department, director, manager of the advertising
department, and deputy manager of the marketing department, etc. From
March 2004 to October 2012, he served as the head of quality department,
deputy general manager of quality department and general manager of
quality department in Henan Xinfei Electric Appliance Co., Ltd. In November
2012, he served as assistant to general manager of Henan XLX Fertilizer Co.,
Ltd. and manager of enterprise management department.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
MS. LEUNG KWAN WAI

Ms. Leung Kwan Wai was appointed as a joint company secretary of the
Company since 4 July 2019. Ms. Leung is a manager of Corporate Services of
Tricor Services Limited (a global professional services provider specializing
in integrated business, corporate and investor services). She has over 10
years of experience in the corporate secretarial field and has been providing
professional corporate services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as
multinational, private and offshore companies. Ms. Leung is a Chartered
Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional and an Associate of both
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom.

MS. CHEOK HUI YEE

Ms. Cheok Hui Yee was appointed as a joint company secretary of the
Company since 6 March 2018. Ms. Cheok is a senior manager of Tricor
Evatthouse Corporate Services, a division of Tricor Singapore Pte. Ltd. (a
leading provider of integrated business, corporate and investor services
in Singapore). She has over 10 years of experience in corporate secretarial
practice in Singapore. Her area of exposure includes advisory and
assistance in compliance matters of public and private limited companies
in Singapore, foreign companies registered in Singapore as well as offshore
incorporated companies. She is currently the appointed company secretary
of several public companies listed on the SGX-ST. Ms. Cheok is a Practising
Chartered Secretary and an Associate of The Chartered Secretaries Institute
of Singapore.

BEARMWE
REZ 4L

2EELLTA_T-NFLANBREER
TAERRRBEARWE - RLAEE
BERBERAT (BN E R H
FER - BPIRMEREE  DEMREELRE
R7E) D ERFELLIE - R R FIWEEL
BEBI0FLH Y —EARBLTMAR
AR BERBIAT - FLVER T MR A RIRE
BENGERS - RLTABFHFWE  F
HFERHEEAL  URBBFIWELS
MERFAARNREASHNESE -

AzErt

AEERTEZE-N\F=ZABREEZ
ERARBEFEARWE - AT R Tricor
Singapore Pte. Ltd. (¥ i BRI 2 ~ 1B
ERKEEZRERBEER) 5 & Tricor
Evatthouse Corporate Services = & #€ 32 o
HEBEN0FHIE R RIME TIELS -
B ROBREABIEBE@IF IR AR KILAR
FRAR] > PO sE A SNE A B A R
BRONEMA I ARG R EEREER &%
B o IR ERRIA R ETME AR AT
WIEEATIWE - AT ARERTNE
KA WELAEEE -

RECEDL T AEFH 39



AN NI AU AN AN I DL
SONZONONZON ZON ZONZON 70N 7ON 7ON 70N 7ON 7ON 7ON 7 ON 7ON 70N ON 7ON 7ON /O
X UX DA DX I XD UX I X I AR IR I XTI UX T XD UAX I UX DA UKD XD XD XD XD X
Investor Relations
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During 2019, the Company continued to strengthen its efforts in
maintaining investor relations, and capital market recommendation and
media promotion became the main focus for work promotion, so as to
truly serve as a bridge for effective communication between the Company
and the capital market. The Company also listens attentively to various
suggestions and proposals from the capital market with regard to the
Company’s operations and management in a proactive, sincere and humble
manner, so as to optimise the Company’s operational management quality,
enhance the Company’s profitability and Shareholders' value and maximise
their interests.

TIMELY, RIGHTEOUS, FAIR AND ACCURATE INFORMATION
DISCLOSURE

The Company has been in strict compliance with the information disclosure
principles for listed companies by making timely, righteous, fair and
accurate information disclosure, which improve the transparency of the
Company, moreover, establish a smooth communication channel and
enhance its interaction and communication with the capital market. In
2019, the Company published 46 documents on SEHK's website. Such
publications have objectively and comprehensively disclosed information
regarding the results, operating performance, financial information,
dividend payment, poll results of shareholder meetings and certain other
voluntary disclosures. The Company’s website (www.chinaxIx.com.hk) is also
an important channel for its information disclosure and important platform
for investors to obtain information on the Company.

MULTIPLE-CHANNEL, COMPREHENSIVE INVESTOR
RELATIONS ACTIVITIES

The Company continued to conduct comprehensive communication with
capital market through various communication channels including results
announcement conference, roadshow activities, one-on-one investor
meetings, investor forums and reverse roadshow activities, communicating
its development philosophy and strategies, growth progress and latest
updates and results on operation and management, and sharing its
understanding and expectation on the industry and the market. Further,
the Company also developed various user-friendly promotion and
communication platforms such as website, WeChat public platforms and
other formats, with their contents covering corporate news, important
announcements, updates of the Company’s capital market, media report,
and analyst's report.
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Meanwhile, according to the needs and styles of analysts and different
investors, the Company flexibly and proactively arranged corporate senior
management to participate in various investor relations activities. During
2019, the Company’s senior management including the Chairman of the
Board and the Chief Financial Officer participated in plenty of investor
activities to fully communicate with the capital market, which realised
multi-channelled communications. In 2019, besides holding press
conferences after interim and annual results announcements, the Company
also attended various investor forums organised by a number of investment
banks and funds, conducted one-on-one meetings and conference calls
regularly, and made interactive communication with around 300 investors

and analysts throughout the year. We attach great importance to investors’

onsite visits, and arranged over forty plant visits to the headquarter of the
Group in 2019, meanwhile, the Company organised large-scale reverse
roadshow activities in the second half of 2019, more than thirty investors
visited the Group’s headquarters and Xinjiang base, so as to further give
investors and analysts a better idea of the business and operations of the
Group.

STEADY AND CONTINUOUS SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

The Company attaches great importance to the Shareholders' views on its
dividend payout. The Company determines its dividend payout every year
with reference to the Company’s financial status, long-term development
needs and potential investment opportunities. When the Company was
listed on the SGX-ST in 2007, we promised to the Shareholders that our
dividend payout ratio for each of the 3 years from 2007 to 2009 would not
be less than 20% of our net profit after tax, and we have kept our promises.
In 2019, the Group proposed dividend of RMB0.08 per Share and a dividend
payout ratio of 29.62% net profit attributable to owners of the parent.

RS - ARBEREOITENAM T RIEAIR EE
EVRSKANRGRL - TR - TEMLEE T o RE
BEE2RIEAREEREES - —T—N
FrARREEFRIRNERMBESRE
SETAENRPINREE L) THHEE

ATIGETRN - BT ZRENER - —
TNF BAFE  FERELERHIE
WREBOGIN  BESIT ZHREITMNE
TEPNIREERE - BNLREN—H—
SAMEZSH  2FRO-AARKRES
MDHTENETT T BB - KRR REER
REEIRAEMESR  —T—NFERAE
BP0 HHERIREE B ERAREE A
FIEF - —T—NFNFEF  ARFEINKEE
BARRAMEEEE  H=THARRES
B E R AN ERA B A - 0
RTREE - HDEH AR BB RRBIME
EARH TR o

FERBENRRE R

ARAEEEGRREBREFTENESR -
MRARENERTERA  RERERS
ZMREMRBERNRRETCEFHIRE °
KRB BR_BEELFENRAMLETRR
ERERE  —EELFE_TTNF=F
AEFHRBLLLAITMEREFHEEF R
20%  ARRHHBBEBEEAF - ZF— N
F - AEBEGEEREKRNIKE AR08
T ORBHEAEFEBE A REAE AFHE
#929.62% ©

The situation of the Company’s dividend payment since listing
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The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance principles and processes in managing the
business and affairs, so as to improve the performance, accountability,
and transparency of the Group. The Board sets appropriate policies and
implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the conduct
and growth of the Group's business.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has reviewed its
corporate governance practices and considers that the Company has
complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code. Key
corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised below.

A THE BOARD

A1.  RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION

The primary role of the Board is taking leadership and
control of the Company to protect and enhance long-term
Shareholders’ value. It sets the corporate strategies of the
Group, and sets directions and goals for the management.
The Board also supervises the management and monitors

performance of these goals to enhance Shareholders’

value. The Board is responsible for the overall corporate
governance of the Group.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Group are delegated to the executive Directors and
the management. Each executive Director has accumulated
sufficient and valuable experience to hold his/her position
in order to ensure that his/her fiduciary duties can be carried
out in an effective and efficient manner.
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The Board has established an internal framework to ensure
that the type of material transactions which required Board's
approval is consistently applied throughout the Group.
Matters requiring Board's approval include:

Overall Group business and budget strategy
ii. Capital expenditures, investments or divestments
exceeding certain material limits

iii. All capital-related matters including capital issuance
and redemption

iv. Significant policies governing the operations of the
Company

V. Corporate strategic development and restructuring

Vi Risk management strategy

Vii. Any major corporate activities involving changes in

Shareholders'rights and risk profile

Regular meetings of the Board are held to deliberate the
strategic policies of the Company including significant
acquisitions and disposals, review and approve annual
budgets, review the performance of the business and
approve the public release of periodic financial results.

All Directors are from time to time furnished with
information concerning the Company to enable them to be
fully cognizant of the decisions and actions of the Company’s
executive management. The Board has unrestricted access
to the Company’s records and information. Any Director may
request for independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company's expense, upon reasonable
request made to the Board.
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Senior management members are available to provide SREREGAGREZXR
explanatory information in the form of briefings to the EEWmENTESEEYR L
Directors or formal presentations at Board meetings, or by EIEZRVER - AIRREHAE
external consultants engaged on specific projects. B XSRS ERERIEE®
HNEDEERI IR SRR E K o
The Board has formed specialised committees namely the %%Aﬁiﬁﬂzy{lﬁfﬁ g8
AC, the RC and the NC (collectively the “Committees”) g IEZRELEES - HWE
to assist in carrying out and discharging its duties and E\/—\fﬂk%¥i§(%ﬂ&} [Z&
responsibilities efficiently and effectively. The Committees B8] UBMEEEUE
function within clearly defined terms of references and B = R 77 BT A B
operating procedures, which are reviewed on a regular THEBREMET -ZTEEL
basis. The effectiveness of each of the Committees is also EREBREATEETEHT
constantly reviewed by the Board. DAt a8 B i &6 (2] W@T’Fm
EETIE - EFEMN
Hﬂ*“*151§§/\saﬁﬁﬁixﬁ
The company secretary(ies) of the Company (the “Company RRARWRARMWE (AR
Secretary(ies)”) and/or his/her representative(s) attend(s) EDR/IERKRELEEM
all Board meetings and meetings of the Committees to FEEggaNEZEEW
ensure that Board procedures are followed and applicable CHBREZEGRERE
rules and regulations are complied with. Draft minutes of EeRFMAETEANRA
meetings of the Board and the Committees are circulated to MEHR -EFERETLEE
Directors and the Committees members, as the case may be, FENEBCHENRIAMY

A2.

for comments within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final version of minutes are available for Directors
inspection.

’

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2019, the composition of the Board is as
follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Xingxu (Chairman of the Board and

Member of the NC)

Mr. Zhang Qingjin
Ms. Yan Yunhua
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Ong Kian Guan (Chairman of the AC, Member
of the RC and the NC)

Mr. Li Shengxiao (Chairman of the NC, Member
ofthe AC and the RC)

Mr. Ong Wei Jin (Chairman of the RC, Member
ofthe AC and the NC)

Mr. Li Hongxing (Member of the AC, the RC
and the NC)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has
met the requirements of Listing Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of
having at least three independent non-executive Directors
(representing at least one-third of the Board) with one of
them possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting and related financial management expertise.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirements and
objectives of the Group and for the exercise of independent
judgement. The independent non-executive Directors
bring different business and financial expertise, experiences
and independent judgement to the Board and they are
invited to serve on the Committees. Through participation
in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflicts of interests and/or serving on
the Committees, the independent non-executive Directors
have made contributions to the effective direction of the
Company and provided adequate checks and balances
to safequard the interests of both the Group and the
Shareholders.

The biographical details of the Directors and the relationship
between Board members, if any, are set out in the section
headed “Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretaries” of this annual report.
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1 %M\Aiﬁﬂ:

A3.

A4.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in light of the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company supports the division of responsibility
between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in order to ensure a balance of
power and authority and preserve a balanced judgement
of views. During the year under review, Mr. Liu Xingxu is
the Chairman of the Board, focusing on the overall strategic
planning and business development of the Group; whereas
Mr. Ma Tongsheng is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, taking care of the overall management and day-
to-day business operations of the Group. Such separation of
the roles and duties of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
would enable timely management of the Group’s affairs and
further reinforce the Group's development.

In addition, the Directors are of the view that the balanced
composition of executive Directors and non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
on the Board and the existence of AC, RC and NC (comprising
all or a majority of independent non-executive Directors) in
overseeing different aspects of the Company’s affairs would
help to maintain the balance of power and authority.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and processes of appointment and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Constitution.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, whereas the Company has
issued a letter of appointment to each of the independent
non-executive Directors. All Directors are appointed
for a specific term of three years. They are also subject
to retirement and re-election in accordance with the
Constitution at least once every three years at an AGM.
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A5.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR
DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that
he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he/she is sufficiently aware
of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

The existing Directors are continually updated with legal
and regulatory developments, and the business and market
changes to refresh their knowledge and to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefings
and professional development to Directors are arranged
whenever necessary. In addition, reading materials on new
or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the
Group are provided to Directors from time to time for their
studying and reference.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors
have participated training as follows:

- All Directors (being Mr. Liu Xingxu, Mr. Zhang Qingjin,
Ms. Yan Yunhua, Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao,
Mr.Ong Wei Jin and Mr. Li Hongxing) received regular
briefings and updates from the Company Secretaries/
Company’s management on the Group's business,
operations and corporate governance matters.

- Mr. Liu Xingxu, Mr. Zhang Qingjin and Ms. Yan Yunhua
attended relevant seminars organised by professional
firms/institutions.

- All Directors read technical bulletins, periodicals
and other publications on subjects relevant to the
Group and on their responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.
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Corporate Governanc Report
TEERRE
A6.  DIRECTORS ATTENDANCE RECORDS A6. EHEBHFECHE
The attendance records of each Director at the meetings BEESEREBE_ZT—NF
of the Board and the Committees and the annual general TZA=+t—BIEFEARR
meeting of the Company held during the year ended 31 ARITHNESEEEH  £8
December 2019 are set out below: EEBLMRRERGHLEERL
BEFIWT -
Attendance of Meetings
BELERE
Annual  Extraordinary
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting Meeting
EZe ENZEE FMZEE REZEE REBEAE BREKEIAE
No. of Meetings held 11 4 2 2 1 1
EELH
Name of Director
BEpg
Executive Directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Liu Xingxu el 11 - - ) 1 1
Mr. Zhang Qingjin RESKE 10 - - - 0 0
Ms. Yan Yunhua BEZELt 11 - - - 1 1
Non-executive Director: FHTEE
Mr.Zheng Jiagi (Note) PEE LA () 1 - - - 0 0
Independent non-executive Directors: BV TEE -
Mr. Ong Kian Guan TER%E 9 4 2 2 1 1
Mr.Li Shengxiao TERRE 1 4 2 2 1 0
Mr. Ong Wei Jin TACRE 10 4 2 2 0 0
Mr.Li Hongxing TERSE 9 4 2 2 0 1
Note:  Mr. Zheng Jiaqi resigned as a non-executive director with MizE : EDE7E kAR BHEIENTT
effect from 23 November 2019. Prior to his resignation, 9 board FE BT NF+—
meetings, 1 annual general meeting and 1 extraordinary AZT=HRRAE - REE
general meeting were held during the year ended 31 BAl #E_FT—NF
December 2019. +ZA=F+—HIEFER

BITORESRE 1 RFE
MR AR & B IR R S AR
R °
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A7.

In addition, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without
the presence of executive Directors during the year under
review.

While the Board considers Directors’ attendance at the
meetings of the Board and the Committees to be important,
it should not be the only criterion to measure the Directors
contributions. The Board also takes into account the
contributions by Board members in other forms including
periodical reviews, and provision of guidance and advice on
various matters relating to the Group.

1

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code (Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules) as its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’dealings in the Company'’s securities. The Company
has made specific enquiry of all the Directors, and the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code (the "Employees
Written Guidelines”), governing securities transactions
by the relevant employees who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company and/or its securities. No incident
of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
relevant employees was noted by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2019

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period
for dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will
notify the Directors and relevant employees in advance.

A7.
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Corporate Governance Report
LEEBOIRLE
A8.  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS A8. TREEIRRAE
The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the ESSBRBAERTLESE
corporate governance functions set out in the code JASFRIAY ST ANEXCE D31 &
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board has reviewed and HIWEEE B - EE
monitored the Company’s corporate governance policies g RERARFNRE
and practices, the training and continuous professional ERBEREH EERkS
development of Directors and senior management, the REBEIBIRBFEFTE
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with BR - ARAIMETEER
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the EEHATHOHRERSH =2
Model Code and the Employees Written Guidelines, and the AESFR R B B EH IR S E’JL
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in T UARARRAMEEER
this Corporate Governance Report. TRIRABEERRE AN
BEERREST
BOARD COMMITTEES B. EBEZEE

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the

%%Aaﬁii:ﬂ%$/’\§i

AC, the RC and the NG, for overseeing particular aspects of the g DHAERZEES FMZE
Company’s affairs. All the Committees have been established BE@kiEELEg EUEEXR
with defined written terms of reference, which are available on NAEBHEEHE - TEER

the websites of the SEHK (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.chinaxlx.com.hk). All the Committees should report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All the Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses.

B1. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The AC currently comprises a total of four members, being
the four existing independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao, Mr. Ong Wei
Jin.and Mr. Li Hongxing. The chairman of the AC is Mr. Ong

YWMEZEEeHEH THERATEN
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(www.hkexnews.hk) &2 A& A 7]
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Kian Guan, who possesses the appropriate professional fE -BREEEEIRAT
qualifications, accounting and related financial management BIRSE - BHEALWHRA
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. FIIQEAMRENEE R

None of the members of the AC is a former partner of the ¥ER 2 BBV BE

Company’s existing external auditor.
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The main duties of the AC are reviewing the financial
information and reports of the Group and considering any
significant or unusual items raised by the financial officers
of the Group or the external auditor before submission to
the Board; reviewing the relationship with and the terms
of appointment of the external auditor and making the
relevant recommendation to the Board; and reviewing the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit function.

The Company has in place a whistle-blowing policy for
employees of the Group to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. The AC constantly receives updates from
the external auditor pertaining to the latest changes to the
accounting standards and issues which have a direct impact
on financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the AC has held 4
meetings. Details of individual attendance of each member
at the meetings are set out in section A6 above. The AC has
performed the following major works during the year ended
31 December 2019:

- Review and discussion of the annual financial
statements, results announcement and report for
the year ended 31 December 2018 together with
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report,
and the related accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group;

- Review and discussion of the interim financial
statements, results announcement and report for
the six months ended 30 June 2019, and the related
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group;
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i%ﬂhA#&ﬂ:

Review and discussion of the financial results for
the first quarter ended 31 March 2019 and the third
quarter ended 30 September 2019 respectively;

Consideration and discussion of the major audit
findings (including Key Audit Matters) for the year
ended 31 December 2018 from the external auditor;

Consideration and discussion of the major internal
audit issues for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the six months ended 30 June 2019 respectively;

Review of the independence of the external auditor
and recommendation of its re-appointment for the
year ended 31 December 2019;

Review and discussion of the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2019;

Review and discussion of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting system, the risk management
and internal control systems and the internal audit
function;

Review of the arrangement of whistle-blowing
policy; and

Review and discussion of Ernst & Young LLP’s audit
plan for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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B2.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the external
auditor has met the AC twice and discussed with the AC on
issues arising from the audit and financial reporting matters.

The AC, having reviewed all non-audit services provided
by the external auditor of the Company, was satisfied that
the nature and extent of such services would not affect the
independence and objectivity of the external auditor. The
AC recommended that Ernst & Young LLP be nominated for
re-appointment as the Company's external auditor at the
2020 AGM. There is no disagreement between the Board and
the AC regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditor.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The RC currently comprises a total of four members, being
the four existing independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao, Mr. Ong Wei Jin
and Mr. Li Hongxing. The chairman of the RC is Mr. Ong Wei
Jin. All aspects of remuneration, including but not limited
to Directors' fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses and benefits
in kind, will be covered by the RC. Each RC member will
abstain from voting on any resolution in respect of his own
remuneration package.

B2.
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The principal responsibilities of the RC include reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure and the remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management (i.e. the
model described in the code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG
Code is adopted). The RC is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of
his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, and the remuneration will be determined
by the Board with reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as the market practice
and conditions.

In setting remuneration packages, the RC will take into
consideration the pay and employment conditions in
comparable companies within the industry. The RC will
also review the remuneration packages of the independent
non-executive Directors and the non-executive Director to
ensure that they are commensurate with the contributions
and responsibilities of the Directors. Each of the executive
Directors entered into a service contract with the Company,
which covers each of their terms of employment. The
Company will submit the quantum of Directors' fees of each
year to the Shareholders for approval at each AGM.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the RC has held 2
meetings. Details of individual attendance of each member
at the meeting are set out in section A6 above. At the said
meeting, the RC: (i) reviewed the remuneration framework
for the Directors, key executive staff, top five highest paid
employees and employees who are immediate family
members of the Directors for the year ended 31 December
2018 and the remuneration proposal for the year ended 31
December 2019, by reference to the Group's performance
and profitability as well as the remuneration level of certain
listed corporations within the industry; and (ii) reviewed
the letters of appointment, including the remuneration
packages, of the Directors appointed during the year under
review, with recommendations to the Board for approval.
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B3.

Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code,
the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December
2019 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)

RIEDEEASFRISFRNES
FEBISKE HEZZ—NF
+-A=+—HIEFESH
EREN BN FEF ke
B p&EINET :

Number of individuals

FNEE (AR®BT) AE
700,000-900,000 2
900,001-1,000,000 3

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements contained in this annual
report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The NC currently comprises a total of five members, being
the Chairman of the Board, namely Mr. Liu Xingxu, and the
four existing independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao, Mr. Ong Wei Jin and
Mr. Li Hongxing. Accordingly, a majority of the members are
independent non-executive Directors. The chairman of the
NC is Mr. Li Shengxiao.

The principal responsibilities of the NC include reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on an annual basis
and recommending any changes to the Board; identifying
qualified and suitable individuals to become Board
members and selecting and making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and making recommendations to
the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.
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The NC has established and implemented processes
including taking into consideration the attendance records
at the meetings of the Board and the Committees for
monitoring and evaluating the performance of the Board
as a whole and effectiveness and contribution of individual
Directors.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of
other significant offices held by them. Where a Director has
multiple directorships, the NC will evaluate whether or not
the Director is able to carry out and has been adequately
carrying out his/her duties as a Director. For the year ended
31 December 2019, the Board is satisfied that each Director
has allocated sufficient time and resources to the affairs of
the Company.

The Company has also adopted the Director Nomination
Policy. Such policy, devising the criteria and process of
selection and performance evaluation, provides guidance to
the Board on nomination and appointment of directors of
the Company. The Board believes that the defined selection
process is good for corporate governance in ensuring the
Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level,
and enhancing better Board effectiveness and diversity
as well as in compliance with the applicable rules and
regulations.

The NC and/or the Board may select candidates for
directorship from various channels, including but not limited
to internal promotion, re-designation, referral by other
member of the management and external recruitment
agents. In selecting and evaluating candidates for
directorship, the NC may make reference to certain criteria,
such as the Company’s needs, the integrity, experience,
skills and professional knowledge of the candidate, and the
amount of time and effort that the candidate will devote to
discharge his/her duties and responsibilities. Each candidate
shall be ranked by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and his/her reference check. The NC shall
report its findings and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment of appropriate candidate for
directorship for decision.
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The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the
Company’s competitive advantage. The Company believes
that greater diversity of directors is good for corporate
governance and is committed to attract and retain
candidate(s) for Board with a combination of competencies
from the widest possible pool of available talents; and
to assess regularly the diversity profile of the Board and,
where applicable, senior management prepared for Board
positions under the succession planning of the Company
and the progress on achieving diversity objectives, if any.
A Board diversity policy was adopted by the Company,
pursuant to which the Board and the NC is responsible
for reviewing and assessing the Board composition under
diversified perspectives (including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience) and for ensuring that changes to the Board’s
composition can be managed without undue disruption.
The NC shall report its findings and make recommendation
to the Board, if any. Such policy and objectives, if any, will be
reviewed from time to time to ensure their appropriateness
in determining the optimum composition of the Board that
are aligning with the Company’s strategy and objectives.

The NC considered an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained and has not set any
measurable objective implementing the Board diversity

policy.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the NC has
held 2 meetings. Details of individual attendance of each
member at the meeting are set out in section A6 above.
At the said meeting, the NC: (i) reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board to ensure that it has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to
the requirements for the business of the Group; (i) assessed
the independence of all the independent non-executive
Directors; and (iii) recommended the re-election of the
retiring Directors at the 2019 AGM.

DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and is mindful of
its obligations to furnish timely information and to ensure full
disclosure of material information to the Shareholders in compliance
with statutory requirements and the Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The
management has provided such explanation and information to
the Board as necessary to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial information and position of the Group
and put forward to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems have
a key role in the identification and management of risks that are
significant to the achievement of the Group's business objectives.
The process of business risk management has been integrated
throughout the Group into business planning and monitoring
processes. The Company’s management continuously assesses the
likelihood of risk occurrence, provides treatment plans, monitors
the risk management progress, and reports to the AC and the Board
on all findings. The management would also report to the AC and
the Board on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The AC ensures that a review of the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems covering all material
internal controls (including financial, operational, compliance
and information technology controls), with respect to the design,
implementation and monitoring of such systems, is conducted
annually and put forward to the Board for consideration. In this
regard, the AC reviews the audit plans and the findings of the
external and internal auditors, and ensures that the Company will
follow up on the auditors' recommendations raised, if any, during
the audit process.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Board, with the assistance of
the management and the AC, has the overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives,
and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the interests
of the Shareholders and the Group’s assets.
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Based on the reports submitted by the external and internal
auditors and the various management controls put in place, the
Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems for the year ended
31 December 2019. With the concurrence of the AC, the Board
considered that the Group's risk management and internal control
systems maintained by the management are effective and adequate
to address the financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management of the Group throughout the year ended 31
December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has also
received assurance from the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company that (i) the financial records have
been properly maintained and the financial statements give a true
and fair view of the Company/Group’s operation and finances; and (ii)
the Company/Group have put in place and will continue to maintain
reliable, comprehensive and sound systems of risk management,
internal control and corporate governance that will withstand the
scrutiny of any audit and review by the external auditor.

The Company has implemented control procedures throughout the
year ended 31 December 2019 to ensure that unauthorised access
and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The primary functions of the Company'’s internal audit include
assessing if adequate internal control system is in place to protect
the funds and assets of the Group and to ensure compliance
with the internal control procedures; assessing if operation of
the business processes under review is conducted efficiently and
effectively; and identifying and recommending improvements to
the internal control procedures, where required.

The Board, with the concurrence of the AC, is satisfied with
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget and effectiveness of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
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COMPANY SECRETARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Ms. Leung Kwan Wai of
Tricor Services Limited and Ms. Cheok Hui Yee of Tricor Singapore
Pte. Ltd., both of which companies being external service providers,
have been engaged as the Company’s Joint Company Secretaries.
On 4 July 2019, Ms. Leung Kwan Wai has been appointed as the
Company'’s Joint Company Secretary in replacement of Ms. So
Yee Kwan of Tricor Services Limited. Details of the said change of
secretaries are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 4 July
2019.

The Company Secretaries' primary contact persons at the Company
are Ms. Yan Yunhua, an executive Director, and Mr. Zhu Weiwei, the
Head of Investor Relations of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company Secretaries
have taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor's Report”of this annual report.
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The fees paid/payable to Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s external
auditor, in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2019 are analysed below:

WHE-_T-NAFT_A=+—~H
LEFE B Z IR NI Z R M
B ER T ARRBIMNBZ BN
KEERTENVEBANEROMIT

Fees paid/payable
B ENER
Type of services provided by the external auditor (RMB'000)
SMER R B iR AL AV RIS R 2R (AR¥ETT)
Audit services
ER
- Audit fee for the year ended 31 December 2019 3,990
HE-_Z-NWF+-A=+—BLFENEXEAR
Non-audit services
FELIRTE
- Tax compliance service 187
HIBE RIRTS
TOTAL:
M=t - 4177
|

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Group recognises the importance of transparent and timely
disclosure of corporate information, which enables Shareholders
and investors to make the best investment decision. Price sensitive
information will be publicly released before the Company’s
disclosure of any of such information to any group of investors or
analysts. Financial results and reports will be announced or issued
within the prescribed periods under the statutory or regulatory
requirements.

In line with continuous obligations of the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules, the Board's policy is that all Shareholders be informed
of all major developments that impact the Group. Information is
disseminated to the Shareholders and investors on a timely basis
through:

i. Announcements, financial reports, circulars and news
releases published on the website of the SEHK;

ii. Financial reports prepared and issued to all Shareholders;
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iil. Press releases on major developments of the Group;

iv. Notices of and explanatory memoranda for AGM and EGM;
and
V. the Company’s website at www.chinaxIx.com.hk at which

the Shareholders can access information of the Group,
roadshows organised by banks and plant visits.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings to ensure
high level of accountability and to stay apprised of the Group's
strategy and goals. Notices of general meetings will be published
on the websites of the SEHK and the Company. The chairmen of the
Committees are normally available at general meetings to answer
any question relating to the work of the Committees. The external
auditor shall also be present at AGM to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

Besides, for putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders
and investors may send written enquiries to the Company. The
Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries. Shareholders and investors may send their written
enquiries to the following:

Address:  17/F, Yat Chau Building, 262 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Head of Investor Relations)

Fax: (852) 2521 9955

Email: weiwei.zhu@chinaxlx.com.hk

Inquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS l. R ER AR
To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate ARERROER RER - AAA
resolution shall be proposed at general meetings on each BREEXNERNEE (BEEEE
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual MEE)RNRRERAGREB LRE
Directors, for Shareholders’ consideration and voting. RUAHBEREEREERR -
1. CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL METING 1.  BHERREIRE
Pursuant to Article 47 of the Constitution, the Directors RIBEZERZRMAFE471& E=
may whenever they think fit, and shall on requisition in MR AE R IMRIZRTHE
accordance with the statute, proceed with proper expedition T AlEE M BER B R IRER
to convene an EGM. FRIKg o
Pursuant to the Companies Act: BEBERARDE :
@  Shareholders holding 10% or more of the paid- @ REXZERBHIFEE
up capital of the Company which carries the right RN EEE R 10%
to vote at general meetings as at the date of the FA LW BRENRE
deposit of the requisition, may request the Board A EEREMRRE -
to convene an EGM. The written requisition must AEREETELRRK
specify the objects of the meeting, be signed by RERAREg - EEHE
the Shareholders concerned and deposited at the i%‘m? E N SE N
registered office of the Company for the attention of VB BRRRE
the Board or the Company Secretaries; % BZEEARRQAR
AR (AR
HARESTGHAT
W)
(b)  The Board shall proceed to convene an EGM within b)) EBEZGBREXZE
21 days of the deposit of such written requisition. mZ kA H&@ i 21
Such EGM shall be held within 2 months after the HAARRERRIX
deposit of such written requisition; and g BEARRRERIKR

EfEE/\LXu/(EEg
k28 AR T

X
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() If the Directors do not within 21 days after the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed to convene an
EGM, the Shareholders who deposited requisition, or
any of them representing more than 50% of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves, in the
same manner as nearly as possible as that in which
meetings are to be convened by Directors, convene
an EGM, but any EGM so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of 3 months from that date.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

In general, subject to the paragraph below, no resolution
may be proposed at a general meeting (whether it is an EGM
or an AGM) if such resolution is not included in the notice
convening the general meeting. However, if the proposal
is to amend an existing resolution set out in the notice
convening the general meeting and such amendment
is within the scope of the notice, such amendment may
be made if approved by the Shareholders by ordinary
resolution.

On the requisition in writing of either (i) any number of
Shareholders representing not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the general meeting to which
the requisition related; or (i) not less than 100 Shareholders
on which there has been paid up an average sum, per
Shareholder, of not less than $$500, the Company shall be
under a duty to:

(a) Give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next AGM notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting; and
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(b)  Circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice by 1A ﬁ*gﬁégéiffﬂﬂﬁ

of any general meeting sent to them any statement RASRENKRRE

of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the FpﬂTiﬂ ,000 F KPR

matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the E - LLEMREZA

business to be dealt with at that meeting. SLRENENES
RBERPTMEE A
BRIRHYEIE o

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and It E#E R BB

any such statement shall be circulated, to the Shareholders RAEMLERRE - BIAE

entitled to have notice of the meeting sent to them by FRARRERGRENS

serving a copy of the resolution or statement on each such I EREZORFE R SR

Shareholder in any manner permitted for service of notice of ENRIAES ﬁffﬁﬂxﬁ A

the meeting, and notice of any such resolution shall be given BB BERRE

to any other Shareholder by giving notice of the general BHER iEAﬁTTEHE

effect of the resolution in any manner permitted for giving i A% B8 2% AT L S ORGE R

him/her notice of meetings of the Company. The requisition giRE - BIZELUETTR R M

shall be deposited at the registered office of the Company at
least 6 weeks before the meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Shareholder must provide his/her
full name, contact details and identification, in the originally signed
written requisition, notice or statement (as the case may be), in
order to give effect thereto. Information of the Shareholder may be
disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made
any changes to the Constitution. An up-to-date version of the
Constitution is available on the websites of the SEHK and the
Company. Shareholders may refer to the Constitution for further
details of the rights of Shareholders.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings shall be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules, and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the SEHK and the Company after each general
meeting.
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(YOO YD Y D)
Directors’ Statement
EERE

The directors (the “Directors”) of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. (the “Company”)
are pleased to present their statement to the Shareholders together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) and the
statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

In the opinion of the Directors,

(i) the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group
and the statement of financial position and statement of changes
in equity of the Company are drawn up so as to give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as
at 31 December 2019 and the financial performance, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019; and

(i) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to
believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when
they fall due.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 46 to the financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, a discussion on
the Group's future business development, and the description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set out in the
Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion and Analysis of this
annual report. The financial risk management objectives and policies of
the Group are set out in Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Financial Highlights of this
annual report. Discussions on the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations and relationships with its key stakeholders that have a
significant impact on the Group are included in the Chairman’s Statement,
Investor Relations and Corporate Governance Report of this annual report
and in this Directors' Statement.

The Group places much importance on environmental protection, energy-
saving and emission reduction, continuously processes environmental
transformation of production systems, promotes the implementation of
clean production, and continuously formulates and improves a series of
regulation policies to improve our environmental management, laying
a solid foundation for future development. Please refer to the separate
2019 Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG') Report of the Group,
which will be published on the websites of SEHK and the Company, for
further details of the Group’s ESG-related risks, environmental policies and
performance and other ESG information.
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irectors’ Statement
EERE
DIVIDEND POLICY BREBEER

The Company is committed to sharing its development and achievements
with shareholders through stable and sustainable dividend payment whilst
maintaining an optimal capital structure which allows the Company to take
advantage of any investment and expansion opportunities that may arise
from time to time. The Company has adopted a divided policy which sets
out the basic principles in determining the distribution of the dividends and
the normal target payout ratio of not less than 20% of its annual net profits
attributable to its shareholders in each financial year.

The Board shall consider the following factors before declaring or
recommending dividends, including without limitation to: (i) financial
results; (i) cash flow situation; (iii) availability of distributable profits; (iv)
business conditions and strategies; (v) future operations and earnings; (vi)
capital requirements and expenditure plans.

The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with the
Constitution and the applicable laws and regulations. The Board will review
the said dividend policy as appropriate from time to time and there can be
no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
given period.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the Group's
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 89 to 92 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year. The Directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend of RMB8 cents (2018: RMB10 cents) per
ordinary share in respect of the year to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members on 2 July 2020. Subject to the approval
of Shareholders at the 2020 AGM, the final dividend will be paid on 31 July
2020 in HKD of HKD0.0873 per ordinary share.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out on page 222 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of the Company’s share capital and convertible bonds are set out in
Notes 36 and 34 to the financial statements, respectively.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Constitution or
the laws of Singapore, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2019, the Company'’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
amounted to approximately RMB264,836,000 of which RMB93,730,000 has
been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 7% (2018: less than 20%) of the total sales for the
year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 35.6%
(2018: 31%) of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to 12% (2018: 7%).

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.
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Directors’ Statement
BEERE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Company has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Company.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
RMB553,996 (2018: RMB2,972,890).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Liu Xingxu
Zhang Qingjin
Yan Yunhua

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

Zheng Jiaqi (resigned on 23 November 2019)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Ong Kian Guan
Li Shengxiao
Ong Wei Jin
Li Hongxing

Pursuant to Articles 89 and 90 of the Constitution, Ms. Yan Yunhua, Mr. Li
Shengxiao and Mr. Ong Wei Jin shall retire by rotation at the 2020 AGM, and
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2020 AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors and considers them to be
independent.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND COMPANY SECRETARIES

Biographical details of the Directors, the senior management of the Group
and the Company Secretaries are set out on pages 31 to 39 of this annual
report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the year was the Company a
party to any arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is,
to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years, unless terminated in accordance with
the provisions of the service contract by either party giving to the other not
less than six months' prior notice in writing.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive Directors for a term of three years, unless
terminated by either party giving to the other not less than three months’
prior notice in writing.

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2020 AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors' remuneration is subject to approval by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and

performance and the results of the Group. Details of the Directors’

remuneration are set out in Note 9 to the financial statements.

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

During the year, the five individuals with the highest remuneration in the
Group are all Directors and senior management of the Company. Details
of the highest paid individuals are set out in Note 10 to the financial
statements.
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Dlrectors Statement

EEHE

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION BEFRERX

As set out in Article 147 of the Constitution, a permitted indemnity ~ BHRERMAAIE 147 RBEBENREFTHE
provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the — /MEFFRERX REE R REHIER) R
benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout the ERERNEARERK

year.

DIRECTORS’INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” and in Note 41 to the financial statements, no Director nor
a connected entity of a Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of or at any time during the
year under review.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company in shares of the Company, as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 164 of the
Companies Act and Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS
LSp)

EERXE - ZFREENER

BISERER S | — 8RB BHRERME
A FAHERSN  REBEFEEEARFAE
SHE > EFREFNAEEEHENSK
RA A E AR TR LA REE
BMEBEANTARS  ZHLART
BERERAEEEAER °

EERFETRAESRKROVER

RZZE—NEF+—_A=+—H ZFEKAK
NAIEBITRABRAAGIRMNOFHEERT
BRIERRVEF 164 1E KR FEH K EBE G
FEINEARR R FENELMANER
SR I T AR BIRT &% - PR IR 2ESF RIIZE
MERNQR) R FTR ST

Number of ordinary shares interested

BERENEERYE
Approximate
percentage’ of the
Name of Directors/ Company'’s issued
Chief Executive Personal Corporate share capital
B interests interests Total interests  {HZAN A T2 21T
4= = S
FEITHABHSE EPNG NEER mER RANOEIHL?
Mr. Liu Xingxu 600,000 413,007,999 413,607,999 35.30%
BIEE LA (Note P& (a))
Ms. Yan Yunhua 300,000 276,465,000 276,765,000 23.62%
BmEL T (Note P (b))
Mr. Ong Kian Guan 100,000 - 100,000 0.01%
FRIRESE
Mr. Ma Tongsheng 8,000 - 8,000 0.00%
BlErE
# The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December
2019

' ZADIEEAEENEBREARURATR -Z-NF+ - A=+—HHNEBTROHEE -
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Notes:

(@) These shares were held by Pioneer Top Holdings Limited ("Pioneer Top"), an
investment holding company established in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").
Mr. Liu Xingxu beneficially owned 42% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top,
and held the remaining 58% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top in trust for 7
beneficiaries (including Mr. Zhang Qingjin) under a trust agreement dated 26
July 2016. Pursuant to the trust agreement, Mr. Liu Xingxu is irrevocably granted
the absolute discretion to exercise the voting rights in and the rights to the day-
to-day management of Pioneer Top.

(b) These shares were held by Go Power Investments Limited ("Go Power”), an
investment holding company established in the BVI. Ms. Yan Yunhua beneficially
owned 12.74% of the equity interest in Go Power, and held the remaining 87.26%
of the equity interest in Go Power in trust for more than 1,000 beneficiaries under
a trust agreement dated 26 July 2016. Pursuant to the trust agreement, Ms. Yan
Yunhua is irrevocably granted the absolute discretion to exercise the voting
rights in and the rights to the day-to-day management of Go Power.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company nor their associates had or was deemed
to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which has been recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 164 of the Companies Act
and Section 352 of the SFO, or which has been notified to the Company
and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors has any interest in a business which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group under the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed.

OPTIONS

The Group has no share option scheme.
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Dlrectors Statement
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS B EH 8175 %

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing AN IR RN AR E] S A F RAF B 1
Shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that ~ IREHAHZE - AGERAIEEH AR
will or may result in the Company issuing Shares were entered into by the — FIZETTIRD K ERKA R BIFT LR KB

Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year. A REE AR R BITIRHD B
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES FERRNARKRG - HERGDERE
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES EHRER

As at 31 December 2019, the following parties had interests of 5% or more ~ RZZE—HNF+ZA=+—0H ' LARQF

in the issued shares and underlying shares of the Company according to ~ 1RIE R A E 8815 k& H K EIE 1R 0I5
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuantto 336 §BFEMERE LM - THEHR

Section 88 of the Companies Act and Section 336 of the SFO: RARIE BT EER 5% A LRI -
LONG POSITIONS
)
Number of issued Approximate percentage’
ordinary shares of the Company’s
interested issued share capital
BEERN EERRB T
Name of substantial Shareholders Capacity BT B 7 A B4R 40
TERRER =37) HEERYE B!
Pioneer Top (Note Fff & (@) Beneficial owner 413,007,999 35.25%
EnEAA
Go Power (Note M 5T (b)) Beneficial owner 276,465,000 23.60%
BEnEAA
Nitro ((Note P & () Beneficial owner 112,640,000 9.61%
EREEA
Primavera Capital (Cayman) Fund | LP. Interest of controlled corporation 112,640,000 961%
R LB R

The percentage represents the number of issued ordinary shares interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31

December 2019
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Notes: PsE -

(a) Pioneer Top is an investment holding company established in the BVI. Mr. Liu @) Pioneer Top IR E B LB T 7 18E
Xingxu beneficially owned 42% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top, and held AR AT BB L AT ﬁﬁgg & Pioneer
the remaining 58% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top in trust for 7 beneficiaries Top 42% B%HE - WIRE A A -ZT— X Ft
under a trust agreement dated 26 July 2016, including 7% for Mr. Zhang Qingjin, A-+/NBNEIHE 7957%Xm)\1:‘ T
an executive Director and the Company's Chief Executive Officer; 7% for Mr. Li 35 75 Pioneer Top 82 T 58% AR 4% - %74 %
Yushun and 7% for Mr. Wang Nairen, the Company’s senior management; 7% for FABRERTES LR AN EENTE R
Mr.Ru Zhengtao, 7% for Mr. Zhu Xingye (retired) and 7% for Mr. Shang Dewei, the BahE(7%) s RTINS HEBES T
Company’s employees; and 16% for Mr. Li Buwen, a former executive Director. JIE 5 4 (7%) R E T4 (7%) 5 AR A
Mr. Liu Xingxu has the absolute discretion to exercise the voting rights in Pioneer BESHIEELET%) « SEEEE(E
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has also been disclosed as the interest of Mr. Liu Xingxu in the above section ﬁ%%ﬁ XA (16%) o RIBZ(EEEW
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(b) Go Power is an investment holding company established in the BVI. Ms. Yan
Yunhua beneficially owned 12.74% of the equity interest in Go Power, and
held the remaining 87.26% of the equity interest in Go Power in trust for more
than 1,000 beneficiaries under a trust agreement dated 26 July 2016. Ms. Yan
Yunhua has the absolute discretion to exercise the voting rights in Go Power in
accordance with the trust agreement. Such interest held by Go Power has also
been disclosed as the interest of Ms. Yan Yunhua in the above section headed
“Directors'and Chief Executive's Interests in Shares’”

(0 Nitro is an investment holding company established in the Cayman Islands and is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Primavera Capital (Cayman) Fund | L.P

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person, other than
the Directors whose interests are set out in the section headed “Directors
and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares” above, had an interest or a short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company that
was required to be recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 88 of the Companies Act and Section 336 of the SFO.

1

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance were entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions, which are also the related party transactions set out in Note
41 to the financial statements that constituted continuing connected
transactions, and has complied with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Liu Xingxu, Ms. Yan Yunhua and Mr. Zhang
Qingjin (being executive Directors) collectively held an aggregate of
approximately 10.6% interest in XLX Chem, and together are the largest
shareholder of XLX Chem and have the largest influence through their
shareholders’ rights on the major decisions in XLX Chem. Therefore, XLX
Chem, its subsidiaries and associates (collectively “XLX Chem Group”) are
deemed as the Company’s connected persons under Rule 14A.07 of the
Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Statement

BEERE

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS TERRFEFERS

0

UTILITIES SUPPLY AGREEMENT

The Group entered into the Utilities Supply Agreement on 30
December 2016 with XLX Chem Group, pursuant to which Henan
XLX agreed to supply water, electricity and steam to XLX Chem
Group. This arrangement helps the Group to improve the utilisation
of its utilities facilities, and the additional income received from
providing such utilities to XLX Chem Group can be used to reduce
the overall maintenance, labour and management costs to the
Group of maintaining such facilities. Pursuant to the agreement,
the price for the supply of electricity is determined on the basis of
actual usage as recorded in the relevant meters with reference to
the price set out by the PRC government or relevant authorities; and
the price for supply of water and steam is determined on the basis
of actual usage as recorded in the relevant meters with reference to
the actual costs plus a 10% mark-up.

The Utilities Supply Agreement has a term commencing from 1
January 2017 up to and including 31 December 2019. The Group
has set the annual cap for the income received by the Group from
XLX Chem Group under the agreement at RMB4,000,000 for FY2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount
received by the Group from XLX Chem Group for the sales of water,
electricity and steam amounted to approximately RMB1,085,000 and
has been accounted for as other income in the Group’s consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

EQUIPMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT

The Group entered into the Equipment Purchase Agreement on
30 December 2016 with XLX Chem Group, pursuant to which XLX
Chem Group agreed to supply and provide the relevant installation
services for equipment, including pipes, vessels and pressure vessels,
to Henan XLX. Accordingly, the Group benefits from reliable and
timely delivery of equipment and cost effectiveness. Pursuant to the
agreement, the prices for equipment purchases are determined by
the Group’s internal qualification and tendering procedures with
potential suppliers of equipment, which vary depending on the
product type, quantity and quality specifications as required by
Henan XLX.
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(1

The Equipment Purchase Agreement has an original term
commencing from 1 January 2017 up to and including 31
December 2019. In line with the expanding sales network and
increasing production capacity of the Group, there has been an
increasing demand of equipment by the Group. In order to provide
flexibility and rates for the needs of the Group for equipment to
support its production, Henan XLX entered into a new Equipment
Purchase Agreement with XLX China Group on 24 December 2018,
among other things, to revise the annual caps for the 12 months
ended/ending 31 December 2018 and 2019 respectively, and to
expend the term to the year ending 31 December 2020. The Group
has set the annual cap for the amount paid by the Group to XLX
Chem Group for the purchases of equipment under the agreement
at RMB85,000,000 for FY2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount
paid by the Group for the purchases of equipment from XLX
Chem Group was approximately RMB72,080,000. The amount of
RMB63,959,000 has been included in spare parts inventories in
the Group's consolidated statement of financial position. Besides,
the Group paid RMB8,121,000 as anti-corrosion service fees which
has been accounted for as general and administrative expenses
in the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

GENERAL LEASE AGREEMENT AND LEASE RENEWAL
AGREEMENT

The Group entered into the General Lease Agreement on 21 August
2013 with XLX Chem Group, pursuant to which XLX Chem Group
agreed to lease certain living quarters with an aggregate area of
138,134.89 square meters located at XLX Chem West Courtyard
Living Quarters, Xiaoji Town, Xinxiang City, Henan, China (7 B/l Fg
FrafT/ NE A OE ME TR AJER) to Henan XLX. The living
quarters include industrial kitchens, canteens, staff dormitories,
warehouses and apartments, which can provide the general staff of
Henan XLX with convenient residential facilities and reduce the time
required for daily work commute. Pursuant to the agreement, the
monthly lease amount is determined with reference to prevailing
market rates of similar premises in Henan Province. The General
Lease Agreement has a term commencing from 19 August 2013 up
to and including 18 August 2016.
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In order to continue to take advantage of the strategic location of R HE BB R PR L A 7N B 1B A 2 TR

the accommodation and catering facilities of XLX Chem, which are

O EOME TR LB RN

in proximity to the Group’s production factories, the General Lease & WME{EM —REERERR
Agreement was renewed by virtue of the Lease Renewal Agreement ERZE—R"ENATN\BEH -
on 18 August 2016 with a term of three years commencing from 19 BT /‘_\i)\ﬂ THhBEREC

August 2016 and ending on 18 August 2019 (both days inclusive).

T-nFNATARL(REER

The Group has set the annual cap for the amount paid by the Group WME) AEBE=F - AEBEEFH=
to XLX Chem Group for the general lease under the agreement at ZE-NVHRFEEAEEREZ

RMB2,239,200 for FY2019. R —REEE L EMETER
X eENFEFELERZERARE
2,239,200 7T °

The relevant leased premises were demolished by the XLX Chem DEMETEBRZZE—N\FFH

Group in mid 2018 so no transactions were conducted under the
Lease Renewal Agreement during the year ended 31 December

KRR R - BT
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above ~ BV FHTEEZEHH LMFHEBER

continuing connected transactions and confirmed that these continuing 5 WHERZEHERERS :

connected transactions have been entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; M REAEE—REAEEFAEPHE

17

(2)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the  (2) R —MREE GRS BE N B L&
Group than terms available from independent suppliers; and A B M2 RFUETT - &

(3)  according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that ~~ (3)  RIZFB B MR IRTETT - ZFK
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a REBRNEREGE  URERRELE

whole.

Ernst & Young LLP, the Company's auditor, were engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance with International
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to
Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young LLP have issued an unqualified letter

24
ikl

RRRZHBE LKA ERCERE
RERBSTEASRMACERERER
AR5 ZE R 3000 )8 [ S BA TS B Fr et el
BN B RS | W2 RR(E KA )E
740 5% [ BN E B LR APl 58 R =
R W ZBED K ] RARBE R AR ER
HRRME - WKGFMEBHADRIE L

containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing T #3 A 88 14A56 (B AN B L #H Y
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with HERERXSELHBEAASHERNGER

Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the SEHK.
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DEEMED DISPOSAL OF HENAN XLX

On 11 June 2019, the Company and Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group
Co., Ltd* CARmLEMEET #EBERMHER AR ("Henan XLX"),
a subsidiary then owned as to 87.86% by the Company, entered into
investment agreements with each of 10 Investors and on 22 July 2019, with
CCB Financial Asset Investment Company Limited* G2z & BEERE
BBR/AT]) ("CCB’) (collectively, the “Investment Agreements’). Pursuant
to the Investment Agreements, the 11 Investors (including CCB) agreed
to subscribe for an aggregate of 1,896,355,000 shares in Henan XLX for
RMB1,000 million. Completion of any one Investment Agreement is not
conditional on the completion of the other Investment Agreements. As
at 18 September 2019, Henan XLX has received an aggregate amount of
RMB796,500,000 from the relevant Investors with respect to the issue of
1,845,480,000 shares. Upon completion of the Investment Agreements in
September 2019, Henan XLX remains as a subsidiary of the Company and
is owned as to 78.37% by the Company. Details of the shareholding of the
relevant Investors in Henan XLX are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 18 September 2019.

Further details on the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement and circular dated 11 June 2019 and 31 July 2019 in relation
to the deemed disposal of Henan XLX.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the bank loans and other borrowings of the Group are set out in
Note 31 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 38 to the financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued
share capital was held by the public at the date of this report.
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biréctors’ statement
BEERE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS ON FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Companies Act requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year. These financial statements should give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at the end of the reporting
period of a particular year and on the financial performance of the Group
for the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors
should:

(a) select and apply consistently appropriate accounting policies, and
make prudent, fair and reasonable judgement and estimation;

(b) report the reasons for any serious deviation from accounting
practice; and

(© prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless
it is inappropriate to assume that the Group could continue to
operate.

The Directors are responsible for the proper keeping of accounting records
in order to secure the assets of the Company and the Group. The Directors
are also responsible for adopting reasonable measures to prevent and
check any fraudulences and irregularities.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to accept re-
appointment as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board:

Liu Xingxu Yan Yunhua
Director Director
30 March 2020
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in;iependent uditor’s Report
B BENRE

P>
EY:

To the members of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd
(Incorporated in Singapore with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), which comprise
the statements of financial position of the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2019, the statements of changes in equity of the Group and
the Company and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement of cash flows of
the Group for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the
Group, the statement of financial position and the statement of changes
in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the "Act”), Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS (1)s”) and International Financial
Reporting Standards in Singapore (“IFRSs”) so as to give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2019 and of the consolidated
financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing ("ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory
Authority ("ACRA”") Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public
Accountants and Accounting Entities ("ACRA Code") together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor”
B BERE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF COAL MINING OPERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the management has performed
an impairment assessment of the Group's coal mining cash generating
unit ("CGU") with property, plant and equipment, coal mining rights,
and goodwill amounting to RMB618,987,100, RMB86,180,000 and
RMB25,361,000, respectively.

Management has determined the recoverable amount of the CGUs based
on value in use calculation using discounted cash flows projected for the
CGU. As disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, the
key assumptions included budgeted sales, operating costs, commodity
price and the discount rate that considers the specific risks relating to the
CGU. Based on the impairment assessment, management has concluded
that the CGU is not impaired. We determined this to be a key audit matter
because the impairment assessment was complex and involved significant
management judgements.
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As part of our audit, we obtained an understanding of management's basis ~ ER&EZH—HH - RMIE THEREE
and process to determine the recoverable amount of the CGU. We checked ~ JE 317 & B 4 B i & °] Ui [B] & B8 #Y 4k 1%

that the CGU’s cash flow projections were based on approved management
budgets that reflected business plans and the estimates of coal outputs
and mining reserves. We engaged our internal valuation specialist to
assist us in assessing management’s valuation methodology and the key
assumptions used in the discounted cash flow computation. We evaluated
the key assumptions used by comparing the mineable reserves inputs,
which is a key input to determine budgeted sales, to the mines’ proven
and probable reserves estimates provided by the relevant authority;
comparing management'’s budgeted sales and operating costs to historical
data and information on expected efficiency improvements; comparing
commodity prices used to external observable data; and corroborating
against economic and industry forecast from external sources. We assessed
the discount rate used by the management by comparing to external
comparable data. We performed sensitivity analysis of the impairment
assessment to reasonable changes in key assumptions. We also assessed
the adequacy of the disclosures made on the impairment assessment
and related sensitivity analysis that are included in Notes 17 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ACCOUNTING FOR ACQUISITIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group completed two
acquisitions of controlling equity interests in Henan Shenleng Energy Co Ltd
and Urumgqi Black Ecology Technology Co Ltd (the "Acquirees”) for purchase
consideration of RMB117,521,000 and RMB35,000,000, respectively.

The Group has applied the acquisition method to account for these
business combinations and has performed purchase price allocation (“PPA”")
exercises with the assistance of external valuation specialists to allocate
the purchase consideration to the fair value of the identified assets and
liabilities of the Acquirees. We determined the accounting of the business
combinations and PPA exercises to be a key audit matter because these are
material transactions and significant management judgement is required in
the PPA exercises.
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As part of our audit, we read the relevant sales and purchase agreements to
obtain an understanding of the transactions and the key terms; assessed the
accounting treatments applied by management to these transactions based
on the requirements of IFRS 3 Business Combinations; and assessed the
valuation of the considerations transferred. We assessed the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the external valuation specialists engaged by
management. We reviewed management’s identification of the assets and
liabilities acquired by corroborating the results of the identification against
our discussion with management and our understanding of the Acquirees’
businesses. We involved our internal specialist to assist us in reviewing
the valuation methodologies and key assumptions used by management
and the external valuation specialists in the fair valuation of Acquirees’
identifiable assets and liabilities. We also assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures made on these business combinations that are included in Note
38 to the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND DIRECTORS EEEBREENRSAEMBERERAK
FORTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EWET
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of ~ BARIEFEBEREZLESR - F K

the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with the provisions of the Act, SFRS (I)s and IFRSs, and
for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are
properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit
the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain
accountability of assets.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional ERIKBBREREZERMIEEZN —
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 73+ I FI1EH B8 FIENIT £ B2 BE
also: RIFEENERRREE - TIT

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the HEUMEMENBERBERTA &
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the BMAR - BEEE  UKTER

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

REAEARFH AR 2HELR

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. SMEM o
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial BSHEESENINERSENE

information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to
be kept by the Group have been properly kept in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee Lai Hiang.

Ernst & Young LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore

30 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
ﬁ’%?ﬁﬁ?&&ﬁ@i@ WERER rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 —E—NF1+=-H=+—HIFFZF

X

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-)\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B ARETT ARETT
Revenue KA 6 8,928,255 9,194,676
Cost of sales HEMRA (6,987,218) (6,955,245)
Gross profit EF 1,941,037 2,239,431
Other income and gains HAYIA Rz 6 160,349 112,716
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HEAX (515,827) (508,048)
General and administrative expenses —MITHAY (661,442) (496,623)
Other expenses Efs (16,712) (223,416
Finance costs IR IO 8 (374,076) (325,329)
Impairment losses on financial assets S REERRESE (10,007) (22,247)
Share of profits of associates FE(RESE AR R 2,298 (657)
Profit before tax BRBE AR 7 525,620 777,147
Income tax expense FriSfif sz 11 (111,557) (121,833)
Profit for the year FREF 414,063 655314
Profit attributable to: FEfRER
Owners of the parent [SYNEIZEPN 316,495 624,932
Non-controlling interests ISR 97,568 30,382
Total comprehensive income for the year F X2 EUIALEEE 414,063 655314
]
Earnings per share attributable to BAREBREDR
Ordinary equity holders of the parent BEAEMERER
Basic and diluted (RMB cents per share) EARNE#E
(BRARED) 13 27.01 5334
]
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Statements of Fmanaal Position

nji%ﬂﬁiﬂ:% As at 31 December 2019 R —FE—NF+-A=+—H

Group Company
r&E LN

2019 2018 2019 2018

“E2-NF —TN\F —E-NF —T-N\F
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BitzE ARET R AR ARBTR ARETFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERSR 14 10,474,752 9,000,522 = -
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 1,079,808 - - -
Other intangible assets HihmpaE 16 46,883 - = -
Prepaid land lease payments and BN THEETER
other intangible assets EmENEE 16 - 630,606
Goodwill S 17 29,001 29,001 = -
Coal mining rights RTRR R 18 86,180 88172 = -
Equity investment at fair value through 12 A FEH AIBEH)
profit or loss i & 19 6,708 6,708 - -
Prepayments for purchases of items of  FEE FiE KRETEE &
plant and equipment BiI50R 20 844,713 489,348 - -
Prepayments to related companies  TBEIEA R FUE 24 33,788 25,635 - -
Pledged time deposits BHERATEETR 25 - 110,289 - -
Deferred tax assets BIERIREE 35 93,860 83322 = -
Other assets . ﬁﬁé? 14 100,877 114318 - -
Investments in associates REZENEIRE 38 16,993 95,157 =
Investments in subsidiaries RBARIRE 46 - - 1,620,755 1620755
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 12,813,563 10673078 1,620,755 1,620,755
Current assets RBEE
Equity investments at fair value AT EABEN
through profit or loss PRI E 19 20,903 37,178 20,903 37,178
Prepayments AR 20 402,564 552404 254 1546
Deposits and other receivables Re REMBYGIR 20 454,609 431,385 - -
Inventories g 21 983,604 1,066,353 - -
Other assets HBEE 14 13,441 13441 - -
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA 2 1,358 17,719 - -
Trade and bills receivables BHRUFIARENRE 23 393,419 331,131 - -
Due from related companies/a %WE@LA : /
subsidiary B AR 2% 745 30,384 7,600 134213
Income tax recoverable eI %R 22,865 7022 - -
Pledged time deposits BEATHEER 25 499,346 148550 - -
Cash and cash equivalents RekR2ESEY 25 884,448 346,151 16,086 7,549
Total current assets RBEELRE 3,677,302 2982018 44,843 80486
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2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NE —T-N\F “E-hE —T-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RVB000

Bitzx ARET T ARETT AR®T T AREFT
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables BoRIHE 26 366,636 282,825 - -
Bills payable ENEE 27 809,050 280,105 - -
Contract liabilities aHEE 28 582,181 689,951 - -
Accruals and other payables B EARAMENFIE 28 1,091,793 1,161,845 24,695 27631
Due to related companies/a subsidiary Tf"ﬁk T/
g 24 6,092 21,052 - 114400
Income tax payable ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ 29,720 20,835 - -
Deferred grants B 29 7,976 5443 - -
Lease liabilities HERE 15 102,887 - - -
Loans from a non-controlling interest  3ERRIERE R 30 25,000 50,500 - -
Interest-bearing bank and other FRRITREMER
borrowings 31 2,774,169 2774452 181,381 -
Bonds payable [ERES 33 500,000 - - -
Total current liabilities RBEELR 6,295,504 5,287,008 206,076 142,031
Net current (liabilities)/assets nE(8E) EETE (2,618,202) (2,304,790) (161,233) (38455)
| N
Total assets less current liabilities ~ AEERTHAR 10,195,361 8,368,288 1,459,522 1659210
| DI
Non-current liabilities k=l
Due to related companies FERTRAE A RIFIE 24 1,451 - - -
Loan from a non-controlling interest — 3ERARIER E 30 23,670 25,000 - -
Interest-bearing bank and other SRR R E SRR
borrowings 31 3,739,087 2568439 = 178443
Deferred grants EiCEEL 29 69,253 90,190 - -
Lease liabilities HEARE 15 67,513 - - -
Deferred tax liabilties ERTVERE 35 52,715 31,573 - -
Provision for rehabilitation IRIERE 32 24,276 23836 - -
Accruals and other payables EAERAREMENTIE 28 107,019 23618 - -
Bonds payable [EfHES 3 388,697 692,833 - -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEARE 4,473,681 3455489 - 178443
Net assets PEE 5,721,680 4,912,799 1,459,522 1480767
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Statements of Financial Position
Eji%;lﬁiﬂa% As at 31 December 2019 R = FE—hE+=—H=+—H

/\4\\\\
\//

Group Company
AEH AR

2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NE —T-N\F “E-hE —T-N\F
Notes RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB’000 RVB000

Birsr ARBT T ARETT ARBTT ARETFT
Equity B&
Equity attributable to ownersof R FIEE AELER
the parent
Share capital A 36 1,194,686 1,194,686 1,194,686 1,194,686
Special reserve B REE 37 2,433 2433 - -
Statutory reserve fund EERES 37 145,518 45,753 - -
Other reserve HibtEE 37 2,176,500 2060422 - -
Retained profits RE A 716,104 618520 264,836 286,081
4,235,241 3921814 1,459,522 1,480,767
Non-controlling interests FERER 1,486,439 990,985 - -
Total equity aEs 5,721,680 4912799 1,459,522 1480767
Liu Xingxu Yan Yunhua
2 5 18 B
Director Director
EF EE
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Statements of Changes in Equity
EZBHR ore financial year ended 31 December 2019 {2 —E—NF+=-H=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company .

FAAREAEL
Fair value Special
adjustment Statutory reserve Non-
Share  Convertible reserve reserve Other  safetyfund Retained controlling Total
capital bonds ~ ATERR fund reserve  HERE profits Total interests equity
BRRE  TERES i EEREE  ERRERE REE  REBEA &t FoREs L
(Note 36) (Note 34) (Note 37) (Note37) (Note37)
(Mase) (M) (MiEsr)  (Wa3n) (W37

Noes  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBO0O
W ARBTR ARRTR ARETR ARETR ARMTZ ARRTR ARETR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARWTR

Group 158
At1January 2018 m:g—)\ﬁ—ﬁ
- 872,519 322,436 (1,002) 327,193 - - 1,844,869 3,366,675 283,279 3,649,954
Transfer from other comprehensive ﬁ% RENE
income of available for sale 2
investment to retained profits E/% eyl - - 1,002 - - - (1,002) - - -
Impaiment losses on trade andother - B3 RE MM
receivables (et of tax) EHREEA
(Kh) - - - - - - (503) (5,053) - (5053)
At1 January 2018 (Restated) RZE-N\E-§
-B(&EH) 872,519 322,436 - 327,793 - - 1,838,814 3,361,622 283,219 3,644,901
Profitfor the year RERER - - - - - - 624,932 624932 30382 655,314
Disposal of partialinterests in HEHELT
subsiclaries without losing BPERME
control %2} il 380 - - - - 26403 - - 26403 573783 600,146
Transformation of joint stock system N
of a subsidiary based on net
assets 37 - - - (312,714 2,034,019 (1,721,305) - - -
Capital contribution from non-
controling shareholders of
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 2,000 2,000
Accquisiion of subsiciares YEHEAT 30 - - - - - - - - 133,581 133,581
Cancelation of shares Ri3sEsE 3 (329) - - - - - - (39) - (329)
Tansfertostatoryesenefund — BRZATREE ¥ - - - 30,674 - - (30674) - - -
Convertible bonds covertedinto W R{EHER
shaes B ] mMe (322430) - - - - - - - -
Dividends paidtonon-controlling ~ TRFZIEER
shareholders EEE - - - - - - - - (32000 (32,000)
Safety product cost REERNA 37 - - - - - 2433 (2,433) - - -
Final 2017 dividend paid TH-E-+F
RERE - - - - - - (849000  (84900) - (84,900)
Convertiole bonds interest AREHRFS A - 5914 - - - - (5914) - - -
Payment of convertile bonds interest A%
i - (5914) - - - - - (5914) - (5914)
At 31 December 2018 R-E-NEt=
A=1-A 1,194,686 - - 45,753 2,060422 2433 618,520 3,921,814 990,985 4912,799
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Statements of Changes in Equity

*Eﬁ_ﬁ 2E) R rortre financial year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —F—NF+=-HA=1—HIFFEF

Attributable to owners of the Company
ALRRAAES
Statutory Non-
Share reserve Other ~ Statutory Retained controlling
capital fund reserve  reserve fund profits Total interests  Total equity

BEIRA AEREE  AtREE  AERGE  RERR & FiEREs s

(Note 36) (Note 37) (Note37) (Note37)

(Wikse) (M3 (ME3n) (Hfz£37)
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
GERl ARETT ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMTr ARMTR ARMTz ARET:R

Group AEE
At1January 2019 RZE-hE-F-A 1,194,686 45,753 2,060,422 2433 618,520 3,921,814 990,985 4912,799
Profitforthe year ErEH - - - - 316495 316495 97568 414063
Other comprehensive incorne for theyear: AR 2EME -
Total comprehensive incomefortheyear  FAZERALE - - - - 316495 31649 97568 414,063
Disposal ofpartia interests insubsidiaries ~ HEHBARSHERM

ithout losing control REFEHIE 380 = - W - - WBT174 609326 796,500
Acquisition of subsiciaries WENBAT 3803 - - - - - - B2 256N
Transfer to statutory eserve fund BETETER 37 - 99,765 - - (99,765) - - -
Acquisiton of non-controling interests — WERSERRIER - - (71,0) - - (7109)  (428304)  (499,400)
Dividends paid to non-controlling EAEEERRRNRS

shareholders = = = = = = (35,808) (35,808)
Final 2018 dividend paid HZE-NERERS - - - - (19146)  (119,146) - (119146)
At31 December 2019 RZZB-n%E+ZA

=t-H 1,194,686 145,518 2,176,500 2433 716,104 4235241 1,486,439 5,721,680
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Share Retained Total
capital profits equity
BRA RE R HRER
(Note 36)
GEED)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®T R ARETTT
Company AT
At 1January 2019 R=Z-h&-A—-AH 1,194,686 286,081 1,480,767
Profit for the year REERR = 97,901 97,901
Final 2018 dividend paid TRZF-\ERERE - (119,146) (119,146)
At 31 December 2019 R-E-h&+=-HA=+-H 1,194,686 264,836 1,459,522
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Statements of Changes in Equity
REEBEHR e financial year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = FE— N F+=H=+—HILFZ

Fair value
adjustment
Share Convertible reserve Retained Total
capital bonds ~ AFEHE profits equity
BA AHRkRES 1 RE &R oS
(Note 36) (Note 34)
(F35E36) D)
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
fizx ARBETT ARETE ARETT ARETR AREFT
Company Vi UNE|
At 1January 2018 RZE-NE-F-H 872579 322436 (1,002) 134,086 1,328,099
Transfer from other comprehensive e AL HERBHEME
income of available for sale BREEEERE R
investment to retained profits il - - 1,002 (1,002) -
At 1 January 2018 (Restated) R=E-NF-A—-H
(REM) 872,579 322436 - 133,084 1328099
Profit for the year REEER - - - 250811 250811
Cancellation of shares sy 36 (329) - - - (329)
Convertible bonds converted into Convertible bonds 34
shares converted into shares 322436 (322436) - - -
Distribution arising from business Distribution arising from
combination under common business combination
control under common control - - - (7,000) (7,000)
Final 2017 dividend paid Final 2017 dividend paid - - - (84,900) (84,900)
Payment of convertible bonds interest - Payment of convertible 34
bonds interest - (5914) - - (5914)
Reclassification of convertible bonds  Reclassification of
interest convertible bonds
interest - 5914 - (5914) -
At 31 December 2018 R-Z-NE+=A
=+—-H 1,194,686 - - 286,081 1,480,767
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BEBEERER rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2019 82 = FE— N F+=H=+—HIFFEF
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-)\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B ARETT ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHESRE
Profit before tax [k A5 AT ) 525,620 777,147
Adjustments for: KR
Finance costs BAFERR AR 8 374,076 325,329
Amortisation of other intangible assets HihfEf & s 7 6,202 14,120
Amortisation of coal mining rights VR R B 6 7 1,992 2512
Depreciation of items of property, plant ME - R NEEER
and equipment e 7 673,564 636,406
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of property, HEWEE  FiE K5
plant and equipment BB MITE (=)
&8 67 (29,347) 3,509
Gain on disposal of items of right-of-use ~ HEFAEEEIER
assets Wiz 6 (5,946) -
Interest income FLBWA 6 (19,229) (9,188)
Dividend income g S48 A 6 (494) -
Gain on other investments Hig & W 6 (5,868) -
Gain on derivative financial instruments TSR T B 6 (5) -
Loss on fair value change of financial SRT AN T EZES
instruments through profit or loss B8 6 16,275 -
Exchange loss from bank loans IRITERE HEE 5,210 27,587
Gain on bargain purchases REEE W 6 (4,543) -
Impairment losses on trade and other B 5 N EMEBGIER
receivables BEEE 7 10,007 22,241
Impairment of property, plant and Y% - BB REERE
equipment 7 = 188,487
Impairment of inventories GFERE 7 1,443 -
Amortisation of deferred grants A B 5 6 (8,052) (6,933)
Amortisation of other assets H b & E 13,441 3,360
Interest accretion on bonds payable FE &S S8 0 1,864 -
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELEETE 7 48,547 -
Share of profits of associates FEAL B &R R m A B
18 (2,298) (657)
Fair value change of derivative financial ELS R T AN EE
instruments &) 6 (1,906) (17,719)
RELED —E—NEEH 97
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Consolldated Statement of Cash Flows
BEBEERER rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2019 B8 = E— N F+=H=+—HIFFEF
2019 2018
—E-hF — N\
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
MI5E AR®TT ARETIT
Operating cash flows before changesin ~ EEE RS EFIEER
working capital EHE 1,600,553 1,966,201
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERA(E) 87,092 (320,974)
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 R WERTE & e R
R, (1) (18,160) (131,043)
Decrease in other receivables H b fE U TR IE R A 294,337 174,252
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and FREIEMFERD
prepayments (1Zmn) 135,897 (52,495)
Movement in balances with related RN RS E
companies 21,747 (8,102)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables & 5 FE {5018 I fE{~f 22
& OgEMm SR 516,592 (116,282)
(Increase)/Decrease in pledged deposits BIERE GEMm) 7
A (196,137) 27,626
Decrease in accruals and other payables et E A R EM
TR D (53,920) (150,131)
Cash flows generated from operations KETHEENRSR
=2 2,388,001 1,389,052
Government grants received B MR AT 4 29 7,030 1,730
Interest received [SALEESH 18,172 9,188
Tax paid BRI (111,734) (208,288)
Net cash flows generated from operating & EZBHELENESR
activities 25 2,301,469 1,191,682
Cash flows from investing activities RETHRERE
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE - E L&
plant and equipment HH SRR 45,046 186,059
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEME  WEMESE
equipment I8 H (2,867,077) (1,372,255)
Cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries BEHBARDMIRE (6,627) (34,471)
Proceed:s from disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR RBRIE (967) -
Purchases of items of other intangible assets B EHfEEEEE (5,573) (228,700)
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use assets  HHE&fE FEEEFTER
b= (18,706) -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests WS IR (499,400) -
Proceeds from disposal of other investments  tHE&H R E FrEFIE 81,500 -
Purchase of investment in associates BERKENTRE (20,810) (94,500)
Dividend income received 2R E W E 494 -
Gain on other investments and derivative EWEHMRERITES
financial instruments received BT AEkE 5,873 -
Purchase of derivative financial instruments B EfTESRITE (500) -
Net cash flows used in investing activities REZHFFARERE
poctoc] (3,286,747) (1,543,867)



2019 2018

—ZE-hF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B ARETT ARETT
Cash flows from financing activities METHESRE
Dividend paid on ordinary shares B E B E (119,146) (85,327)
Dividend paid on non-controlling shares B 3kEE Hxﬂx@ﬂﬁ g (67,808) -
Injection of non-controlling interests FEENR R T E 796,500 602,146
Payments of lease liabilities TREEEE 15 (113,933) -
Proceeds from issue of a long-term bond BIRBESERIE 31 194,000 191,507
Repayment of a long-term bond EERRIES 31 = (600,000)
Proceeds from loans and borrowings BERMEREIE 31 5,195,290 3,460,950
Increase/(decrease) in pledged time deposits = ¥ 5E BifF 238 H0,~
OB) 6,129 (100,000)
Cancellation of shares f& 05k EH 36 - (329)
Interest paid EAFE (339,850) (325,709)
Repayments of loans and borrowings BRERRER 31 (4,027,607) (2,786,172)
Net cash flows from financing activities mﬂﬁ;ﬁ BfEHERE
1,523,575 357,066
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IR&RIRSZEEYEMN
FHE 538,297 4,881
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof ~ FHIR & MIREEEY
year 25 346,151 341,270
Cash and cash equivalents attheend of EFFREERBRESHEY
year 884,448 346,151
]
Analysis of balance of cash and cash ReRBREEEWER
equivalents AT
Cash at banks and on hand and cash RERE BRI & At
and cash equivalents as stated in the ZEITERRRER
consolidated statement of financial RERBLEEY
position 25 884,448 346,151
T

During the financial year, there were acquisitions of property, plant and RAMBFEE - WEMSFE - BERZEN
equipment with a total cost of RMB2,348,433,000 (2018: RMB1,438,278,000) 1Ak A A AREE 23484330007 (ZZE— N\
of which RMB Nil (2018: RMB300,000,000) were acquired by means F 0 ARE14382780007T) - AR AR
of finance leases and RMB440,000 (2018: RMB23,836,000) pertains T (ZZ—N\F : AR 300,000,0007T)
to the provision for rehabilitation. In addition, RMB49,204,000 (2018: LRt EHERAERS - AR 4400007
RMB640,645,000) was paid in accruals and other payables (Note 28). Bills (ZZ2—N\F: AR¥238360007T) B
payable for plant and equipment increased by RMB40,800,000 (2018: Nil) IRIEZEHIESS - thoh + AR 49,204,000 7T
was unpaid. Prepayments for purchases of items of plant and equipment (ZE—)\F : AR®640,64500070) B
increased by RMB239,620,000. The VAT input was paid to gain the - WEFT AR E R RE A 5 IE (M
property, plant and equipment with a total cost of RMB271,070,000. The i28) c BEME L& ﬁﬁﬁréﬁmﬁi pill
net cash outflow for the purchase of property, plant and equipment was AR# 40,800,000 T(ZF—/\F : ) - &
RMB2,867,077,000 (2018: RMB1,372,255,000). ARXAN o BLESWIR - B RREE Xt
HIAT - B/ AR 271,0700007T ©
BEME  BELALGEORESRLFES
AR#2867077000L(ZFE—N\F : AR
#1,372,255000 7T.) °
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China XLX Fertiliser Ltd.(the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Singapore on 17 July 2006 under the Singapore Companies
Act and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The registered office of the Company is located at 80 Robinson Road, #02-00,
Singapore 068898. The principal place of business of the Group is located
at Xinxiang Economic Development Zone, Henan Province, the People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC"). The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. Particulars of the Group’s subsidiaries and associates
are disclosed in Note 46 and 38(b) respectively.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of
financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
(International) ("SFRS (1)) and International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs").

For the purpose of SFRS ())s, financial statements that have been prepared in
accordance and complied with IFRS are deemed to have also complied with
SFRS (I)s. SFRS (I) comprise standards and interpretations that are equivalent
to IFRS. All references to SFRS (I) and IFRS are referred to collectively as “IFRS”
in these financial statements, unless specified otherwise.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
basis, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below. The financial
statements are presented in Renminbi ("RMB”) and all values in the tables
are rounded to the nearest thousand (‘RMB'000") except when otherwise
indicated.

The Group and the Company had net current liabilities of approximately
RMB2,618 million (2018: RMB2,305 million) and RMB161 million (2018: Nil
million), respectively as at 31 December 2019. After taking into account the
available unutilised banking facilities, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and financial obligations as and when they fall due, and accordingly, are
satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to restate the values of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e, existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(@) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described in the accounting policy for subsidiaries
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and
(i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

Consolidation of the subsidiaries in the PRC is based on the subsidiaries’
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs. Profits reflected in
the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs may differ from
those reflected in the PRC statutory financial statements of the subsidiaries,
prepared for PRC financial reporting purposes. In accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations, profits available for distribution by the PRC
subsidiaries are based on the amounts stated in the PRC statutory financial
statements.

2.2 CHANGESIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous
financial year except in the current financial year, the Group has adopted
all the new and revised standards which are effective for annual financial
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Except for the adoption of
IFRS 16, the adoption of these standards did not have any material effect on
the financial performance or position of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGESIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

IFRS 16 LEASES

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and
SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
recognise most leases on the statement of financial position.

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from IAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases
using similar principles as in IAS 17. Therefore, IFRS 16 did not have an
impact for leases where the Group is the lessor.

The Group adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective method of
adoption with the date of initial application of 1 January 2019. Under this
method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of initially applying the standard recognised at the date of initial application.
The Group elected to use the transition practical expedient to not reassess
whether a contract is, or contains a lease at 1 January 2019. Instead, the
Group applied the standard only to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 at the date of initial application.
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2.2 CHANGESIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

IFRS 16 LEASES (CONTINUED)

The effect of adoption IFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019 (increase/(decrease)) is,

22 EFERENSBRKE (B

BIFREA MR E RIS 1655 [1HE ()

RZZT—NF—A— BRBEFRMBRSE
HAF 16 RETE

as follows: 2 (g m, CRA)) AT -
RMB’000
Assets BE
Right-of-use assets EREEE 915,910
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE (293,090)
Prepaid land lease payments TER T AR & I8 (609,930)
Increase in total assets B EE N 12,890
|
Liabilities afE
Lease liabilities HEAE 249,406
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHEERTT R EMERK (236,516)
Increase in total liabilities HEEEM 12,890
|

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land and plant and
machinery. Before the adoption of IFRS 16, the Company classified each
of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a finance lease or an
operating lease.

Upon adoption of IFRS 16, the Group applied a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The standard provides specific transition requirements
and practical expedients, which have been applied by the Group.

» Leases previously classified as finance leases

The Group did not change the initial carrying amounts of recognised assets
and liabilities at the date of initial application for leases previously classified
as finance leases (i.e., the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities equal the
lease assets and liabilities recognised under IAS 17). The requirements of
IFRS 16 were applied to these leases from 1 January 2019
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 EIBERNESFHRINE (E)
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

IFRS 16 LEASES (CONTINUED) BB iR s 2RI 1655 [FHE [(8)

» Leases previously accounted for as operating leases » RRIARIIEREHENHE

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for those ~ FREHMEREEBEEEMEIN - NEE
leases previously classified as operating leases, except for short-term leases MAEF DB ARACEHENZSHERRSE
and leases of low-value assets. The right-of-use assets for most leases were ~ FREBERMEEBE - KEHHEERFEA
recognised based on the carrying amount as if the standard had always ~ #EEERZREE TUAER  BOE—&H
been applied, apart from the use of incremental borrowing rate at the date FEFRZZER - MR B X FEA B BifE ARy 1E
of initial application. In some leases, the right-of-use assets were recognised EEFRMEARIN tETFHEMS - &
based on the amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted for any related ~ FIREERBEHEEXNHEABNEE - I
prepaid and accrued lease payments previously recognised. Lease liabilities &7t Al B MR R E AT ST E
were recognised based on the present value of the remaining lease  FIBFEER T AR - HE B ERFHME
payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of ~ ERIBHIR(E - LA B XER B HA)E

initial application. SERFIRAIVE TUARER o
The Group also applied the available practical expedients wherein it: AEBENERAEFERANERERE 25
el

Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably - HABSEMAUBHNEERSE
similar characteristics FAE —RAIRE -
Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately KREE SN EEERERBHAE
before the date of initial application ERRBEEMHENTE -
Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term  « HHEEHN B XERABHBETT=
that ends within 12 months of the date of initial application ERAANERMEEREAEEHEER
Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right- RERER R ECRAEEER
of-use asset at the date of initial application MR VI E R o
Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract ~ + MENBEERIKRIEHENERE
contained options to extend or terminate the lease ¥ BIRERETHER -

Based on the above, as at 1 January 2019: Bix Lt —ET-NF—HA—H8:
Right-of-use assets of RMB915,910,000 were recognised and . ERABERAEEE ARE
presented separately in the statement of financial position. 915,910,000 7T N B %8 3 72 B 75 7R 50

e EZ
Additional lease liabilities of RMB249,406,000 were recognised and - ERRAEIINHEEBARK
presented separately in the statement of financial position. 249,406,000 7T 17 28 38 1A B A5 AR O %
AZ7 o
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 EfERNSFREE(E)
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
IFRS 16 LEASES (CONTINUED) BIFR BTSSR 5 RIZE 16 5% [ 1HE (4)
The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 can be reconciled to the operating —E-NF-HA-HNHERGFHE_-ZT
lease commitments as of 31 December 2018, as follows: —N\F+ZA=1+—"HHOKEREREDN
HERWOT
RMB’000
Assets BE AR®T T
Operating lease commitments —E-N\FT A= T AR RERE
as at 31 December 2018 90,705
Less: ek
Commitments relating to short-term leases B35 HARE SRR AR 76,885
Commitments relating to leases of low-value MR EEEEHERERNRE
assets 1,618
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate —E-NEFE— A BHINETEIEEEER R
asat 1 January 2019 5.41%
Discounted operating lease commitments —E-NF—A—BRRRGEHERE
asat 1 January 2019 12,890
Add: hn -
Lease payments relating to renewal periods not ~ RZZ—\FF+ZA=+—HERNLHEEEE
included in operating lease commitments
as at 31 December 2018 236,516
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 —E-NF-A—HNHEEAE 249,406
|
2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EEfEREARERVEL

The Group has not adopted the following standards and interpretation REE AN TNERRARRINE R
applicable to the Group that have been issued but not yet effective: B EARAENAER| L2k

Effective for annual
periods beginning on

or after

RT3 B 2%

Description BRI E H B AR

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts BRI S RIS 1755 - (REEE 4D 1 January 2020

—ZEFF—-H—H

Amendments to IFRS 3 : Definition of a Business ~ BIBRBATS 3RS ZERSE 3SR A « EBEMNTHE 1 January 2020

T F—-H—H

Amendments to IFRS 1 and IFRS 8 : Definition of ~ BIBRBA T3R5 ZE A1 55 1 5% K BUFRR B A 3R &5 2E R 1 January 2020

Material FIEEIAR : EAMER —E-EF—H—H

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IFRS 28: Sale or BB B T A5 AE R 25 10 5% N BB B 75 R A5 2 I 5 28 5% To be determined

Contribution of Assets between an Investor BRI - R EFEABENRHELE L EZREE FE
and its Associate or Joint Venture SOEAEE
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2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

The directors expect that the adoption of the other standards and
interpretation above will have no material impact on the financial
statements in the period of initial application.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value
which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation
of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity
interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December 2019. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESBEXRHEE(E)

(CONTINUED)
TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interest represents the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to owners of the parent, and are presented
separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position, separately from equity attributable to owners of the
parent.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. In such
circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
parent.

ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but does not
have control or joint control of those policies.

The Group account for its investments in associates using the equity
method from the date on which it becomes an associate.

On acquisition of the investment, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group'’s share of the net fair value of the investee’s identifiable
assets and liabilities represents goodwill and is included in the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair
value of the investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment is included as income in the determination of the entity’s share
of the associate’s profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

Under the equity method, the investment in associates are carried in the
balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of net assets of the associates. The profit or loss reflects the share of results
of the operations of the associates. Distributions received from associates
reduce the carrying amount of the investment. Where there has been a
change recognised in other comprehensive income by the associates,
the Group recognises its share of such changes in other comprehensive
income. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the
associates.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Where the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether
it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss on the Group’s
investment in associate. The Group determines at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount in profit or loss.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared as the same
reporting date as the Company. Where necessary, adjustments are mad to
bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY

The Group's principal operations are conducted in the PRC. The directors
have determined the currency other primary economic environment in
which each entity in the Group operates, i.e,, functional currency, to be
RMB. Sales prices and major costs of providing goods and services including
major operating expenses are primarily influenced by fluctuations in RMB.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial
recognition in the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating
those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or
on translating monetary items at the end of the reporting period are
recognised in profit or loss.

For consolidation purpose, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated into RMB at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period and their profit or loss are translated at the exchange
rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. The exchange differences
arising on the translation are recognised in other comprehensive income.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or
loss.

RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family is and
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or a parent of the Group;

112 China XLX 2019 Annual Report

3. TESTHBEREE(E)

INER S

SNERZ ZTIARRBI REMBARE W
Mee B2 WERPSERE - A
D ERBIZENRZ 5 BN EREREE
HIER AR - WINEFTENEREERA
BIRARRE RN EREXRE - RF
SERRARINEET BRI FERIAR UIFR
Z B HMERRE o A FEUINESE
MIFERIRENEE A FEE ANEX®R

St

E_o

ARBEHMRBFEELHERBEERR
B MmELRE N ZR AR ERAER -

RETHEAEAR  BINRBEHNEERRE
TEREMRNERRERARE - M
HESERXZAHNRTERRE - B8
EAEME S ERIINE 2w e R AT
R HEBINEBR - BEZBTEBINE
TS E E Al 2 R 2 B0 I 18 o R P

i
R e

BETR

fin T YRR ER - BAKE AR 2
—7

@ ROATHRAINERLE A
ZAL

(i) SRR EE

iy HAKREEBEAZEN:
14

iy AANEESAEEZEAF
MEEBEEAEMKE :



POl VISV I0.0I09I0 010910910 910910910.910.9010. 9109109109,
NOZENGZENGZSN0ZN0Z2N 07N 7N 0 7SN 7N 072N 072N 07N 7SN 7SN 7NN N0 Z2N073
SN N 7O ZON ZON AONZON NN AN AN 7ON 7 ON 7 ON 7 ON O ON /DN /1
I XD XD XD XD XD LX) LX) UX D XD LX) LX) LX) LX) XD (XD XD XD XD L
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEETBERBE (&)
(CONTINUED)
RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED) BAER (&
or 3
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: ©) WTFINEMGEGER B —KE
e
() the entity and the Group are members of the same group; 0] ZERBEAEER /AR —&
Elz0)5 4= Wi
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (il ZEBR> EERHNHKE
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other ANAFEEDRE (KRS —H
entity); oL 0R SN E=R/NCTIE
Sk E A [R] R B /8 A B A0 B
NEHEEDRE)
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third (i) ZEREASEE AR —F
party; —FMEELE
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other vy —REBRE=-FEBNSG
entity is an associate of the third entity; ErEBES—XREBR%ZE
= EREE AT
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit v ZEBRAASEEZIAKHEH
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the B ERENEBNEME L
Group; BRARERIET S
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person V) HEBS@FTERALTES
identified in (a); X RIPES
(vi)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the i) PTEMATHZERAEES
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of AEB IR ZEB(
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and ZEENERAR)NTEE
BABHKE &
(viiiy  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, (i) ZEERNETAEBEKER

provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value
of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.
Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the statement of profit or loss to the
extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the asset
revaluation reserve to retained profits is made for the difference between
the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of an asset
and the depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
(CONTINUED)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives and residual values used for
this purpose are as follows:

3. ZEETBERSEHE)
M3 - BB RRBUARITE (&)

FENERETE  UREHAEF A EAF
HIMEE S M= - BERRIBEBNKAE
HFEREE - MIFLA®R 2 AT al ERF

R FIREENAT -
Years
FH

Buildings BF 20-254F
Other fixtures and structures HAbETE M E Y R s 20-45 4
Plant and machinery R = R e 2% 10-154F
Office equipment and furniture MAERMERIFE 5-154F
Motor vehicles RE 5-154F

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in statement of profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and plant and machinery
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

COAL MINING RIGHTS

Coal mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. A coal mining right is amortised over its
useful life using a unit-of-production method once production commences.
The coal mining right is written off to profit or loss if the coal mining
property is abandoned.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets acquired separately are measure on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite life are reviewed at
least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the expense category that is
consistent with the function of intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but
are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date
the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. IFESBERME (&)
(CONTINUED)
PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS AN T BERIE
The accounting policies are applied on and after the initial application date AT & BUR R BIFR ﬁﬁfxiﬁ RIS 165%
of IFRS 16, 1 January 2019: BRAEAEH(CE-NF-A—RB) &z

The Group recognises prepaid land lease payments as right-of-use assets
at the commencement date of the lease (i.e, the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Refer to the accounting policies on Leases for more
details.

The accounting policies are applied before the initial application date of
IFRS 16, 1 January 2019:

Prepaid land lease payments are initially measured at cost. Following
initial recognition, prepaid land lease payments are measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. The
prepaid land lease payments are amortised on the straight-line basis.

The amortisation period and method are reviewed at each financial year
end. The amortisation expense is recognised in profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT

Investments in debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's
business model for managing the asset and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The three measurement categories for
classification of debt instruments are:
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

Investments in debt instruments (continued)

(i) Amortised cost

Financial assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the assets are derecognised or
impaired, and through amortisation process.

(if) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Financial assets
measured at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Any gains
or losses from changes in fair value of the financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income, except for impairment losses, foreign
exchange gains and losses and interest calculated using the effective
interest method are recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment when the financial
asset is de-recognised.

(ii) Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt
instruments that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which it arises.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
DERIVATIVES

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in fair value of derivatives are
recognised in profit or loss.

DERECOGNITION

A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive
cash flows from the asset has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset
in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income for debt instruments is
recognised in profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss and financial
guarantee contracts. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is recognised for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of timing of the default
(a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Group applies the low
credit risk simplification. At every reporting date, the Group evaluates
whether the debt instrument is considered to have low credit risk using all
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the internal
credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Group considers that
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when the contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments
are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bill payables, certain
accruals and other payables, loans from a non-controlling interest, amounts
due to related companies, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
bonds payable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

(a) Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.

(b) Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics of a
liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial position, net
of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a long term liability on
the amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption.
The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that
is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction
costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation
of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments
are first recognised.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in profit or loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Convertible bonds issued by the Group are recognised and included in
shareholders’ equity based on the terms of the contract. Transaction costs
are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying
amount of the convertible bonds is not remeasured in subsequent years.
Convertible bond interests of 2% (2018: 2%) per annum is payable in cash
annually in arrears on the anniversary of the issue date (i.e. 21 December
2011) in each year, commencing on the first anniversary of the issue date,
which are accrued and paid through the transfer from retained profits of
the Group.

BONDS PAYABLE

Bonds payable are classified under loans and borrowings and recognised
initially at fair value. After initial recognition, bonds payable are
subsequently measured at cost because the effect of discounting would be
immaterial as their terms are relatively short.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. IFESBERME (&)
(CONTINUED)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS (CONTINUED) BUATERL (1)
Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred TMmELEEIEEEAR - B AT EFT AR

income account and is released to the statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS — PENSION BENEFITS

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
a percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group makes contributions to the Central Provident Fund Scheme in
Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to the
defined contribution pension scheme are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related service is performed.

LEASES

The accounting policies are applied on and after the initial application date
of IFRS 16, 1 January 2019:

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains,
a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3. TESTHBEREE(E)

(CONTINUED)
LEASES (CONTINUED) BN (E)
GROUP AS A LESSEE AE B AEAEA

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(i) Rights-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of
the lease (i.e, the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:
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Plant and machinery 5to 15 years TR Bs N e zs 5E 154

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the
accounting policies in section (s) Impairment of non-financial assets.

(ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease
liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they
are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. IFESBERME (&)
(CONTINUED)
LEASES (CONTINUED) BN (E)
GROUP AS A LESSEE (CONTINUED) AEEAEBA(B)
(i) Lease liabilities (continued) (i) HEaE(E)
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its N fﬁﬁﬁnﬂziﬁﬁﬁt WHERE A

incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term
leases of machinery and equipment (i.e, those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The accounting policies are applied before the initial application date of
IFRS 16, 1 January 2019:

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. The aggregate benefit of incentives
provided by the lessor is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring a promised good or service to the customer, which is
when the customer obtains control of the good or service. A performance
obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time. The amount of
revenue recognised is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance
obligation.

(A) SALE OF GOODS

The Group is in the business of manufacture and trading of urea, compound
fertilizer, dimethyl ether I, melamine, furfuryl alcohol and related products.
Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered to the customer and
all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

The amount of revenue recognised is based on the estimated transaction
price, which comprises the contractual price, net of the estimated volume
rebates. Based on the Group's experience with similar types of contracts,
variable consideration is typically constrained and is included in the
transaction only to the extent that it is a highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting date, the Group updates its assessment
of the estimated transaction price, including its assessment of whether
an estimate of variable consideration is constrained. The corresponding
amounts are adjusted against revenue in the period in which the
transaction price changes.

(B) INTEREST INCOME

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

(@] RENTAL INCOME

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease term.

128 China XLX 2019 Annual Report

3. TESTHBEREE(E)

WA HERR (48

WARAEBFEBH D ARE mRER
B P (AR PERS S sk iR 7% 1 12
) REITRAORFH®R - BOERDK
A LATE R (ERS R B Sk B E I MR RS T 15
ETT - WRHBASERDEEERY
BIFHDHE ©

HEEm

EHY

(A

AEBEREREZ - BEAE  —FB - =&
AR BEEREBERNEENE S X
%o BEMRMNEEP LM EMA EIR
Ry - BIIERULA ©

<

R BATBERN BN BER &
BREAHER  AMRAETOEERN -
ERNASEERUBAS 0T mNESR -
AERERERINR  WAEAEEET
EREMRENTEEEEREIIFREE
R R A R SRR A 7] e IR E K
BEERT T EHAKRS °

REREBRR - AEBEEHEB G

EAXINR - REXZERZIHHED
WAEITIEE SRR FEE

®  FMBUWA

MBWATVEBRABEFTRNEMITA
EHF B (B B - RE ) e fhEr
WERE R 2R IR & 25 B & & AR FE A A
R DB RA IR R EEHER o

o HERKA
A& U A TEFE 40 BRI H2 55 R L 1 R o




3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INCOME TAXES

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

SEGMENT REPORTING

For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating
segments based on their products and the segment results are reported
directly to the management of the Company who regularly reviews the
segment results in order to allocate resources to the segments and to
assess the segment performance. Additional disclosures on each of these
segments are shown in note 5, including the factors used to identify the
reportable segments and the measurement basis of segment information.

CONTINGENCIES

A contingent liability is:

(a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group;

or

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not

recognised because:

(i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;
or

(i) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with

sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group, except for contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination that are present obligations and which
the fair values can be reliably determined.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

DIVIDENDS

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

INCOME TAXES

The Group has exposure to income taxes in Singapore and the PRC.
Significant judgement is involved in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are certain transactions and computations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for expected tax issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s income tax recoverable, income tax payable,
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2019 were
RMB22,865,000, RMB29,720,000, RMB93,860,000 and RMB52,715,000
respectively (2018: RMB7,022,000, RMB20,835,000, RMB83,322,000 and
RMB31,573,000 respectively).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

IMPAIRMENT OF COAL MINING RIGHTS AND GOODWILL

The carrying values of coal mining rights and goodwill included in coal
mining CGU are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable in
accordance with the accounting policy for the impairment of non-financial
assets in the section of summary of significant accounting policies. The
recoverable amounts of the coal mining rights and goodwill, or, where
appropriate, the cash-generating units to which they belong, are calculated
as the value in use. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
estimate the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit
and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. At 31 December 2019, no impairment loss has
been recognised for the coal mining rights and goodwill. The carrying
amount of the coal mining rights and goodwill at 31 December 2019
were RMB86,180,000 (2018: RMB88,172,000) and RMB29,001,000 (2018:
RMB29,001,000) respectively. Further details are given in Note 17 and Note
18.

4. EARSFHERMEE (K)

(ERENESES

AT Al gesIMEEL B BEZKREER
TMEMBFEXATLAERAE - BAR
RN EEZRR - NS REHRFE
ZABET N EE MR Bl 2R ©

B e BR A N P R E

BEHBTMBEEHRBERBEER  BRE
HERESHTBREEESTRRME—
M EEREBETAIKEE  AQF]E
ST TR IR S B A B M SR R R R AE
MEENEREEERE - ERAEE N EE
SHAMBMNBRSEESEM(WWER) A
W el ez FEREENE - FREEMNFT
HREAEEFTHRERSEEAELMNG
SAARKEESRE  URERASENITER
UstEZEREREMNREER R_F
—NF+-_A=+—8 HKERXELS
BYEBRAREEE R NF+=
A=+ —HEBARELREENERAER
AR 86,180,000 (ZE—NF : ARK
88,172,0007C ) B A R ¥ 29,001,000 T ( =&
—N\F: AR¥29001,0007T) © #E—F5F
IEEM R 17 RMiEE18 -

HECEY —T-NFFR 133



NS IIIINININY,
DEEDEDEDDDDD DR

pa

=

Notes to Financial Statements
Ejg%ﬁ% BﬁE 37 December 2019 R —FE—NF+=—H=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY(CONTINUED)
COAL MINE RESERVE

The estimation of the Group’s coal mine reserve is inherently imprecise and
represent only approximate amounts because of the subjective judgements
involved in developing such information. There are authoritative guidelines
regarding the engineering criteria that have to be met before an estimated
coal mine reserve can be designated as “proved” and “probable”. Proved
and probable coal mine reserve estimates are updated on regular intervals
taking into recent production and technical information about each mine.
In addition, as prices and cost levels change from year to year, the estimate
of the proved and probable coal mine reserve also changes. This change is
considered a change in estimate for accounting purposes and is reflected
on a prospective basis in related amortisation rates.

The capitalised cost of the coal mining right is amortised over the estimated
useful life of the related coal mine reserve. The useful life is reviewed
annually in accordance with the production of the plants of the Group and
the proven and probable reserves of the coal mines. The carrying amount
of the coal mining rights at 31 December 2019 was RMB86,180,000 (2018:
RMB88,172,000).

PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATION

Purchase accounting requires extensive use of accounting estimates to
allocate the purchase price to the fair values of the assets and liabilities
acquired, including intangible assets. The Group has exercised judgement
to determine the fair value adjustments required during the purchase price
allocation review. Significant estimates have been made to determine the
fair value adjustments amount. Details of purchase price allocation are
disclosed in Note 38(a).
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. & ERE #
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units ~ FLERME * AREZREEMEI D AER
based on its products, and has five reportable operating segment (2018:  Bf7 - WA AE(ZF—/)\F : AfE) 7]
five) as follows: ERRAEE D

(i) Manufacturing and sale of urea

(ii) Manufacturing and sale of compound fertiliser

(ii) Manufacturing and sale of dimethyl ether(DME) and methanol
(iv) Manufacturing and sale of melamine

(v) Manufacturing and sale of furfuryl alcohol

In the opinion of the directors, there were only limited operations in the
subsidiaries that are engaged in coal mining and the sale of coal and
the assets and liabilities were not material for the purpose of segment
reporting. Accordingly, a separate operating segment for the coal mining
business carried out by these subsidiaries has not been presented.

Except as indicated above, no operating segments have been aggregated
to form the above reportable operating segments.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of gross profit. Group
financing (including finance costs), income taxes and other unallocated
items, as explained below, are managed on a group basis and are not
allocated to operating segments.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling
prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market
prices.

ALLOCATION BASIS

Segment results include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items
comprise other income and gains, other expenses, selling and distribution
expenses, general and administrative expenses, finance costs and income
tax expense.

Group assets and liabilities cannot be directly attributable to individual
segments as it is impracticable to allocate them to the segments. Assets of
the Group are utilised interchangeably between different segments and
there is no reasonable basis to allocate liabilities of the Group between
different segments. Accordingly, it is not meaningful to disclose assets,
liabilities and capital expenditure by operating segments.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5.

SEGMENT PROFIT INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the segment result is PAN/NE]
the gross profit.

RETHER (F

EERARDAEEREN -

Compound DMEand Furfuryl
Urea fertiliser Methanol Melamine alcohol Others Elimination Total

Year ended 31 December 2019 j7€3 FAE  DMEERE Bk uE B i st
BECE-NE RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
tZR=t-BLEE AEBTR  ARETR ARMTn  ARETR ARMTn  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR
REVENUE BA
Sales to external customers HELNIER 3312620 2,851,631 991,624 657,497 407,468 707415 - 8,928,255
Intersegrment sales DHEHE 517,270 364111 25778 2928 - 186843 (1,356930) -
Total revenue B 3,829,890 3,215,742 1,277,402 660,425 407,468 894,258 (1,356,930) 8,928,255
Segment result DR 930,890 449,272 47,049 233,818 62,351 217,657 - 1,941,037
Reconciliation: %
Interest income HBIA 19,29
Unallocated otherincomeand gains  RATEAMA R 143418
Unallocated expenses AEFR (1,203988)
Finance costs BRI (374,076)
Profit before tax WBiRLRR 525,620
Income tax expense FiEHER (111557)
Profitfor the year iyl 414,063
Other segment information: BAuEs
Gain on disposal of tems of property, (i EYIE » BRERARE

plant and equipment (note 6] EEL e (i) (29,347)
Gain on disposal of frems oftemof ~ (HEFEEER M

fight-of-use assets (note 6} eGED) (5.946)
Depreciation of tems of property, 1% ~ MR R{EAR

plant and equipment (note 7) B (M) 673,564
Amortisationof other intangble R tERAES

assets (ote 7) (BzE7) 6,202
Depreciationof fight of useassets ~ EFREAENE

(note7) (Bt3t7) 48,547
Amortsation of coal mining rights ~ (EB R HESH 1,992
Capital expenditure® ERER" 2,919,268

|

*

intangible assets including assets acquired from the acquisition of subsidiaries.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. RK&o5H&ER (&)

SEGMENT PROFIT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 2 ERREME R (&)
Compound DME and Furfuryl

Urea fertiliser Methanol Melamine alcohol Others Hlimination Total
Yearended 31 December 2018 K& BAE  DVEETE =BEh i =) Hi 5t
HE Z-)\F RMB000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB00O RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000
TZAZT-HILER ANRBTT  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
REVENUE 9N
Sales o external customers HERNDEF 3548835 28073% 1498798 560558 52313 256776 - 9194676
Intersegment sales PHEEE 562,179 383783 1219 - - 7403 (954604 -
Total revenue LN 4111014 3191179 1500017 560558 52313 264199 (954604) 9194676
Seqment result P 1,091,246 417691 30975 193079 4183 70257 - 239431
Reconcilation: HE -
Interestincome HBIA 9188
Unallocated otherincome and gains AR T EMAA R 104185
Unallocated expenses AOEFT (1250328)
Finance costs BT (325329)
Proft before tax BanaR 77147
Income tax expense FiERE (1218%3)
Profitfor the year TEERH 655,314

Other segment information: Efipieas .

Gainon disposal of tems of property,  HEWE « BER
plant and equipment (note 6] BCEELle

(Hio) 3509
Depreciation of frems of property, ~ #1% * BB RaXEER
plant and equipment (note 7) e 636:406
Amortisationof other intangble ~ EAtER A EE
assets note ) (Rtit7) 14120
Amortisation of coal mining ights ~ [ETEFRIER
(note7) UE) 2512
Capital expenciture* BER% 1666977
|
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to investment in an associate, property, * BERARZBEREEATIRE - W% |
plant and equipment and intangible assets including assets acquired from the ERRERELEE  BIERGUENE
acquisition of subsidiaries. NAMBKEELE -

HECEY —T—AFFR 137




;ﬁ \/ er\Y/\/\/ NNy \/ Yﬂﬁ\yj/\y/ﬂi\/ NNy \Y/jﬁYﬂﬁ\Y/\/\/\
/\/\/\ /\/\/\/\/\/\ /\/\/\/\/\ /\
(XD (XD X (XI X (XI XD X (XI X (XI X (MO (X

Notes to Fmanaal Statements
EJJZ%*E‘IEE Fﬁﬁ}. 37 December 2019 R —FE—NF+=—H=+—H

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. RK&o5H&ER (&)

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION i & & R
The Group mainly operates in Mainland China. REEEZ2HEFBEAHLE
REVENUE FROM EXTERNAL CUSTOMERS: KEINEEE FEIBA
Group
rEE
2019 2018
—E—NF —E—-)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREETIT
China: - Central Region FRE - AR 3,533,518 3,190,851
East Region IR I 3,344,586 3,718,145
Western Region FaElm i 1,372,468 1,465,060
North-east Region b ERlEm sk 530,170 756,390
Overseas SN 147,513 64,230
8,928,255 9,194,676
|

The revenue information of continuing operations above is based on the ~ LillFFELE R AEMDERE AL
locations of the customers. B

INFORMATION ABOUT A MAJOR CUSTOMER FERFWEM

The Group had no customers from whom the revenue derived individually ~ RZZE—NFER_ZT—-—NFELREEH
accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue in year 2019 B {EZE £ MR AGEAREE LKA T 10%
and year 2018, including sales to a group of entities which are known to be NEMEF - BiEMZEFPEMARIZES
under common control with that customer. W— BRI ERE o
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NN ION Z7ION TN ZON ZIN ZON ZIN ZIONZON ZON /TN ZON 7O /TN ZON /TN /0N /0N /T, 1
)X DA IUAX DA DA TUEAX DA A I UX DX I XD UEX DX DA DX DX X AKX DX
6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. WA - Htlg AR W=
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the net invoiced WA - BIRSER RS - HES M
value of goods sold, after deduction of relevant taxes and allowances for ~ BRAAAMIE - RERITHEN FERE
returns and trade discounts. (e
An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and gains is as follows: REBEWA - B A &Yz 5 47 4A
™
Group
rEE
2019 2018
—E-hE —\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR® T ARETIT
Revenue WA
Sales of goods HEEm 8,928,255 9,194,676
]
Sales of urea, compound fertilizer, methanol, R ?’EAHE g -
melamine, furfuryl alcohol and related =RER - BER
products is recognised at a point in time. bis! E@Euuﬁ’ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ
Please refer to Note 5 for disaggregation of & R {E| B FEI EATERR ©
revenue. F%B\ WAR DR -
EIEJ e FEM—JLES ©
Other income and gains Hnl A R Uz
Bank interest income HRITFLEMA 19,229 9,188
Net profit from sales of by-products, water,  SHE&EBEIEMR * 7K ~ &
electricity and steam FOAEEER 60,169 50,169
Dividend income from equity investments at  ¥&Z/AF(EFT A Bz
fair value through profit or loss IR & R B 494 1,107
Rental income HEWA 5,570 3,989
Amortisation of deferred grants iR URTHENS (37c] 29 8,051 6,933
Subsidy income IR 19,899 16,004
Compensation income HEW = 9,453 1,189
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant ~ HE¥E  BE &
and equipment Rl E 29,347 -
Gain on disposal of items of right-of-use HESAEEENWE
assets 5,946 -
Loss on fair value change of financial ARSI A
instrument through profit and loss KA FEE S (16,275) -
Gain on fair value change of derivative MTEERIANATE
financial instruments kD) 1,906 17,719
Gain on bargain purchases HEBEE K= 38a 4,543 -
Gain on other investment HAIGE W 5,868 -
Gain on derivative financial instruments TESR IRk 5 -
Others HAtb 6,144 6418
160,349 112,716
L]
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c

7.  PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBIAIEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBABRFATEFI TR (A -
Group
rEH
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
{hEsa AR® TR ARETT
Cost of inventories sold SHEFEA 6,833,592 6,955,245
Depreciation of items of property, plantand % - HiE K& ETEE
equipment MITE 14 673,564 636,406
Amortisation of other intangible assets HE A & E i 16 6,202 14,120
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 15 48,547 -
Amortisation of coal mining rights TR R A B 18 1,992 2,512
Minimum lease payments under operating ~ (&& H#)IE A &I
leases: s ANE
Factories %= 76,813 4202
Buildings B 1,690 1,120
Land T - 1,990
78,503 7,312
Auditor’s remuneration ZEREN B & 3,990 3,773
Employee benefit expenses (including REBAAX
directors' remuneration: (BIEEEHH) - 9
Salaries and bonuses e RAtAL 552,619 568,193
Pension scheme contributions (defined RS FHEIER
contribution scheme) (FUEHRETE) 92,787 76,849
Benefits in kind BV 62,495 42,864
707,901 687,906
Impairment of trade and other and bills S5 RMGRIE - A
receivables FEMFRIA K FE UL
2FRE 23 10,007 22,241
Impairment of property, plant and ME - BEREERE
equipment 14 = 188,487
Impairment of inventories FERE 21 1,443 -
Unrealised exchange loss, net* RERIFE 51
HER* 4,027 27,587
Realised exchange loss/(gain), net* BERELER
(Woz) - R~ 1,353 (763)
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant HEWE - HER
and equipment* RABIEE R EE = 3,509
]
* Included in “Other expenses” disclosed in the consolidated statement of profit or * PREEGAERIEMEERERPIERE
loss and other comprehensive income. 8 [EmpAsz | e
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMAEAE

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BIERADITIAT -
Group
rEH

2019 2018
—E-NF —TN\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARETT

Interest on bank loans, overdrafts, other loans and  BRA+HERNEZEER

bonds wholly repayable within seven years HBITE  RITEZ
Hih SRR mEEHFIFE 357,156 325,273
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBENFE 16,880 -
Interest on government loans BN E R E 40 56
374,076 325,329
|
9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EZME

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed REEEERTEBTHRAENME @ B
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(@), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong FTRAIEEE - FE D RMEDIZE383(1)()
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of — (0) ~ (©) B2 (f) & Ko 2 R 91 5 2 88 0 ($ BR

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: EHEEEMNOER)BENT -
Group
rER
2019 2018
—E-NEF —TN\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Fees ok 1,050 1,050
Other emoluments: HibS
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind o ERREYNZ 2,483 2,262
Performance related bonuses* EECAL 11,146 17,550
Pension scheme contributions RIREEEIHR 110 78
13,739 19,890
14,789 20,940
I
* Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonuses which are * RARETHNTEEAREBSRAEER
determined as a percentage of the profit after tax of the Group. g m A E o L EERIELL -
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 9. E=EM<E (&)
(A)  INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (A  BAFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were  FRN TEIUEMITEST 2SN T -
as follows:
Group
AEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E- N\
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Ong Kian Guan TR 300 300
Li Shengxiao TER 250 250
Ong Wei Jin FAC 250 250
Li Hongxing TR 250 250
1,050 1,050
I

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-  FABLEEN TR IEBTTE F &) E 0B
executive directors during the year (2018: Nil). B(ZTE—N\F:|)-

142 China XLX 2019 Annual Report




9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(B)  EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

9.

EEME (&)

(B) HITEBRITHEH

Salaries, Pension
allowances and scheme
benefits in kind Performance- contributions Total
Fees ¥4 28k related bonuses Bk$  remuneration
Year ended 31 December 2019 e RENAZE ZERA HE LN #tme
BE-E-hE& RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
+ZA=1+—-HLFE AR¥TT AR¥TT AR¥TT AR¥TT AR¥T
Executive directors; HITESE:
Liu Xingxu 2|28 - 872 4,459 28 5,359
Yan Yunhua EfeEs - 692 2,786 28 3,506
Zhang Qingjin RES - 692 3,901 28 4,621
- 2,256 11,146 84 13,486
|
Chief Executive Officer 1THEE,
Ma Tongsheng ks - 227 350 26 603

Yearended 31 December 2018 HZE-Z—/\E+_-A

=t—HIEFE
Executive directors: HITEE
Liu Xingxu 2|8 - 874 7,020 2 7920
Yan Yunhua Bz - 694 4387 26 5,107
Zhang Qingjin RES - 694 6,143 26 6,863
- 2262 17,550 78 19,890

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to

waive any remuneration during the year (2018: Nil).

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office.

F PR E 5 W E (R B REE (A B

(T \F : E) -

FR - ANEE W R E S S A E

TH

& ER

ADA SR AN A AN 55 [ B 1) 22 =k 1 /5 R B

HF1E o
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAY EMPLOYEES 10. EERSHFMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2018: AEBARFEN AL ESFNEERE=
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 9 above. % (Z2—N\F: ZR)ES ' EMEWNF
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2018: two) non-director, SEN EXHFFo BEESRMAB(ZZ
highest paid employees for the year are as follows: —N\F: MB)IFEFHESFTMES OB
SRR ¢
Group
REE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ZAAREYN & 523 555
Performance-related bonuses HEEA 1,300 1,285
Pension scheme contributions BRI FHEIEER 57 51
1,880 1,891
]

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration MeB T3 HE NN ESH=FIE
fell within the following bands is as follows: EWMEBRWMT :

Group
REE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NE

Nil to RMB500,000 T AR 500,000 7T 2 -
RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000 AR 500,001 7T
2= AR 1,000,000 70 - 2
2 2
I

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the five REFA - NEEWER ALK H M
individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group as an inducement to BEXNME - ER/MAIRINALEE
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. Ry B 2B S A S BEBR VA 18 o
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11. INCOME TAX

The Company is incorporated in Singapore and is subject to income tax at
the rate of 17% (2018: 17%) for the year.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of
tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to income tax at
the rate of 25% (2018: 25%). In year 2019, five of the subsidiaries were given
the New/High Tech Enterprise Award as recognition of their innovation and
use of state-of-the-art equipment. This award brought these subsidiaries a
tax concession of a lower income tax rate (i.e. 15%) for there years since the
subsidires awarded the New High Tech Enterprise Award.

The major components of income tax expense for the financial years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 are:

Frig®t

ARRBRFIREMAKL - RAFE AR
17% (ZZF—N\F : 17%) B 5B X8
ATLTA

11.

PREC b 3 7 8 BR 5t i ) B B TR AN SR [ AR
ERERNBRZFIRITORERGE -

NN LN =RNETh N IE bk gk ]
FRE25% (ZF — J\F : 25%) BUMTRIE -
R_E—NhF HhZRKBRARERES
MR EEBE - U EERHLAIF R
R ENRMSRE  ZREEZZEWBEA
AEESHESHENTEEEFEESEIFA
A ZAEBEMAEHHE (B 15%) IR HEE
@ °

BE_ZT-NEFE-ZF-N\F+H
=t BLIRFEMEHASXZ T EE
DU

Group
rEH
2019 2018
—E-hF —Z=-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETT
Current - PRC BNER -
Charge for the year FEMAX 104,476 182,752
Under provision in prior years BEFERENE 209 7,231
Deferred charge/(credit) (note 35) EEFRR, 7 (FEA) (BF7E35) 6,872 (68,150)
Total tax charge for the year REERIBF T 85 111,557 121,833
]
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11. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rates for the countries in which the Company and its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax charge for the year at the effective tax rate is as

11. F8% (8#])

REEZERERRAR R MEKNEAB A
T B BA TE B R 5T 5B AV BR AR A A RO 37
R X R BRI R E R B IR ST H R

follows: L
Group
rEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —Z—)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Profit before tax FRAE Al ) 525,620 777,147
N
Tax at statutory tax rates REEREFENNIE 131,405 194,287
Effect of a tax concession MBEENTE (63,028) (90,086)
Withholding tax TEINIE 33,451 13,443
Tax losses not recognised RIERTIEEE 8,666 8,245
Expenses not deductible for tax Itk ba 5,126 7409
Adjustments in respect of current tax of prior FBEFERENEATIAIEL
years FOERES 209 7,231
Income not subject to tax BAFBIRA (833) -
Recognition of deductible temporary differences 324t Bl AR FERRHY A 0
previously not recognised T ER (789) (13,233)
Effect of other concession HigEm w2 (1,177) -
Reversal of previous years' losses e A 4F [E B R #E Bl - (3.830)
Others EAh, (1,473) (1633)
Tax charge at the effective rate of 21.2% BREBRBIE21.2%
(2018:15.7%) (ZZ—N\F : 157%) 5t EH
AR X 111,557 121,833
]
12. DIVIDEND 12. RE

Proposed final dividend RMB8 cents BEARIRE -BREER

(2018: RMB10 cents) per ordinary share AR¥ESH (ZE—N\F :

AREE109)

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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2019 2018

—B-nE “FN\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMT T ARMTFTE

93,730 117,162
I

REREZNRAR B BFARBBRRR
B ERITHBCRIBFE RE LA - 18RI 1E
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. BAREEREZEEAEMN
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT BREF

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share amount is based BREAREERNGEIREBESAGE
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the R E=FFA ABEFRN R - RLTHE
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares (inclusive ~ AR ZZF——F B ZTH A RRESD
of mandatorily convertible instruments issued) of 1,171,621,000 (2018: LRIRINAE 9 801,171,621,000 1% (B2
1,171,621,000), as adjusted to reflect the convertible bonds issued in 2011. BITH RS @R TR) (ZE—\F -
1,171,621,000 &) 5t &S H ©

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on the ~ BRERREERBHATIER A TEIEE
following data: i

/

8
=

Group
rER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Earnings B
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders AR ESRERREERT
of the parent, used in the basic and diluted KRR T B ERTA A
earnings per share calculation JEA 5 A 316,495 624,932
|
Group
rEE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E—)\F
Number of shares Number of shares
REOEE IR 8 E
Shares [i8vi)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares A BEORERLE SR
(inclusive of mandatorily convertible = &Y AR N 15 25
instruments issued) for the purpose of (BIEE BT TRIRR 1T
calculating basic and diluted earnings per R T R)
share 1,171,621,000 1,171,621,000
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14.

31 December 2019

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14.

Y% - BERRE
—2-NFt+=RA=t—H

Office
Otherfixtures equipment
and structures Plantand  and fumiture Motor  Construction
Buildings EftEE  machinery N vehicles  in progress Total
BT WEUREE REREE RGREE AE EBIR a3t
RMBOOO  RMB0O0  RMBO00  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBI00O RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR
Cost A
A1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H 1295695 203043 7,686,115 34,130 98,103 995679 12432765
Fffect of adoption of IFRS 16 i B s il
16540 - - (300,000) - - - (300,000)
At131 December 2018and 1 January 2019 RZE-\ETZA=1-Rk
RZE-NF-A-H 1295695 203043 7386115 34130 9,103 995679 12,132765
Addions e 1,018 1,086 88,751 16,302 10884 2230392 2348433
Transfers i 140,658 13322 249,966 14925 1927 (62279) (202,000
Redlassfication EFipE 73367 (171,564) 98,197 = = = =
Acquisition of subsiciaies G NG 2039 8,364 319177 4826 34,590 11,930 399,277
Disposals i (2261) 217)  (479162) (35,179) (3915) - (520,734)
At31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA=T-R 1528867 1874034 7,663,044 335,004 141580 261523 14157741
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE
At January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H 234,690 325619 2393151 25,170 61122 - 33975
Effect of adoption of RS 16 NRAERE RS2
Z16%EM - - (6910) - - - (6910)
At31 December 2018.and 1 January 2019 RZE-NFTZA=1-Rk
RZZ-hE-A-A 234,690 25619 2,386,241 25,170 61,122 - 3238
Depreciation during the year (Note 7) ERFEIT) 57,718 65,383 490,945 42,494 17,04 - 673,564
Reclassfication Eiipip 3,581 (13.370) 9,789 - - - -
Acquisition of subsiciaries YEEMB AT 1476 1,454 69,057 1917 15223 - 89,127
Disposals = (799) ] (389,617) (31,203) (3,166) - (424,793)
At31 Decernber 2019 RZZ-NETZA=T-R 296,666 379078 2566415 28378 90,203 - 3570740
Impaitment: e
At T January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H 40908 30863 106,266 3,084 = 11370 192,491
Disposals & (501) (203) (76,856) (2,682) - - (80,242)
At31 Decernber 2019 RZF-NETZA=1-H 40407 30,660 29410 402 - 11370 112,249
Canying amount; HEFE:
At31 Decernber 2019 RZE-NETZA=T-R 1191794 146429 5067219 96,224 51386 2603833 10474752
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 14. 9% - BERRE (&)
In 2018, a subsidiary of the Group sold plant and machinery with ~ RAZFT— //\F - AEEDHE R &R
net carrying value of RMB431,118,000 to a third party and entered S =77 HERE REW - REFERA
into an arrangement with the third party to lease back the assets for ~ K#431,1180007T * WHEZE=FFI U &
RMB300,000,000 over a period of three years. The sales and lease back ~ Hf - A=F HLRIHEE  KERAARK
arrangement is to secure a bank borrowing of RMB300,000,000 granted to 300,000,0007T ° $HE K [B1FH % B & £ HE AR
the Group (Note 31). The difference between the net carrying value of the | A% EIR fE 17 %féf/\ﬁﬁg 300,000,000
assets and lease consideration of RMB131,118,000 is deferred and amortised (31 s BEEMBEREFELAAER
over the lease term as other assets. As at 31 December 2019 the balance of ~ BRJEFBEAR o3 131,118,000 7L E TEAE I A
other assets amounts to RMB114,318,000 (2018: RMB131,118,000). HEMARAMEERHE - KR_FT— N
F+_A=+—H HMEEBRER/A
R#114318000t(ZE—N\F : AR¥
131,118,0007T) °
The Group has plant and machinery with a carrying value RMB709,589,000 A5 B MRRE B A K 709,589,000 7T( =
(2018: RMB293,081,000) is mortgaged to secure the Group's bank loans (Note & — /\4F © AR #5 293,081,000 7T ) 5 &
31). WA R A B R IRIT B RUR LR (B
FE31) 0
Office
Otherfixtures equipment and
and structures Plant and furniture Motor  Construction
Buldings EET machinery BAZ vehicles — in progress Total
BT WENREE BRREE  REREE B ERIE st
RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000
Group 1%E ARETT  ARETT  AREfR  ARETn  ARETR ARETn  ARETR
Cost: A
At January 2018 RZF-\E-A-H 1,109,047 1581727 7041254 288411 93,349 1280416 11394204
Additions AE 23836 1581 332685 6,037 9630 1063909 1438278
Transfers &z 149498 411143 795468 2814 97 (1,385,238) -
Acquisition of subsiciaries YEEhE AT 17689 28674 133969 11825 2483 3659 31202
Disposals i (4379) ) (617261) (885) (8316) - (630919)
At31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZF=1-H 1,295,695 2023043 7686115 334130 98,103 995,679 12432765
Accumulated depreciation ZiHTE
At January 2018 R=F-N\§-F-H 18645 50418 210975 178821 52181 YA
Depreciation during the year (Note 7) ERRE (M) 47691 63149 464,985 45963 14618 - 636406
Acquisition of subsiciaries WEHB AT 3483 304 1551 1,945 81 - 24504
Disposals e (2589) 6)  (19%84) (1559) 6529) - (207869)
At31 December 2018 R-E-\E+-A=1-H 234690 325619 2393151 225170 61,122 - 3239752
Impaitment: B
At January 2018 WZF-\&-F-H - - - - - - -
Acquisition of subsiciaries i NG 1293 706 1,980 % - - 4004
Impairment during the year (Note 7) ERREHE7) 39615 30197 104286 3059 - 11370 188487
At31 December 2018 RZE-NFT_A=1-H 40908 30863 106,266 3084 - 11370 192491
Net carrying amount; HEE:
At31 December 2018 RZF-\ETZA=1-H 1020097 1,666,561 5,186,098 105876 36,981 984309 9000522
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15. LEASES 15. AE

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land, plant and
machinery used in its operations. Leases of plant and machinery generally
have lease terms between 4 and 15 years, while land generally have lease
terms between 2 and 68 years. The Group's obligations under its leases
are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets. Generally, the Group
is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets and some
contracts require the Group to maintain certain financial ratios.

The Group also has certain leases of machinery with lease terms of 12
months or less and leases of office equipment with low value. The Group
applies the 'short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition
exemptions for these leases.

(A)  CARRYING AMOUNTS OF RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised

AEBEEZEEERH  NELLAD
REAREL  BERKSRIER - BE
BEHENHERBER4E15F ML
WHENHEMBE R 2E68F - A5H
EHETAENEBRAEEAYEESR
ENMARER - —RMs @ ARETE
BRLEHBEEE MBI ANELRK
SEBFREM LR

AEENTBETHSEE  HEHR 12
AT - YHERBEENRHARE - K
SEYSRSHERM [CHHEE ] M 1EE
BEEEME | R -

EREEERREE

TREFINZPECEREAEEENE
HEREREE

(A)

and the movements during the period:

Land Machinery Total

T Hes et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ TR AR¥ TR AR® TR

Group REE

Asat 1 January 2019 R-ZE-h&—HA—H 622,820 293,090 915,910
Additions NE 230,752 = 230,752
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BE R B A F) 15,277 = 15,277
Depreciation expense HEER (19,332) (29,215) (48,547)
Disposals k= (33,584) - (33,584)
As at 31 December 2019 NR-_ZB-hE+=-HA=+—H 815,933 263,875 1,079,808

Land Machinery Total
Tt R Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR
Company AKATF

As at 1 January 2019 R=ZE—-hF—HF—H
Additions NE = = =
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB B A 7] = = =
Depreciation expense EER = = -

As at 31 December 2019 H-BEB—hE+=-H=+—H - = =
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15. LEASES (CONTINUED) 15. #HE (&)
(B)  LEASE LIABILITIES (B) HEERE
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under ~ FEREIIRZHABMEEEE(BREFEE
interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the movements during the REEF) RS ELEES)
period:
Group Company
REE AAR]
2019 2018
S G
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETIT
As at 1 January HW—B— 249,406
Additions = 18,047 -
Accretion of interest A2 3 A0 16,880 -
Payments IE: (113,933) -
As at 31 December 2019 R-EB—-hhE+=-H=+—H 170,400 -
]
Current BN &R 102,887 -
Non-current JERNER 67,513 -
]
() AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR LOSS O RESEINSHE
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss: ATRRIE=ERN S
Group Company
rEH NAT]
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFIT
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets {FREEEREEZRA 48,547 -
Interest expense on leases liabilities HEAGEMNEZH 16,880 -
Expense relating to short-term leases HHHEREER
(included in cost of sales) (BT AHERA) 76,885 -
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets KEEEEHESEHAER
(included in administrative expenses) (T ATTBFAS) 1,618 -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIERERNERE 143,930 -
]
(D)  TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW (D) BERBLEE
The Group had total cash outflows for leases of RMB192,436,000 in 2019. AEBR_ZT-NFHHEERRLER

=PNE 92,436,000TE °
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16. OTHERINTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. HftEFEEE
Group
REE
Prepaid land
lease payments
Patents Software FA{StiHE Total
== B4 M et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT AR%T T ARETT
2019 —E-hFE
As at 1 January m—HA—H 19,399 19,030 609,930 648,359
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 RERAR lﬁf’%ﬂﬁ%iﬁ%
AR 165 ER - - (609,930) (609,930)
Additions NE - 5,573 - 5,573
Acquisition of subsidiary WEEHT B AR - 9,083 - 9,083
Amortisation during the year FNEEE (MEE7)

(Note 7) (3,173) (3,029) - (6,202)
As at 31 December R+=—BA=+—H 16,226 30,657 - 46,883
Current portion included in T ATEFHRIBR)

prepayments BEAEE > - - - -
Non-current portion JERNEAER 16,226 30,657 - 46,833

|

2018 —E-N\&
As at 1 January W—HA—H 8333 - 382,328 390,661
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 FOPRAN BB B 75 e o

RIS 165 K - - - -
Additions NE - 20,147 208,553 228,700
Acquisition of subsidiary WEEHT B A ) 12,066 - 31,052 43,118
Amortisation during the year FEEHE (FFE7)

(Note 7) (1,000) (1,117) (12,003) (14,120)
As at 31 December R+=A=+—H 19,399 19,030 609,930 648,359
Current portion included in s ATER IR ANHA

prepayments B - - (17,753) (17,753)
Non-current portion FERNEAER 19,399 19,030 592,177 630,606
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17. GOODWILL 17. BE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E\E
RMB’000 RMB'000
Group REE AR¥TT ARETIT
Cost: AR
At 1 January mn—H—8 29,001 25,361
Acquisition of subsidiaries IWEEWB AR = 3,640
At 31 December w+=—A=+—¢~ 29,001 29,001
Net carrying amount: AREDVFE -
At 31 December Rt+—-—A=+—~H 29,001 29,001
I

Goodwill acquired through business acquisitions have been allocated to
following cash generating units (“CGU") for impairment testing:

Coal mining cash-generating unit; and
Furfural products cash-generating unit; and
Humic acid products cash-generating unit.

COAL MINING CASH-GENERATING UNIT

The recoverable amount of the coal mining CGU has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a 18-year period approved by management. The
pre-tax discounted rate applied to the cash flow projections is 11.2% (2018:
11.2%).

FURFURAL PRODUCTS CASH-GENERATING UNIT AND HUMIC ACID
PRODUCTS CASH-GENERATING UNIT

The recoverable amounts of the furfural products CGU and humic acid
products CGU have been determined based on a value-in-use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering 10-year
and 15-year periods approved by management. The pre-tax discounted
rates applied to the cash flow projections are 17.6 and 20.0% respectively
(2018:17.6% and 20.0% respectively).

Based on the annual impairment testing, no impairment charge was
recognised during the year.

BREHEHPENRDECHEEA TR
SEEBEM(REELEM]) - WETTRE
BRI -

BRIEFIRIR S A B
BREERRSELEMN &
BERERREEL BN -

BAEF PRI 2 E A B

HERRERSEEBUMNAIKESRED
REAEENEAREEEY  MERAEE
DA ERER AN HBREE RE%E
MEISFHEMBESRERAGTE -
AR RETRARA112%(ZF— N\F :
11.2%) BYHTIR 4TI o

BREERRSELBENNBERERRS
EAEM

WERELRRSELEMNMEERERIR S
EEBUMA KRB SEDIREBEENE
REXET  MERBEDEAKERE
AN BEE BE%E  RE10FRI15F
HEMNRERERAFE - HARESRE
TR 55 BIER FA 17.6% B2 20.0% Ay T3 =478
(ZZ—\F : DRI 17.6%E220.0%) °

RBFRBERR - RAFERLEER
BER R o
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17. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-generating
units is as follows:

Coal mining

RIRRx

BRER
2019 2018 2019
g5 EEEl %17
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
o = RS

25,361 25361 1,528

Carying amount of goodwil HERAE

ASSUMPTIONS USED IN THE VALUE-IN-USE CALCULATION

The following describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake the impairment testing of coal
mining CGU, furfural products CGU and humic acid products CGU:

0) BUDGETED SALES AND OPERATING COSTS

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted sales
and operating costs are compared to the historical data and adjusted for
management’s expected efficiency improvements and expected market
development.

(1 COMMODITY PRICE

The basis used to determine the value assigned to commodity price is the
expectation of future changes in the market.

(1 PRE-TAX DISCOUNT RATE

The pre-tax discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant unit.

With regards to the assessment of value in use for coal mining CGU, furfural
products CGU and humic acid products CGU, management believes that
no reasonably possible changes in any of the above key assumptions would
cause the carrying value of the coal mining CGU , furfural products CGU
and humic acid products CGU to materially exceed its recoverable amount.
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17. BE(#E)
SHREEHEMNNEEKRmEND

Humic acid products Total

RERER &zt

2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“ R T

RMB1000
ARBTR

1528 2112 2112
| DN I NN I

Y T\ F
RMB000 [EICGEN
ARETT RN
29,001 29001

RMB000
ARBTT

RMB000
ARBTT

£ REETEERANRE

FEXERJWTAM - BEEEECRE
ReneBANEEERRRESEEEM
BRELRSELAEMLABERERR S
EESBETRERR -
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BEEERE S BURA LR - FAREE
12 TR E A RS B R AR
B -
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AREERmERNEEEENEERT
BARREBHTA -

(I  BAHTIRE

AT AR R AT I <R A R
BIURERER -

AT EEERRRSELEN - BEESR
HeEfBEUNEERERRSELSEN
MEREEMNS  BRERE  E il
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18. COAL MINING RIGHTS 18. JETEBAHRAE
RMB’000
AR¥TT
31 December 2019 —E-h&E+=-A=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of accumulated RZZ—NF—HA— BN - HREFHEE
amortisation 88,172
Amortisation provided during the year (Note 7) i}gﬁﬁﬁﬁxﬁ (MF3E7) (1,992)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+-_A=+—H 86,180
|
At 31 December 2019: R-ZE-NF+-ZHA=+—8":
Cost B AR 109,570
Accumulated amortisation Rt (23,390)
Net carrying amount REHE 86,180
|
31 December 2018 —E2-N\E+=-HA=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2018, net of accumulated RZE—NF—A—HHOKRAR - MR R
amortisation 90,684
Amortisation provided during the year (Note 7)  F/E BS54 (BiisE7) (2,512)
At 31 December 2018 W) \Ft+_-_H=+—H 88,172
|
At 31 December 2018: RZE—N\F+ZA=1+—1:
Cost B AR 109,570
Accumulated amortisation RETHESH (21,398)
Net carrying amount AREHE 88,172
|
IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF COAL MINING RIGHTS R B B AR E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group performed ~#HE-ZZEZ—-AFRK T - N\F+ - A

impairment assessment on the coal mining CGU as disclosed in Note 17~ =+t —HIEFE - AEBEHEBEFRR S

to the consolidated financial statements, which include the above coal EASBMEITRERNM (WA ERE

mining rights of RMB86,180,000 (2018: RMB88,172,000) and goodwill of ~ MIFE17FTal) - E i B ¥E bl kR e R i

RMB25,361,000 (2018: RMB25,361,000) (Note 17). AER#86,180000 L (ZFE—N\F : ARK
88,172,000 7T ) & & & A R # 25,361,000 7T
(ZZ—N\F : AR¥25361,0007T) (MizE
17) ©

The key assumptions are included in Note 17 to the consolidated financial FERBHEHNERE M mEME 17
statements.

Based on the annual impairment testing, no impairment charge was  IREFERERH - RAFE AL BIER
recognised during the year. BIERE -
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19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 19. BRAFEFABRZNRERE
PROFIT ORLOSS
Group
rEE
2019 2018
—EF-AF —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETIT
Non-current IERE
Unquoted equity investment, at fair value: e ETIRIERE - W ATE
PRC ik 6,708 6,708
I
Current B
Listed equity investments, at fair value: ETRIERE - IBATE
Singapore N 3,194 2678
Hong Kong BA 17,709 34,500
20,903 37,178
|
Company
b N
2019 2018
—B-NF —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETIT
Current B
Listed equity investments, at fair value: FTRIERE - IBATE
Singapore Frhng 3,194 2678
Hong Kong B 17,709 34,500
20,903 37,178
|
LISTED EQUITY INVESTMENTS EHRERE

As at 31 December 2019, the listed equity investments were classified as RZZE-NF+_RA=+—H8 tmk#
current assets because the directors of the Company have intention to ~ REWHBEARDEE - AAARRFNE
dispose of these investments in the forthcoming year. EERUEARKR—FALEZFRE -
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19.

UNQUOTED EQUITY INVESTMENT

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

The Group's investment in unquoted equity investment represent equity
investment in Manas Biyuan Water Supply Company Limited (“Biyuan”).
The Group has no control nor significant influence over the financial and
operating policies of Biyuan. The Group does not intend to dispose of them

in the near future.

The investment is carried at FVPL and the fair value as at 31 December 2019

is RMB6,708,000 (2018 RMB6,708,000).

BAFEFARSENRERE
(&)

FLmkERE

AEE 2 IF E MBI E TR B AT

BEREKEREERA(ZIR ) AR HE
BE - AABEERARE LM EFEERD

19.

FE - AEBEBRAIRARAKEERBR
ig\ o

KEBRANFEFABRYE  RZZE—N
F+-_A=T—BHNAFEAARE
6,708,000 7T (=& — \F : AR ¥ 6,708,000
JC) ©

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. FANFKIE G ZEREMERR
RECEIVABLES ]
Group
rEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE-)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREETIT
Non-current IERE
Prepayments for purchases of items of property, FEE¥WE - HEMREER
plant and equipment EoNEUNE 844,713 489,348
]
Current RED
Prepayments: TERTRIE -
Advanced deposits to suppliers B HERriES 386,887 530,686
Current portion of prepaid land lease TEf T EFRIERBNER
payments (note 16) o (FizE16) - 17,753
Others Hity 15,677 3,965
402,564 552,404
Deposits and other receivables: He RHEMERFIE
Deposits b 10,126 6,574
VAT recoverable FEYIEER 386,576 351,887
Interest receivable FEWFILE, 1,057 -
Others Hity 56,850 72,924
454,609 431,385
Total prepayments, deposits and other TERFRIA « 1me RAME
receivables — current WHIEAREE - W) 857,173 983,789
N
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. FEAMFIE G RERHAMERK
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 15 (%)
Company
RATF
2019 2018
S s
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR AREETIT
Current TE
Prepayments TERTFRIR 254 1,546
]
21. INVENTORIES 21. FE
Group
rEE
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETIT
Raw materials at cost RS 402,599 549,440
Parts and spares at cost A RERTH 130,101 116,035
Finished goods at lower of cost PAPKAS 2 AT 43R SRR
and net realisable value FFEMEK D 452,347 401,378
Allowance for inventory obsolescence FEIRHAEE (1,443) -
983,604 1,066,853
|
22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 22. PTEE€mI A
Group
rEH
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notional Notional
amount Asset amount Asset
ZEESHE BE EEEHE BE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%¥T R ARETT AR¥T R ARETIT
Foreign currency swaps SN R 99,760 848 256,546 17,719
Futures HE 165 510 - -

99,925 1,358 256,546 17,719
I
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23. BEZEWREREKRERE
Group
EE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E—N\fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
Trade receivables B S EIE 161,853 103,366
Less: impairment allowance WO ERE (13,847) (6,467)
148,006 96,899
Bills receivable FEY =R 245,413 234,232
393,419 331,131
E——

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on
terms of 30 to 90 days. They are recognised at their original invoice amounts
which represent their fair values on initial recognition. The Group’s bills
receivable are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms of 90
to 180 days. Trade and bills receivables are denominated in RMB.

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly payment in
advance or on credit for certain customers. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

BIRBFAR/RE N —RNI0ENHR
ZERYRFAR RIGH R S FE
R ZEEARREENRERF QY
B AERENREER/RE N —KR0
E180HABIE - B HEWFIAKEWE
EAARBEHE -

=L
/Bla °

AEBRAEZEFPNRZIHFAREBR/AMNK
B ATEPRANSEESR - 8XFH
FEHLR - AKESREFHEHKE
HY B FE UGB R BRI ) - URURE B
o BHESRERARNEEETHERM -
B EXAl - MAEENE 5 RIKKIR
DHRAEDHNES  RUBEXNEE
SRR - NEEYWERZFERITFEE

AP RREMEERE
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
RECEIVABLES THAT ARE PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is as
follows:

2 A E B RIRE < FEWR IR

REBE FRYWFIAR HE R RER D
i (RIEHZ A RIGREE) 0

Group

rEH
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARETFT
Within 1 month TERAA 90,899 62,991
1to 3 months 1ZE31EA 25,693 21,630
3to 6 months 3E61EHA 13,738 6,120
610 12 months 621218 A 10,458 2,149
Over 12 months 12 A LA = 7,218 4,009
148,006 96,899

|

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large SR80 ER IR RORUE A FE U SR TR B R ST HAOR

number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Group are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer based on
customer type and rating. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade
receivables are written off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

160 China XLX 2019 Annual Report

R HER AT -

EEHME AR E B W IR B3 T AR &
EFARIFFERENBLEP AR - R
BBELR  AAREERLSBANZT
BEAHERERE FHEEEREIEEX
m‘%ﬁ&EZ?%@%TB%&‘%EZ%EI%%M&@ °

BHEEEE

REHHE BB AR EERETRES
- LGrEEHREEESE - BEHEXRTDER
EFPERIRFRNZ AR FETH A mE
HHE']E%(HFME AT E R A K g

. i'f’qujﬁ-rﬁ&ﬁ\#ﬁzi BEfAI S M E
5&&%1\ B BTG N R PR A (6 1 TR
MEERAEER - —RE ' BEHEWK
FIBMRBERE—FIW AT BT
TEENR R BRI T LAGESE o



X)X O
\LJ/ \‘LJ/ \\// \\/‘/ \‘

x"\></"\ \/%\K’/\\ \/%\K’/\\ t/"\x/"\\ ( ><\ ‘/%\K/”\J ‘/W\X/”\J \/W\X/N\‘ ‘/%\K/”\J t/m\></"? t/m\></"? ( ><\ t/%\)(/”\l t/m\X/”\J ( ><\ \\K
NN N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
\ 7 7

N ONON 7ON /ON ’/w’\ ON ON ON TN 7ON /ON TN ON /ONON 7ON /ONON 7ON /ON A
J ‘\,,,,X‘,,,/‘ X ‘\,,,,X\,,}‘ ‘L,,,,X‘,,,}‘ ‘L,,,,X‘,,,/‘ X ‘L,,,,X\,,}‘ ‘L,,,,X‘,,,}‘ ‘L,,,,X‘,,,/‘ \,,,,X\,,}‘ ‘L,,,,X\,,}‘ ‘L,,,,X‘,,,}‘ LX) ‘\,,,,X\,,/‘ ‘L,,,,X‘,,,/‘ P, ‘\,,,,X\,,}‘ ‘L,,,,X‘,,,}‘ ‘L,,,,X‘,,,}‘ X
23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 23. EFZRWREREWRERE (&)
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES (CONTINUED) FEHEERE ()
The movement in allowance for expected credit losses of trade and other *ETJ%TE\EW:. EEEGFENE S RHAMEY
receivables computed based on ECL are as follows: FIEMTEEEEEEREEESNT ¢
TRADE RECEIVABLES B ZREWIE
Group
rEH
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETIT
At the beginning of year REA) 6,467 4,960
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B AR 1,639 -
Written off HisH (44) -
Impairment losses, net (Note 7) RIEEE - TR (MFE7) 5,785 1,507
Atend of year FAR 13,847 6,467
L]
OTHER RECEIVABLES H {h fE Y IR
Group
rEE
2019 2018
—E-hF —\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT
At the beginning of year REH] 23,645 3,787
Impairment losses, net (Note 7) BIEEE - B (MR 7) 3,125 19,858
At end of year RER 26,770 23,645
]
DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES/A SUBSIDIARY FEN RERsE A B/ — [P B A B KIE
Group
rEEH
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETIT
At the beginning of year REL] 1,328 45)
Impairment losses, net (Note 7) WIEETE - PR (MEE7) (1,305) 876
At end of year RER 23 1,328
|
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 23. BEZEWHEREKRELSE ()
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES (CONTINUED) FEHAE BB ()
BILLS RECEIVABLE JE B B
Group
KEH
2019 2018
—2-N%F “ET)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREETTT
At the beginning of year REH] - -
Impairment losses, net (Note 7) BEEE - B (MR 7) 2,402 -
At end of year RER 2,402 -

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the — TX#HJF|BREAEEE 5 RUGKIE - HAb
Group's trade receivables, other receivables, amounts due from related e ZRTE - Wﬁﬁﬂ%%ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁa i 3NE]

companies/a subsidiary and bills receivable using a provision matrix: /B ARFEREREENEER
mERL
ECL FOR TRADE RECEIVABLES BZRWHIENTRREERSE
Past due
il
Current Less than 1 year 1to2years Over 2 years
B HR-F 12% 280 E
2019 “E-NE
Gross carrying amount (RMB1000) BEAEARETT) 94,069 51,700 7,362 8,722 161,853
Expected credit losses (RMB000) BHEEER(ARETFT) 3,170 1,811 156 8,710 13,847
|
2018 —ZE-\E
Gross canryingamount (RMB000) SR EE(AREFT) 63838 30992 2904 5632 103,366
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHESEE(AESTT) 847 1,093 307 4220 6,467
ECL FOR OTHER RECEIVABLES HAin W IENTEREE R
Past due
il
Current Less than 1 year 1to2years Over 2 years
Ik DR—F 12% 254
2019 “E-NE
Gross carrying amount (RMB000) BEEEARETT) 62,014 5342 2,026 24,363 93,745
Expected credit losses (RVMB000) BHEEFR(ARETT) 1,950 987 1,308 22,525 26,770
|
2018 —E-NE
Gross carryingamount (RMB000) R EE(AREF L) 57986 15795 15820 13542 103,143
Expected creditlosses (RMBI000) BHESEB(ARETT) 887 386 9,905 12467 23645
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES (CONTINUED)

B RWHRERERRERE (&)

REEERE (&)

23.

FCL FOR AMOUNT DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES/A SUBSIDIARY FEAS BARE N B, —FEIffT BB A Bk IE R TE BF
EEBE
Past due
il
Current Less than 1 year 1to2years Over 2 years
Ik IR-F 12 L
2019 —E-NE
Gross carrying amount (RMB1000) BEREARETT) 17 647 55 49 768
Expected credit losses (RMB000) BHEEFR(ARETT) 2 15 2 4 23
|
2018 —B\E
Gross carryingamount (RMBO00)  ERREE (ARETT) 31366 346 - - 31712
Expected credit losses (RMB000) EHEEER(ARETT) 1057 271 - - 1328
FCL FORBILLS RECEIVABLE EN IR TRHEEEE
Past due
il
Current Less than 1 year 1t0 2 years Over 2 years Total
Ik SR-% 126 25N E st
2019 —E-NE
Gross carrying amount (RMB1000) BEAEARETT) 100,051 147,764 - - 247,815
Expected credit losses (RMB000) EREEBR(ARETT) 555 1,847 = = 2,402

BILLS RECEIVABLE

At 31 December 2019, the Group endorsed bills receivable accepted by
banks in Mainland China (the “Endorsed Bills") with an aggregate carrying
amount of RMB719,576,000 (2018: RMB1,389,935,000) with maturity ranging
from one to six months at the end of the reporting period, to certain of its
suppliers for settlement of the trade payables due to these suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in
the PRC, the holders of the Endorsed Bills have a right of recourse against
the Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the
opinion of the directors, all risks and rewards relating to the Endorsed Bills
have been substantially transferred upon the Endorsement. Accordingly,
the Group has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Endorsed
Bills and the associated trade payables. The maximum exposure arising
from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Endorsed Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Endorsed Bills is equal to
their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Endorsed Bills are not significant.

e

R-Z—AFE+-_A=+—H AEEP
MEETHEBSEEFEHNMIRITE
IR BRAEZEAAR 719576000 (=
T—)\F : AREE1,389935000) K fEUTZE
BIBEEER])  NEERNZEHER
MESENFB(EEZ])  BHRNMTRE
HR—=NEAR - RIFH A EE

REHDER - WPBRRTHERER B

SENBEAGRAATEERRA ([

B2 BEERR BEEZEEBEYN

BABMARBRMEHAEIELEEREESE
& Bt - AREERIEREEZEMN
N E S RNFEN 2 HREE - A&
SESEEEREME RN RARR
MBOZESERZBNATRRERE
EHEENERAE - EFRR8 - AEEH
B2EBEZBENRATELTEK -
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 23. BEZEWHEREKRELSE ()
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES (CONTINUED) EHEEEE (B)
BILLS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) FEURER (&)

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group has not ~REBE_ZT—-—NFR-_ZT—\F+A
recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the Endorsed Bills. No =+ —BIEFE - REE W M iERNEE
gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both EEZHBEABMNEAKESEE - RER
during the year or cumulatively. The Endorsement has been made evenly Sk ZFEHIME @ HE R BFHE L BHE UK

throughout the year. wHBEERER  c BEERBEFERNF
B o
24. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES/A 24, HEEAT —HHBATN
SUBSIDIARY iEER

Particulars of the balances with related companies and a subsidiary, in BRE AT R BB A RGNS
which certain shareholders, executive directors of the Company are also (HPARRARIETIRE - UTESTAEE

direct/indirect shareholders and directors are as follows: SEERRREE)NAT
Group
rEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Pt AR¥T T ARETFT
Non-current: JEBNER :
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment ST E LM TR
Co,, Ltd. BRAT] (M) 33,747 25,635
Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation #4818 b5 B &2 5
Co, Ltd. BRAFA 41 -
33,788 25,635
]
Current: ENER :
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment FHP T E M TR
Co,, Ltd. BRRAT 421 28
Henan XLX Jingmi Fengtou Co, Ltd. /Tﬁ/bklb LIS BL]
BRA 297 -
Anhui Xinlianxin Heavy Sealing Co,, Ltd. T?X/L\L/L\E’*”i
BRA 22 6
HenanLingtong Xinlianxin Energy Co,, Ltd. ﬂfﬁ%ﬁﬁ/b@/bﬁﬁﬁ
BRAT] 5 -
Henan Shenleng Gas Co, Ltd. AR REARA - 18,570
Henan Xinlianxin Shenleng Energy Co,, Ltd. ﬁﬁﬁ/b};/b/}&/&\ﬁw
BHERA = 4,394
Xinjiang Shenleng Gas Co, Ltd. /L:\L’L\/éﬁ//?\ﬁﬁ&
BRA - 7,386
745 30,384
|
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24. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES/A 24, EEEENTR, —HEHEARH
SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) ek ()
Group
rEER
2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR® T ARETIT
Due to related companies: EEEARRE :
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment FrafmoLEIMET
Co, Ltd. REBR AT (i) (2,867) (7415)
Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation #7487t 1B J& 2 5
Co, Ltd. BIRA T (iii) (2,667) (4,183)
Henan XLX Jingmi Fengtou Co, Ltd. T RCNEME R £ R
BERAQT] (258) (10)
Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co, Ltd.  JAlE/.D@EME TEE
BRAT] (229) 27)
Qingjin,Zhang KES (50) -
Yunhua,Yan BiazE (20) -
Xinjiang Antai Shenzhou Fengtou Co, Ltd.  #T3& K/JJEM\H HEE
BRA (1) 1
Henan Shenleng Gas Co, Ltd. T RDRR ﬁ%ﬁ R - (52)
Henan Xinlianxin Shenleng Energy Co, Ltd.  JAIF/DMELRZ BER
RN BRAR - (179)
Xinjiang Shenleng Gas Co, Ltd. DELRZ RS
BRAH - (9,185)
(6,092) (21,052)
Non-current: JEENER :
Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation #7814 )1/ 88 22 2
Co, Ltd. BRARTA] (1,451) -
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24. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES/A 24. BHBENT/ —BHEBELRN
SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) w=eR ()
Company
RKATF
2019 2018
—E-NEF —TN\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
5T ARETT AREFIT
Current: ENER :
Henan Heli Energy Co, Ltd. A AR N EEIRAR 1
BRAF (iv) 7,600 -
Henan Xinlianxin Fertiliser Co,, Ltd. RLNBIMEET %
EERNBRAR] - 134,213
7,600 134,213
T
Due to subsidiaries ESHBARRIE
Current: BIES
Henan Heli Energy Co, Ltd. A AR 1 BEIR AR 19
BRAF] - (114,400)
]
Notes: BfaE -
(i) Balance represented prepayments for equipment and spare parts purchases from 0) BETE T LEME TREB R A RRER
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment Co,, Ltd. Further details are set out in HEREHTBENFHIALRTE - E—HFHBD
Note 41(@)(v). BRI 41@)W) ©
(ii) Balance represented other payable for equipment and spare parts purchases (ii) BT E ML TR EA R A RS
from Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment Co., Ltd. Further details are set HEREHREHA B RIBAREE o #E— 5T
out in Note 41(a)(v). BIERHT T 41@)(W)

(iii) Balances represented other payable for maintenance fees and anti-corrosion (iii) BLETAB T AR MNP B R R A BR A FIUE A 4

expenses charged by Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation Co,, Ltd. B A B B E A R IR o
Further details are set out in Note 41(a)(iv) R TIER M 41@) V) ©
(iv) Balances represented dividend receivable from Henan Heli Energy Co,, Ltd. (iv) FEWCR AR 1 8ERR 1D BIR A FIAR S AT &4
o
The balances are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-free and ERR R EER Tﬁ%ﬂirﬁ&% S H&ZE
the carrying amounts of these balances approximate their fair values. EH REEEA N T EES
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

25. ReRREEEYUREIER

TIME DEPOSITS EHER
Group
rEH
2019 2018
—EF-NEF —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETFT
Cash and bank balances R MIRITAEH 884,448 346,151
Time deposits TE BifF 3R 499,346 258,839
1,383,794 604,990
]
Less: Pledged cash and bank balance and time &, : E#XIFIR & MIRTTA#H
deposits: NEEIFR
Pledged time deposits for bills payable MENZEDERL
TFHEITFER (378,137) (141,181)
Pledged time deposits for bank loans FLIRITERE TR
EHER (93,871) (100,000)
Pledged time deposits for L/C and others S R M E A DA
TE BT (27,338) (12175)
Pledged for environmental improvement FIRF o E B IR = (5483)
Cash and cash equivalents ReNREEEY 884,448 346,151
N
Company
KAT
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AREBFT
Cash and bank balances R RIRTTHES 16,086 7,549
]

At 31 December 2019, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to RMB863,666,000 (2018: RMB337,267,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—8 ' UAE
BT ENAEER S RIBRITEBEIA
R #863666000TT(ZF—N\F: AR
337,267,0007C) - ARBIWTAIEAREIREA
HME® - A - BEBEPEAHINEE
Bl K 45 0E - EE RMEEEETE - A
SEEE B BEREETINEEBHIRT
BARBHBABEME -

RITF IR AT RITF R R FEYFE
BEFE - RBEBHFEAN T —BE=
Az BRI 8 - REAREERNRFAR
SHRRME - Wiks B B EHTEHFRF
KEREAE o SRITERREEAEFERIF
IAMEER] SEF T B R R 8RR TT ©
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26. TRADE PAYABLES 26. BEFEMARIE

An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

LSRN RERRE R ROIRE DT (R
BEZEHE)WMT :

Group

rEE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT ARETIT
Within 1 month TE A AR 157,435 141,879
110 3 months 12 3@ A 92,956 58,442
3to 6 months 3Z6MEA 51,156 40,331
610 12 months 621218 A 42,167 22,249
Over 12 months 12{E A LA E 22,922 19,924
366,636 282,825

]

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on
terms of 30 to 90 days. Trade payables are denominated in RMB.

27. BILLS PAYABLE

The Group’s bills payable have an average maturity period of 180 days and
are non-interest-bearing. Bills payable are denominated in RMB and are
secured by time deposits of RMB378,137,000 (2018: RMB141,181,000) (Note
25).

I ENFORAEREN —MIN30E90 AR
TBE - BFEMIBUAAREE -

BARE

AEBMEMNZEFHR 1808 AEIE -
BAGRE - BENEBUAREE WA
FHERAR® 378137000 ( Z & — )\
&0 ARM141,181,00070 ) I (MI5E25) ©

27.

28. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. EETERARHEMENIE
Group
rEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETIT
Current: ENER :
Accruals FEEE R
Accrued expenses FERTHIS 224,938 267,946
Accruals for construction costs and purchases EREAMEEYE BB
of items of property, plant and equipment K& EIE B B s E A 472,008 637,038
696,946 904,984
|
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28. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 28. MESERAREAEMSRE &)
Group
rEH
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETFT
Current (continued): BIHEA (4&) :
Other payables HAb R RIE
VAT and other operating tax payables AR R H A A E TR 18,405 11,200
Tender deposits BiEiL e 151,992 96,327
Others HAth 224,450 149,334
394,847 256,861
Total accruals and other payables (current) FERTE A R E A R FRIE
#EEORE) 1,091,793 1,161,845
Contract liabilities aHaE 582,181 689,951
]
Non-current: FEBNHER -
Other payables related to the construction of BERWME - REREE
property, plant and equipment 2 E bR FOR 107,019 3618
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R H A e 508
Long-term borrowing from third parties F=FRHEE = 20,000
Total accruals and other payables (non-current) — FEFTE FA K HAbFE(S FRIAARER
(FERE) 107,019 23618
I
Company
KATH
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREBFT
Current: ENER :
Accruals FEEtER
Accrued expenses FEHFY 24,695 27,631
N
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of six {HJFEH RIB AR L - FHFE A NE

months.

Contract liabilities primarily relate to the Group'’s obligation to transfer
goods to customers for which the Group has received advances from
customers. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue as the Group

performs under the contract.

Zm

EHNABETERAEERASED WX

FfE
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28. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 28. EFFEAREMESRUE (E)
AT BT A EERRMASEE :

Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from:

Company
¥ NN
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETIT
Amount included in contract liabilities at the SFAFEVENAGE A
beginning of the year 679,619 790,230
|
29. DEFERRED GRANTS 29. EEMEL
Group
rEE
2019 2018
—EB-hEF —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREETFIT
Cost: PR
At 1 January R—A—H 129,312 126,676
Acquisition of subsidiaries W Bk B A 7] 5,407 906
Received during the year FAUER 7,030 1,730
Refund of deferred grant RIBIEERHEL (22,790) -
At 31 December W+—A=+—H 118,959 129,312
Accumulated amortisation: FEHE
At 1 January Kn—H—H 33,679 26,746
Amortisation during the year FNEH 8,051 6,933
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 41,730 33,679
Net carrying amount: AREHE -
Current D 7,976 5443
Non-current JEmE 69,253 90,190
77,229 95,633
]

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, deferred grants related —NF+-A=t+—8BE=_ZE—N
to government grants were given to the Group for the construction of ~ F+ZA=+—H ' NEBEEREKFT
production plants and installation and building of machinery to implement AL AR EERMAL - AEREERE
energy-saving production methods and to reduce production cost. They RER MBS - BRETEAEIR
are amortised over the useful lives of the related items of property, plant HEEFANRBEEEKRAS  WIREEBEY
and equipment. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies 3 * /B NMaXHEIE B H A {2 A F BIEESH -

relating to these grants. During the year, aggregate government grants of RSB B Z S AL B AR R BITIR M

RMB12,437,000 (2018: RMB2,636,000) were received by the Group. HHAEIE - RFEA - BFENASEER
FEHEARE1243700T (=T — )\ F -
AR 2,636,000 7T) ROERL ©
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30. LOANS FROM A NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

30. FEREZEN

Group
rEE
2019 2018
—g-nf TN\
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETTT
Loans from a non-controlling interest IR E R 48,670 75,500
Less: N
Current portion BNEAER 7 (25,000) (50,500)
Non-current portion FERNEREE 23,670 25,000
|

The loans from a non-controlling interest are both unsecured, with interest
bearing at 4.75% and Nil per annum respectively. One is granted for a term
of two years from 26 December 2018, and the other is granted without
repayment date in 2019. According to the payment terms of the loan
agreement between the parties, RMB25,000,000 (2018: RMB50,500,000) is
expected to be repaid within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period and is considered as current liability as at 31 December 2019.

IR E T BERE - DRREF
E475% REFE - —FEREFRNEHR
B N\F+_A-+HELEHW
FRBSEREFR-_Z—NFEEE
HE - BIBEF T LMERBZEO i
o ARME 25000000 (ZF—N\F : A
E%wwmmn)ﬁ%mﬁ%%ﬁfé
+—EAAREENMPN _E—NF+ A
=+ —HERERBEE -
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. FFEEITRAEMMER
BORROWINGS
2019 2018
“E-NE ZE-\E
Contractual Contractual
EEHE Maturity RMB'000 interest ate Maturity RMB00
Group 15E ailE 3R ARETT RS 55 NRBTT
Current ik
Bankloans BIER
-secured -EHA 4.35%-6.53% 2020 244223 4.35%-6.58% 2019 200428
2 I ik
- Unsecured = i 3.63%6.18% 2020 2,346,561 400%-600% 2019 2481797
It 2 i ik
Loanfom the government ~ BIFER
- unsecured -BER Floating rate at 2020 909 -
0.3%above —E-BE
the market prime
lending rate
FBRE
(BRTEER
BEERZ03%)
Loans from easing company/ ~~ ELFEF/EXH 475% 2020 182476 475% 2019 0
finance lease payables HERE ZECEF oy 2
2,774,169 2774452
Non-current E k|
Bankloans BIER
- secured -BER 10,000 -
- unsecured -EA 4.75%-6.18% 2021 3,413,988 450%-6.18% 2020 2422331
t02026 102022
“3--F% “Eo5FR
ZECNE S
Loanfiomthe qoverment ~ BURER
- Unsecured - R - Floating rate at 200 1818
03% above ZECEE
the market prime
lending rate
e
(BRTAER
HERE03m)
Loansfiom leasngcompany ~ EATEE/ RN 475% 2021102022 315099 47% 20010201 144290
finance lease payables HEHE 8--£% “To%5E
—E-CE 3k
3,739,087 2568439
6,513,256 5342891
|
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31.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

31.

FTERIT R ALK ()

Group
rEE
2018
—E-N\F
RMB'000
AREETIT
Analysed into: O
Bank loans repayable: JEEERITER -
Within one year or on demand NS EERSIIS 2,590,784 2,682,225
In the second year REZF 2,486,204 1,852,543
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZZFRF
(BEEEMF) 896,784 569,788
Beyond five years AFLAIE 41,000 -
6,014,772 5,104,556
Loan from the government: BIFER
Within one year or on demand R —F NSRBI 909 -
In the second year RE—F - 1,818
9209 1818
Loans from leasing company/finance lease MERRER
payables EZ R ERS
Within one year or on demand S —EE RS A 3 ANy 182,476 92,227
In the second year REZF 119,355 99,782
In the third to fifth years, inclusive REZZFRF
(BEEEMF) 195,744 44,508
497,575 236,517
6,513,256 5,342,891
I

Notes: BfRE -

(@) The Group’s bank facilities amounting to RMB9,220,600,000 (2018: @) ANEE AR 92206000007 (=ZF— N
RMB9,768,305,700), of which RMB5,034,545,000 (2018: RMB5,913,805,000) had F: ANR¥97683057007T) B IR 1T @ &
been utilised as at the end of the reporting period, are unsecured. 2 Hep ARM5,034,545000 T (ZF— )\

F: AR¥59138050007T) R HIARDE
BEA - HEEA -
(b) The Group's bank loans of RMB254,223,000 (2018: RMB24,000,000) are secured (b) REEEIRITERARYE 254,223,0007T( =

loan. Among of which, the current loans amounting to RMB34,000,000 and non-
current loans amounting to RMB10,000,000.00 are guaranteed by the related
companies and a third party, Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment Co,, Ltd,
Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co., Ltd and Henan Shenleng New Energy
Development Co,, LTD. The current bank loans amounting to RMB76,353,000 and
RMB93,870,000 are secured by the pledge of certain of the Group’s bill receivable
and time deposits amounting to RMB76,353,000 and RMB93,870,000 respectively.
Besides, the current bank loans amounting to RMB20,000,000 are guaranteed
by property, plant and equipment of RMB147,489,000; The rest of loans with the
amount of RMB30,000,000 are secured by juridical persons.

T — \F : AREE 24,00000070) AEEIHE
Bike Hep - BIEAE 3R A K % 34,000,000
JCE IE BB E 5 A R #510,000,000.00 7T £
RAEE N B R B = T O E M TR
BRAR A LEMETEBBRAR
Mo mRRFEERFE R R D A IR E
R o BIHRER 7T B X A R 76,353,000 7T £
A R 15 93,870,000 7T LA 7N £2 [ & T fE g 2=
BERTEHEFERARE 76353000 TE AR
93,870,000 TLVEEHR o N - BNERERITE
AR EE 20,000,000 70 A R # 147,489,000
TR - BB MEREREER  EHRE
FRAREE 30,000,000 7T A ATRELIER ©
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. FFERITREMER(E)
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

© The loans from leasing company of RMB497,575,000 (2018: RMB236,517,000) are (© FEQARBERARK497575000 (= F
secured by certain of the Group's items of property, plant and equipment. —N\F: ARM236517,0007T) A A& E
ETWE  BFEREFEEREER -

() Balance of RMB281,141,000 (2018: RMB256,546,000) are denominated in United () ERARBE281,141,000( ZFE— NF ¢

States dollars ("USD") as at the end of the reporting period. All remaining AR5 256,546,0007T ) R E BAR AE T
borrowings are in RMB. (TETDEHE - BB TEXRAUARE

FHE °
() There was no bank loan (2018: Nil) with restricted clauses that the Bank has the () BERTER(ZE—NE: B)HAEZR
right to accelerate the maturity of the loans. The Group did not classify the loans FER - BNERIT B MNERZEERENE -
in current portion of bank loans as at 31 December 2019. RZZ-NFE+_A=+—8 KEEK

ZEEFDBRRITER S -

2019 2018
—3-hE “TNE

Contractual Contractual
interest rate Maturity RMB’000 interest rate Maturity RMB'000
Company KR RHFI= Ep ]! ARETT BHF= FI8R ARETL
Current e
Bankloans RITER
- unsecured - A LIBOR +1.20% 2020 181,381 -
[CECGITE S
£ +1.20%
Non-current FRE
Bank loans RITER
— unsecured _EEE 5 LIBOR +1.20% 2020 178443
181,381 178443
I

(@) The bank loans of RMB181,381,000 (2018: RMB178,443,000) are denominated in (@) RITEHARE 181,381,000 ( ZF— )\
United States dollars (“USD") as at the end of the reporting period. F 0 AR 178,443,000 7T ) A &5 HA K A
E(ESHIEEEE
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. FFERTREMGSR(E&)
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
A reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as follows: MEETBELECBEZHEROT ¢
Non cash changes
FREEE
Acquisition of Foreign
subsidiaries exchange
2018 Cash flows Wi  movement Other 2019
Group rEE —T)N\E HenE HEAHE ER2H il —E-hEF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETT ARETT RBEERD
Loans froma Non-controlling ~ JEERRAEZS B2k
interest
—current -RE 50,500 (50,500) - - 25,000 25,000
-non-current -3ERE 25,000 23670 - - (25,000) 23,670
Interest-bearing bankand other 5T B8R1T R EME
borrowings
—current - 2,774,452 (995,926) 118,000 (13557) 891,200 2,774,169
-non-current -3 2568439 2,190439 81,000 - (1100791) 3,739,087
Bonds payable ERREER
~current - e - - - - 500,000 500,000
-non-current -3 692,833 194,000 - - (498,136) 388,697
Total st 6,111,224 1,361,683 199,000 (13557) (207,727) 7,450,623
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

31. FTRBITREAMMER (&)

Non cash changes

FReEY
Acquisition of Foreign
subsidiaries exchange
2017 Cashflows U movement Other 2018
Group FEE —E—tF Benie HEAR 32k i —T-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETRT
Loans from a Non-controlling IR ERER
interest
—current ) 24750 25,750 - - - 50,500
-non-current -FRE 50,500 (25,500) - - - 25,000
Interest-bearing bank and other 5+ B8R 1T R E A& %
borrowings
~current - g 1,646,112 (264519) 24,000 27,244 1,341,615 2,774452
~non-current - JERE 2965015 939,047 - 343 (1335966) 2568439
Bonds payable [ERRIEER
—current - 600,000 (600,000) - - - -
-non-current -FRE 500,000 191507 - - 1326 692,833
Total st 5786377 266,285 24,000 27587 6,975 6,111,224

The ‘other’ column relates to reclassification of non-current portion of loans
and borrowings including obligations under finance leases due to passage

[HAb | —FIRARREBERT I BERL
AR (BHERERE

EIE) 2 IERBIE D FE

of time, interest accretion on bonds payable and reclassification of finance ~ TEZFEFEIEIN N B EHE RN FHIAE
lease payables to lease liabilities. NEREEBERM -
32. PROVISION FOR REHABILITATION 32. REEE
Group
TEH
2019 2018
—E-hF —N\%
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREF T
At the beginning of year REA] 23,836
Additions NE 440 23,836
At the end of year RER 24,276 23,836
|
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32. PROVISION FOR REHABILITATION (CONTINUED)

A provision for rehabilitation is mainly recognised for the present value of
estimated costs to be incurred in complying with the Group's obligations
for the closure and environmental restoration and clean-up on completion
of the Group’s mining activities. These costs are expected to be incurred
on mine closure, based on the estimated rehabilitation expenditures
at the mine when the mining licence expires, and are discounted at a

32. xEHHE (&)

YRS B = B IR IR AR BN ST R AN 5 [ %
A B B 1T R R SRR BB I ) &
B E LR EFT AR IR EER o RER
TR A) 78 2 HARF A LU O R ETIRIE SO M 7%
ERATRR AR EL - WIZE
E_T-NF+ZRA=1+—HIEFENH

discount rate of 4.90% for the year ended 31 December 2019. Changes IR &E4.90%#13R o RER K & E Al o2 & ¥ 5%
in assumptions could significantly affect these estimates. Over time, the ~ FfhETELEATE - BERENER

discounted provision is increased for the change in the present value
based on the discount rate that reflects current market assessments and
risks specific to the provision. The periodic unwinding of the discount is

TSR SRR B T8 3P R
R BB RITIR % B E R BT 00 -
R BT R B 25 W A BB )

recognised in profit or loss as part of interest expenses. — &5 o
33. BONDS PAYABLE 33. BBERES
Group
REE
2019 2018
S —EN\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Analysed into amount repayable: DM REN S
Within one year —FR 500,000 -
In the second year RE-F - 500,000
In the third year RE=F 194,311 -
In the fourth year REMEF 194,386 -
In the fifth year RERSF - 192,833
888,697 692,833
I

The bonds of RMB500,000,000 and RMB200,000,000 issued in 2017 and
2018 have a maturity term of within three years and five years respectively,
bear fixed interest rates of 7% and 6.98% per annum. In November 2019,
the Group issued a bond of RMB200,000,000 with a maturity term of within
3 years and a fixed interest rate of 5.7%.

RIEBE—tFR T \FETHARE
500,000,000 7T K2 A R & 200,000,000 7T #) f&
FORIRN=ZFERAFAEE  ZEEFF
7% K%698%FT B c RZTE—NF+—
B AREEZETT AR 200,000,000 7T A E

% BIBMEMAZE  EEFHES%
e
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 21 December 2011, the Company issued RMB denominated convertible
bonds with a nominal value of RMB324,366,000. There was no movement
during the year. Convertible bonds interest of 4.5% per annum is payable
in cash annually in arrears on the anniversary of the issue date (i.e., 21
December 2011) in each year, commencing on the first anniversary of the
issue date, which is accrued and paid through the transfer from retained
profits of the Group. The bonds are convertible into ordinary shares of the
Company at the option of the bondholder at the initial conversion price
of approximately RMB1.84 per share any time after the issuance of the
convertible bonds. While the convertible bonds bear interest at 4.5% per
annum, the Company may, at its sole discretion, elect to defer the interest
pursuant to the terms of the convertible bonds.

Unless previously redeemed, purchased and cancelled or converted, all the
convertible bonds outstanding shall be converted into ordinary shares of
the Company on the fifth anniversary of the date of issue. On 14 December
2016, the Company and the bondholder agreed to extend the maturity
date to 21 December 2018 and reduced the interest rate to 2% per annum.

The convertible bonds are redeemable at the option of the holder of
the convertible bonds only upon the occurrence of a winding-up (any
step taken by any person at the sole election of the Company not under
direction of any third party, including judicial or regulatory) with a view to
the voluntary winding-up or dissolution or administration of any group
companies (including but not limited to a members’ voluntary solvent
winding-up), or any group companies cease or threaten to cease to carry
on all or substantially all of its business or operations) at a redemption price
which shall be equivalent to the aggregate of the outstanding principal
amount of the convertible bonds together with a redemption premium of
8.0% per annum on the outstanding principal amount, up to the date fixed
for redemption. In the opinion of the directors, the Company is able to defer
or control the redemption of the principal, the payment of bond interest
and other cash payments to the bondholder. Accordingly, the convertible
bonds are classified as equity instruments.

In January, February and December 2018, the convertible bonds were
converted into 176,000,000 ordinary shares with a conversion unit price of
RMB1.84, and resulting in an increase in paid-in capital of RMB322,436,000.
In 2018, RMB5,914,000 was accrued and paid to bondholder.
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34, TABARESH

RZE——FF+_A=+—H ARFS
BHTEEA AR 324366000 TTHIAAR
BETENIBRRES - NEEMEZD -
FRERASn A RBRESFERESF(BET
HEAE —BEFRGK) BTHHENI 2T —
FH+ZAZ+—H)BFURSKRFEX
- BREEASERE R NEBE X
Tt o RABEFFAEATRITBRERES
BIBRENESRVREHREHARE
184 T ESFER AL B - AR AR
BHILETF45%: 8 - RIBATRRESE
o ARR ] EERNERBRESES -

FRBERED - BEE RBHK BRI - P
BREEVBRRESFENZEITAHNNER
ERFBEMARARERR -R-2F—X
FT-_A+THB A2FEEHZFAA
RERIBHEERE-_ZT-N\F+_H
—t+—B - WHFNREE2% -

AR E A ARE R B A B8 (E
ATEARR A 2ERE(WIERBEMSE
ZHER) KBEMRAKEEREE - A
g SRR B IR EBKE AR
(BREETERKENRBIER) » T
MEBQRKIEHEE R IEERL IR
REBD EF AL EVES)) - A AR ERFE
EABEZRELNE(EREEESENRER
JEEERIAE  JRBREFREERNSE
FAREERSEFF0NNERGE)ER -
BEERA ARE A EESKITEFIAS/E
B - MEHFFE ANGESFF SRR EA
MR - ALt - TR ESFSBEARA
TH-

RZE—NF—A - ZAKRt+=AH #
% 1& 25 2 #8 /5 176,000,000 I 3@ A% - iR
BEAAREE 1847 BRHUE AL M
AR®E3224360007C c RZZF—/)\F + [
SHEEF B A AR 322,436,000 (—ZE— N\
F 0 AR591400070) B F1EHFF
BA -



35. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as

follows:

Group
.

35.

T~

Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition of
subsidiaries
s B et BB
RREEN
NP ERE
(note a)
(Ffz£a)
RMB’000
ARBTR

I SERLIE
AERREERAREMNEEZ BN

Withholding
tax

FAHHIE
(note b)
(MizEDb)
RMB’000
AR%T

Total
et

RMB’000
ARMT T

At 1January 2018 RZE—)\F—H—H 20,895 16,044 36,939
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FREBREENR . (GFA) B

to profit or loss during the year AESERIA (FHRE11)

(Note 11) (1,040) (6,914) (7,954)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 RZE—NF+HA=*+—H

January 2019 ERZFE—NF—H—H 22,443 9,130 31,573
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FREBEIRINLR (GEA) K

to profit or loss during the year EERIA (MR 1)

(Note 11) (1,468) 18,878 (17,410)
Acquisition of subsidiaries I BT A R) (MI7E 38(a))

(Note 38(a)) 3,732 - 3,732
At 31 December 2019 R_ZE—-—NFt+-_H=+—H 24,707 28,008 52,715

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Group
REE

EERIREE

Loss available
for offsetting
against future
taxable profits
HSHAR IR
A Z R E A
HIERE
(note ¢)
(MizEc)
RMB’000
AR®T T

Deductible
temporary

differences

RS ER =8

RMB'000
ARBT T

Total
et

RMB'000
ARBT T

At 1 January 2018 RZE—NF—H—H 8,593 14,533 23,126
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FREBZEEMRGTA) K

to profit or loss during the year EIERTE (MR 11)

(Note 11) (1,502) 61,698 (60,196)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 RZE—NF+—HA=+—H

January 2019 ERZFE—NF—H—H 7,091 76,231 83,322
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FREBZENS, GEA)H

to profit or loss during the year EIERIR (M7 11)

(Note 11) 26,565 (16,027) 10,538
At 31 December 2019 R-FE-NF+-_A=1+—H 33,656 60,204 93,860
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35. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 35. JEGEBIE ()
Notes: Fif5E
(@) Deferred tax liabilities arising from fair value adjustments upon acquisitions of (@) WHENBAREEN AT ERARMEED
subsidiaries represent the deferred tax liabilities on the fair value uplift of the net REREBEEEE-_ZT—%F  —ZF—1
tangible assets owned by the subsidiaries, arising in 2011, 2015, 2018 and 2019 F _E-NER_ZE-NFEENBER
The deferred tax liabilities are amortised to the profit or loss over the estimated AR B AEFEGMAELEHIES
useful lives of related assets. & o RIERIBEE I ABEEE MG ERA
FEIERREY o
(b) Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied (b) BRIEPRCEMESRE M- LF
on dividends declared to foreign investors from foreign investment enterprises TZR=+—B%& 2B B AR L
established in Mainland China for earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower RN IR AR EREIMEEETRAR
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland B EU 0% K FEHFIE © i B A
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group made provision for ,\/59|\Tx,§%ﬁ'] AEREIRR] A IS IRA -
deferred tax liabilities on withholding tax at 10% of the forecasted dividend pay- AIREMTEINB R AT Re = iER - A5ER
out of the earnings of all its PRC subsidiaries because the directors believe that TR E R B B A R 8Y A 2R TEORI SR
the PRC subsidiaries would pay out all their earnings as dividends. AR B 10% BERIERIE B (EEHR A B
B EREFRA/TEMBRAR A EEE
PA BAVERIR BIRE
(©) Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the tax losses (© AERAREEBNRELIHIBEESEAA
amounted to RMB36,762,000 (2018: RMB77,916,000) as in the opinion of the R#36762000L( = —NF: AR
directors, it is uncertain whether sufficient future taxable profits will be available 77,9160007C) * R THEEARAKREE
against which the tax losses can be utilised. 76 2 B AR B a A A R B BIE SIS -
36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. MRA
Number of ordinary shares Amount
HERHE o

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%ETR ARETFT

Issued and fully paid BT RAE 1,171,621,000 1,171,621,000 1,194,686 1,194,686*

*

Equivalent to Singapore dollars (“SGD") 230,906,000 in 2019 and SGD 238,937,000
in 2018.

*

T

— JUF #8 & 7 230,906,000 7 A0
aFmETl) ZE—N\FHER

238,937,000 %7 h3K TT ©
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36. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows:

36. B ()
ARFRA BB ELIT -

Number of Share

shares in issue capital

ERITRAEE [} &

RMB'000

ARET T

At 1 January 2018 R-—ZE—)\F—H—H 995,736,000 872,579

Convertible bonds converted into shares Al E A EIR AR D

(note 34) (Mf7E34) 176,000,000 322436

Shares repurchased and cancelled [B108 N2 7 S5 A A (D (115,000) (329)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZE-N\F+=ZA=+—H

M=ZFT—hF—H—H 1,171,621,000 1,194,686

At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+-A=+—H 1,171,621,000 1,194,686

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when
declared by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share
without restrictions. The ordinary shares have no par value.

37. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

In accordance with the Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise Law applicable
to the subsidiaries in the PRC, the subsidiaries are required to make
appropriations to the Statutory Reserve Fund (the “SRF"). At least 10% of
the after tax profits as determined in accordance with the applicable PRC
accounting standards and regulations must be allocated to the SRF until
the cumulative total of the SRF reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered
capital. Subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities, the SRF may
be used to offset any accumulated losses or increase the registered capital
of the subsidiaries. The SRF is not available for dividend distribution to
shareholders.

The special reserve refers to the safety fund accrued but not yet used for
the coal mining operations.

In 2019, other reserve mainly arises from capital contribution from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries amounting to RMB187,174,000
and charged with acquisition of non-controlling interest shares of Xinjiang
Xinlianxin Energy Chemical Co., Ltd and Henan Shenleng Energy Co., Ltd
amounting to RMB66,245,000 and RMB4,851,000 respectively.

EREFEANERERARREIRMK
B AT BRI R ERE - E s
EE °

37. f#fE

AEBRAFEMBEFENFRHEEL
EREBH N EREEHRAZS

RBERRNTEMBRFRNINEBELE
e REMBARARREELERHER
(DEEREBEE ] - RIFEMANPEEE
A RO TE MUBR B8 AR ZE 2 10%
BRADBERAERES  EEXTHER
MR ABEEERZENBRREMER
H)50% o AZHERA R BB HLER - JRE R
B AEREEA R EEIIENZSE
MEARNEMER - XERFBETAA
RABRIEL IR E DI ©

5 I e 5 1 R R R PR AR 2 P R ETHE i R 32
RHREES -

RZZE-—NF HtFEHEZERENE
N B IEFERR B ER A E B AR5 187,174,000
TC - U ERIBR BB E O E L RER(ETHE
R~ B) ELA R OB IOFR R BEIRIRID B R A
RIMSEIERRERR D - 2O AARE
66,245,000 70 £ A R ¥ 4,851,000 7T °
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37. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

In 2018, other reserve mainly arose from transformation of joint stock
system of a subsidiary based on net assets with limited restriction to
distribution amounting to RMB2,034,019,000.

38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
38 (A) INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

ACQUISITION OF HENAN SHENLENG ENERGY CO LTD ("SHENLENG
ENERGY")

In 2018, the Group acquired 27% equity shares in Henan Xinlianxin
Shenleng Energy Co Ltd ("Shenleng Energy”). The investment was recorded
as an investment in associate with carrying value of RMB95,157,000 as at 31
December 2018 (Note 38(b).

On 25 February 2019, the Group acquired additional shares in Shenleng
Energy for consideration amounted to RMB 19,806,000 and equity shares in
Shengleng Energy totalled 32.45%.

On 27 April 2019, Henan Xinlianxin (subsidiary of the Group) and
Henan Shenleng New Energy Development co., LTD. (“Shenleng New
Development”) signed a consensus agreement, which Shenleng New
Development entrust its 19.318% voting rights in Shenleng Energy to
Henan Xinlianxin without compensation. In accordance with the provisions
of the consensus agreement together with its shareholding in Shenleng
Energy, Henan Xinlianxin owns 51.77% of the voting rights in Shenleng
Energy. Accordingly, the Group recognised Shenleng Energy as a subsidiary
on 27 April 2019.

Subsequently in September 2019, the Group acquired the 19.318% shares
in Shenleng Energy from Shenleng New Development and additional
shares from other shareholders for total consideration amounted to
RMB85,874,000 and the Group's equity shares in Shenleng Energy totalled
53.91%. These transactions were accounted for as transactions with non-
controlling interests.

Shenleng Energy is engaged in the manufacturing and trading of carbon
dioxide and carbon monoxide. Further details of the transaction are
included in note 45(d) to the financial statements. The acquisition was made
as part of the Group’s strategy to expand its market share of manufacture
and trading of Carbon dioxide and carbon monoxide.
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37. f##E(E)

RZZE—N\F - EffEEeTERGHE
NAIRBEERD KRBRHEEFBARE
2,034,019,000 JTHIAZ 17 Hll2kiE o

38. XEBEHt
38 (A) RMIBARIRE
W B R R 0 RS BER IR B TR A A

(MRZ8EIR])

RZE—N\F » NEBWEEOELR
REERRMDBRAR (NFEREEIR]) 27% K
Pt o ZBBER T NEFE+_A=+—
HAREAREE R AR 95,157,000 TTH
B & AR E (MIEE38(b)) ©

R-ZZBE-NE-_A=-+TH  REFK
B AR 19,806,000 TLUEE R /< BETREBINIR
D WHRREERISERIES ££3245% ©

RZZE—HREMA=++8  SAELEN
(KREBEMBAR)EARERR TR
BRAR(DFERFAEIRAE ) HE—EHL
B EPRRFRRARBEMER
R BEIR19318% A 1% R L 5845 )0 Fg /L i
o MBHREE - BERXERENRT R
B RRRERMAE - AR LELES
RIRBEIRS1.77% BIIS 2HE o At - ANEE
R-ZE—HENA -+t BBEATREER
BHBAT] -

HER-_ZT—NFNA AEBUERE
AR EE 85,874,000 JT[A) 5% /% 31 BETR 5 35 U BB
TR BENR19318% HY IR 1D M B 4th AR SR BE
BHMRG, - MAEEFERLERA K
5391% KX - ZER Z W BEF T
IR RS °

RRRERIEE A LR E — S LR A
MIHE - ZRPHE— T H TN H R
FOFFEA5(d) o BERKBRAEBREA R
R 8 — R LA A E M 35 & T I5 1) BBk
B —&kD °
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 38. XKEH(HE)
38 (A) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 38 (A) RME A RIRE (&)
ACQUISITION OF HENAN SHENLENG ENERGY CO LTD (“SHENLENG WA B DB DR R BERIR D B IR A 7
ENERGY") (CONTINUED) (MERZER]) (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Shenleng Energy as ~ #/2 B8RP WIE B I AT BRI EE R AE
at the date of acquisition were as follows: B AFEWT -
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
RUERERHN
A¥E
Notes RMB'000
BteE ARETFT
Inventories A 5,286
Trade receivables B 5 IR 51,721
Other receivables E bl s 4814
Other current assets HAbRBIEE 180,167
Property, plant and equipment W BB NEE 14 291,744
Prepayment of purchase of property, plant and BEEWE  BELRED
equipment TERFRIR 145,521
Other intangible assets Hth\mpAE 16 9,083
Investment in an associate o= L) /NG| 5,250
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ETEIRIT R EAME R (199,000)
Trade payables & S ENFIE (55,060)
Accruals and other payables FERT B R R E A R FIE (61,732)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBRE 35 (3,732)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRATEFENAIBAFEELE 374,062
Less: Non-controlling interests (67.548%) W FEFERRRE R (67.548%) (252,672)
Net assets acquired FrUiE & B 121,390
Less: Transfer from investment in associate W EEERBEARIRE (117,521)
Bargain on purchase mEBWE 6 3,869
Purchase consideration W (E -
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)
38 (A) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

ACQUISITION OF HENAN SHENLENG ENERGY CO LTD (“SHENLENG
ENERGY") (CONTINUED)

38. XBEHF(E)
38 (A) RMIBARIRE ()

Y b ml B D LR R BE IR D B BR A A
(DR=aER 1) (&)

Effects on cash flows

of the Group
HAEERSRE
V&
Notes RMB'000
BisE AREETIT
Consideration transferred for the acquisition of WEBR S EERNEENRE
Shenleng Energy
Purchase consideration WEERE -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary acquired & : FTUREEMTE A RIMIR S &
REEEY (26,330)
Net cash inflow on acquisition WHERIR 358 (26,330)

The purchase price allocation review is finalised as at 31 January 2019.

TRANSACTION COSTS

There was no transaction costs related to the acquisition recognized in the
Group's profit or loss.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES ACQUIRED

Trade and other receivables acquired comprise of trade and other
receivables with fair values of RMB56,535,000. Their gross amounts are
RMB56,535,000 are expected to be collected.

IMPACT OF THE ACQUISITION ON PROFIT OR LOSS

From the acquisition date, Shenleng Energy has contributed
RMB473,628,000 of revenue and RMB26,745,000 to the Group's profit for
the year. If the business combination had taken place at the beginning
of the year, the revenue from continuing operations would have been
RMB9,145,858,000 and the Group's profit for the year would have been
RMB425,159,000.
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BEE ERIN T —NF—A=1+—
H e e

MERERENZ HAARAEB RS
REER °

PUTB A E 5 N B fE M 50 TR

FT B E 5 M E b fE N ZIA B FE A FE
B AR 56,535,000 TCHIE 5 M b FE X
I8 - H4a4 %8 A R 56,535,000 TLTEET UL
HY

WIESERNTE

BUEE QIR - RReRAANEE TR
FE U AN REE 473,628,000 78 K@ I A R
#26,7450007C c IR EBEHEETF
) REBMBFBELERABHAARE
9,145,858,0007C * MAEBMNFE RmF#E A
AR 425,159,000 7T °



38.

38 (A) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

ACQUISITION OF URUMQI BLACK ECOLOGY TECHNOLOGY CO LTD

("URUMQI BLACK TECHNOLOGY")

On 13 March 2019, the Group acquired a total of 100% of Urumaqi Black
Technology's shares. Urumqi Black Technology's is engaged in the
manufacture and trading of humic acid. Further details of the transaction
are included in Note 45(d) to the financial statements. The acquisition
was made as part of the Group's strategy to expand its market share of
manufacture and trading of humic acid. The purchase consideration for the

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

acquisition was in the form of cash of RMB35,000,000.

38.

WS 6(E)

38 (A) RIMIBARIIRE (&

WESBABRSLEREREEN AR AR

(%)

([SEAEREEREMK])

RZFB-NAF=ZA+T=A AXEEHXKE
BEARERE LR 100% RN - H&
ABEREEERMBRERERNEENSE
5 ° BRARZRE - THBRERTBHRE
BEFE45(d) © thRI R AN S B i KR 1E L
EEMEZMSHERBEN—20 - Wi

MEERE AR S AR 35000000 7T °

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

RUEBRERN

AFE

Notes RMB'000

B AREFT

Other current assets HthmeEh&E 2,772

Property, plant and equipment M - WEREE 14 18,406

Prepayment of purchase of Property, plant and BEME - BE REERD

equipment TEf A 1,100

Right-of-use of assets EREEE 15 15,277
Trade payables, accruals and other payables EZENFIE - BEHERK

H b & 508 (1,881)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAESTEN PR FEERRE 35,674

Net assets acquired Fris e S & E 35,674

Bargain on purchase =B 6 (674)

Purchase consideration WEERE 35,000
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 38. ¥EKEHt(E])

38 (A) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 38 (A) RMIBARIRE ()

ACQUISITION OF URUMQI BLACK ECOLOGY TECHNOLOGY CO LTD WESEAREREERRBE RN BR AT
("URUMQI BLACK TECHNOLOGY")(CONTINUED) ([BBEAEREARER]) (&)

Effects on cash flows

of the Group
HEAEERS
RENSE
Notes RMB'000
B s ARETFT
Consideration transferred for the acquisition of WESEAREZGERERIEN
Urumgqi Black Technology EEMXRE
Purchase consideration to be satisfied by cash BRI NNBEERE 35,000
Less: Deferred cash settlement RS EE (2,000)
33,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary acquired 38 : FTHEEH B A MR & &
ReEEY (43)
Net cash outflow on acquisition WEERIR R FEE 32,957
The purchase price allocation review is finalised as at 20 September 2019. BEEIRERIR_T—NFNLA=TH
TERK ©
TRANSACTION COSTS DN
There was no transaction costs related to the acquisition recognized in the — HEKEHEBNZ SR AR R EENIBR
Group's profit or loss. PR ©
IMPACT OF THE ACQUISITION ON PROFIT OR LOSS W BEM T E

From the acquisition date, Urumai Black Technology has contributed BUIEHER  SEBABERECERRER
RMB67,019,000 of revenue and RMB6,240,000 to the Group's profit for REBBFHMFEVRAAR 67,019,000 7T %
the year. If the business combination had taken place at the beginning & Il A R# 6,240,000 7T * JARE & 0 %
of the year, the revenue from continuing operations would have been EEFY - AEERNFELEWAKAA
RMB8,928,255,000 and the Group's profit for the year would have been R #8,928,2550007T * A~ 5 B &) F 8 %
RMB412,993,000. R AR 412,993,000 7T ©
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 38. ¥EKEHt(E])
8 (B) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES B) RE¢=NFIIRE
The Group's investments in associates are summarised below: REEREE A RIRERMMT
Group
AEH

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARETTT

Jiujiang Pengcheng Port Co, Ltd ( “Pengcheng”) JUTIEHEOABR A

=Z0) 11,947 -
Henan Lingtong Xinlianxin Energy Co, Ltd /—JﬁmL/L\ DEERBRA

(“Lingtong”™) ([Em ) 5,046 -
Henan Xinlianxin Shenleng Energy Co, Ltd AR LMER R RERIR D
(“Shenleng Energy”) (Note 38 (a)) BRAB(RZEEIR])

(B3 38()) - 95,157

16,993 95,157

N
In 2019, the Group disposed 70% shares of Jiujiang Pengcheng Port RZZE—NEF  AEEEE T UIEZHE
(“Pengcheng”). Accordingly, Pengcheng becomes an associate during the A (T2 1) 70% 8RR o B - ZHRF
year. N B & R A] °
Aggregate information about the Group's investments in associates thatare A RIAE BB L QA FIRE GEARIE LX)
not individually material are as follows: BAREE BRI T -
Group
EE

2019 2018

—s-nE s

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR AREBFT

Total comprehensive income net of tax 2HINHBEHRTIEE (260) 31,971

L]
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Notes to Financial Statements
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 38. ¥EKEHt(E])
38 (B) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 38 (B) REEZ N TIIRE (88)

The summarised financial information in respect of Lingtong and
Pengcheng, based on its IFRS financial statements and a reconciliation
with the carrying amount of the investment in the consolidated financial

statements are as follows:

R IEE BRI 15 3R

RO B 75 R A K
HEAPBHRATREREENYER &
REBLZHROTHERBRELT

Summarised statement of financial position B AR R R A

2019

—E-hEF

RMB’000

Lingtong B AR®T T
Inventories FE 485
Trade receivables B ZEWRIE 1,546
Other receivables E At FEYGRIE 120
Other current assets HARB) & E 741
Property, plant and equipment Y%~ BB M 14,261
Trade payables 2 SRR FIE (2,162)
Accruals and other payables FEGH & R R E A FE T RIA (574)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRATFEFENAIBNFEELE 14,417
Proportion of the Group's ownership AREBEBEERENLL X 35%
Group's share of net assets AEEEGFEE 5,046

|

2019

—E-hEF

RMB’000

Pengcheng £ ARETT
Other receivables E At EHRIE 200
Other current assets Himeh & e 4,504
Property, plant and equipment W BB NEE 11,293
Accruals and other payables JEETE A N H At FE A RIE (4,050)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRATEFAENAIHBNFEELE 11,947
Proportion of the Group's ownership NEBEEEREML X 100%
Group’s share of net assets AEEELFE 11,947

|
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 38. ¥EKEHt(E])
38 (C) DISPOSAL OF OWNERSHIP IN INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARY, 38(C) HEMBLAREEREERZM T X
WITHOUT LOSS OF CONTROL LR

On 30 September 2019, the Group disposed of a 9.479% equity interest in
Henan XLX. Following the disposal, the Group still controls Henan XLX and
its subsidiaries, retaining 78.38% of the ownership interests. The transaction
has been accounted for as an equity transaction with non-controlling
interests, resulting in:

RZZE-AFELA=TH AEFLEEN
FA/OMELN0479% I IRE - NER - ANEE
sl EL R EH B AR - WIREA
7838% MUME B EMED - MR BHENEAIEE
IEHER MR ER AR - R -

2019
=F-NF

RMB’000
ARMT T

Proceeds from sale of ownership interest HEEEERSITSIUE 796,500

Less: Net assets attribution to NCI B BB IR RN FEE (609,326)

Increase in equity attributable to parent entity SRBNN AR BB ERIE M 187,174
|

On 30 November 2018, the Group disposed of a 12.14% equity interest in
Henan XLX. Following the disposal, the Group still controls Henan XLX and
its subsidiaries, retaining 87.86% of the ownership interests. The transaction
has been accounted for as an equity transaction with non-controlling
interests, resulting in:

R-ZE—N\E+—F=+H KAEFLE
TR ED 12.14% FOIRRE o (HER 0 AE
sl EOELRENB AR - R
R 8786% MIEB R - ZRHEIERIE
SR RER S AR -

2018

—E-N\F

RMB’000

ARTR

Proceeds from sale of ownership interest HEEEEERPTSEUE 600,146
Less: Net assets attribution to NC| B BB IR RN FEE (573,743)
Increase in equity attributable to parent entity SRENE AR B BRI ERIE N 26,403

|
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 38. HXEKEH(HE)

38 (D) MATERIAL PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES 38 (D) ERMOHEANME R

Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non-controlling BEERFTHERANB AR EE
interests is provided below: BT

Proportion of equity interest held by non-controlling interests: FEVEAR M 2 FTHF AR AE L B

Country of incorporation

Name and operation 2018
18 MR R EERR —E-N\F
Henan Xinlianxin Fertiliser Co,, Ltd. Mainland China,
A EOEME BT EEE D Manufacture and trading of fertiliser
BRAA] BN - (LB EEFE S 78.37% 87.86%
|
Accumulated balances of material non-controlling interest: BARIIERER A RETEREE -
2019 2018
S —T %
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETFT
Henan Xinlianxin Fertiliser Co,, Ltd. ARELEMEE T EEERGD
BRAA 1,164,985 536,944
L]
Profit allocated to material non-controlling interest: DA E R IFERR RS A A A
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T AREETIT
Henan Xinlianxin Fertiliser Co, Ltd. AENBIMEET 2L E/RRG
BRAF 48,106 (979)

The summarised financial information of these subsidiaries is provided ZEWNBRATINMBEERBEZNT - 2&
below. This information is based on amounts before inter-company — RERBRARIEEEF 2 S8 °
eliminations.
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 38. EBEO(E)
8 (D) MATERIAL PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) D) EXMBLEEHMHME LR (B)
Summarised statement of profit or loss for 2019: “E-NFIERERHE
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFE DA 9,421,902
Cost of sales THEA (7,231,098)
Gross profit EF 2,190,804
Profit before tax BRBLAT A 519,830
Income tax FriSHi 66,858
Profit for the year from continuing operations BEREEENEERT 452,972
Total comprehensive income 2HEWEERE 452,972
Attributable to non-controlling interests IEVERR R = R 404,510
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests AT F IR AR B 48,462
|
Summarised statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019: RZE—NF+ZA=+—RHZHEHKR
~ME -
2019
—E-hEF
RMB’000
AR® TR
Inventories and cash and bank balances (Current) FE  Be MRITEH ORE) 2,267,392
Property, plant and equipment and Y - BEREEREMIERBIEE GERE))
other non-current assets (non-current) 12,644,513
Total equity R 5,611,146
Attributable to AT A &L -
Equity holders of parent NRERFAA 5,376,269
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R 234,877
|
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 38. ¥EKEHt(E])

38 (D) MATERIAL PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 38(D) EXIDEBWHEB AT ()

Summarised cash flow information for year ended 31 December 2019: HE-_T-NFT+A=1T—HILFEZ
BERsafE

Operating S VET) 2,501,691
Investing 8- WET) (2,735,618)
Financing BB RS 734,906
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re MBSEEYILINFE 500,979
|
39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 39. REHHORH

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding operating ~ R¥REMK » AEBERFEAMWES RE
lease agreements for buildings, and plant and machinery in Mainland TEF  BERMEHCEROHR - R
China. Future minimum rentals payable of the Group under non-cancellable BR|MEHROTAIREHSERL - K&

operating leases at the end of the reporting period are as follows: EENOARREERSLOT -
Group
TEE
2018
—E2-N\F
RMB’000
AR®T R
Within one year R—FR 79,334
In the second to fifth years, inclusive RE_EFRF (RIEEEMT) 2,010
After five years RAFE 9,361
90,705
|
As disclosed in Note 2.2, the Company has adopted IFRS 16 on 1 January — ZAMIFE22FT#EER - AARIERZ 7l¢
2019. These lease payments have been recognised as right-of-use assets ~ —H— ET%T%%WW&%M?&#&%LEE'J 1655
and lease liabilities on the statement of financial position as at 1 January —~ FRAEHIEEEEEEIN ZEHENTE
and 31 December 2019, except for short-term and low-value assets. EFRZE-—NF—A—BR+ZA=+—
e kR C R A AEE Emil

192 China XLX 2019 Annual Report




40. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in Note 39 above,
the Group had the following capital and other commitments at the end of

the reporting period:

40. TRiE

M TP FE 39 P il MY 4% &

%H %/9 7¥( T%M\ s

REBNIRE BRI AT B AR R H A

Group
rEE
2019 2018
—ZE-hE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETFT
Capital commitments BARESE
Contracted, but not provided for: EHEMEES T
Buildings BF 826,213 731,998
Plant and machinery TR S e it 2,919,181 1,951,351
Coal mines B 15,408 9,903
3,760,802 2,693,252
]
Other commitments E A
Purchases of raw materials BERME 812,342 793,264
I
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c

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BEFIRS
@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial ©) BT HELESFRREMID %SCL
mx%%’$$lF¢Wﬁﬁ

statements, the Group had the following transactions with related

parties during the year:

ET TR S -

2019 2018
—2-hE —TNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Mk ARBT T AREFT
Sales of electricity, water and steam to: * FATREHEKBEREA (i)
~Xingjiang Shenleng Gas Co, Ltd. * - DEORR AR
BRAR 67,305 -
~Henan Xinlianxin Shen leng Energy Co, Ltd** - JE‘#TUL'D/%/?\%/J?
DERAF 14,010 -
~Henan Xinlianxin Jingmi Fengtou Co, Ltd. # - ‘}ﬂfﬁ'é/b%@bﬁ%@%ﬁﬁ
BRAE" 687 807
~ Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment Co,, Ltd. * - FATOEME TR
BRAE" 398 259
- Henan Lingtong Xinlianxin Energy Co, Ltd * —ARAERLEOR
BRRAR" - %
82,400 1,092
]
Purchases of electricity, water and steam from: RUATAREEKERENR (i
~ Henan Xinlianxin Jingmi Fengtou Co, Ltd. * /—Jﬁfu EOEEHBEBR
NG 62 -
- Xinjiang Shenleng Gas Co, Ltd. * - DELRRREEBRAR" = 9099
62 9,099
]
Sales of goods and raw material to: FATREEEERREM
# (i)
—Henan Shenleng Gas Co, Ltd. # - ERRREBERDR 131,867 36,889
—Henan Lingtong Xinlianxin Energy Co, Ltd * AREBLELERER
A j # 2,469 -
- Xingjiang Shenleng Gas Co, Ltd. * - DELNRRREBERAR 919 -
~ Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment Co, Ltd. * -FHAmOEMEIRER
Raa) 297 -
135,552 36,889
]
Purchases of equipment and service fee expenses from: RNATRAEIBER
&Hlﬁ’zgiﬁ (v)
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment Co, Ltd * - %ﬁ?ﬂﬁ mEMETREE
NG 63,959 62,663
~ Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation Co, Ltd * - %ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ?wﬂ lges
BRAT! 8,121 7,239
—Henan Xinlianxin Jingmi Fengtou Co, Ltd. * —AELELERHERR
ik 18 -
72,098 69,902
L]
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 4. BEFIRZ (&)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bisx ARBT R ARBFT
Purchase of goods or raw materials from: AL TARIBERERRIR
Mk} )
— Henan Lingtong Xinlianxin Energy Co, Ltd * - AEEBLELERER
AT 4,963 -
~ Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment Co, Ltd. # -FHAmOEMEIRER
RAR 126 -
— Henan Xinlianxin Shen leng Energy Co, Ltd* —AmEOERR ERRD
BRAR 91 _
— Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation Co, Ltd ¥ - ¥i#Btie /I BiB L E AR
AT - 9
5,180 91
]
Sales of equipment to: R T REIEE R -
—Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co, Ltd. * - AELEMETER
BRAR = )
]
Operating lease expenses to: KERKFAZT -
—Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co, Ltd. * - ELEMETER
BRRAA" - 1,120
]
Service income from: RE AT R RIS IRYS
WA - (vi)
— Xingjiang Shenleng Gas Co, Ltd. * - DENRRREERAR 845 -
—Henan Xinlianxin Shen leng Energy Co, Ltd * —AmEOERR BRI
BRAR* 47 9
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment Co, Ltd. * -FEmLOEMEIRER
NGIR 42 24
—Henan Xinlianxin Jingmi Fengtou Co Ltd * -AELNELETRHERR
AT 41 37
~ Anhui Xinlianxin Fengtou Co Ltd * - REOEOHEARAR 16 -
— Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co, Ltd.* -AmELEMEIRERR
£ 9 -
1,000 70
]
Loan guarantee from: REUTRAIMEFTER (vii)
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment Co, Ltd. * - mOEMETRE
BRAT! 10,000 10,000
Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co, Ltd. * -AELNEMETIER
BT 10,000 -
20,000 10,000
I
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 4. BEIRS (HE)

. These companies are subsidiaries of Henan Chemicals Equipment Co., Ltd,, ¢ ZERNABAMEIREERARAME
which has common shareholders with the Company. The Company’s executive AE] A E b TR R EAR D B K AR R
directors and executive officers have certain equity interests in Henan Chemicals [« RARHITE S RITHA BRI E
Equipment Co,, Ltd. {E IHREERA AR A TIRE -

" These companies are controlled by Henan Xinlianxin Shenleng Energy Co,, Ltd,, # RZZE—NFHA=1+HBZAIZERRH
which was the associate of the Group before 30 April 2019 REE R B D R RO ELRR BER AR

DBER AR o
* The amounts represent gross sales of by-products. * ZETHERKRBEROIHERE -
Notes Bt

(iii)

(iv)

The sales of electricity were made according to the unit cost of electricity
announced by the Henan Province Development and Reform Committee ()]
BEREFNEZ B E). The sales of water and steam were made according to
mutually agreed terms with reference to the sales contract between the parties.

The purchase of electricity, water and steam were made according to the unit
cost of electricity announced by the Henan Province Development and Reform
Committee (A& R MMEZLZ B E). The sales of water and steam were
made according to mutually agreed terms with reference to the sales contract
between the parties.

Henan Xinlianxin sold dimethyl ether to Henan Shenleng Gas Co,, Ltd, which was
the associate before 30 April 2019. Besides, the group sold goods, raw material
and spares parts to related parties, which included Henan Lingtong Xinlianxin
Energy Co., Ltd, Xingjiang Shenleng Gas Co., Ltd and Xinlianxin Chemicals
Equipment Co,, Ltd.

The purchases of items of property, plant and equipment were charged based
on the mutually agreed terms with reference to the sales contract between
the parties. The service fee expenses were the maintenance costs, which were
charged by Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment Co., Ltd. and Xinxiang
Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation Co., Ltd. and Henan Xinlianxin Jingmi
Fengtou Co,, Ltd respectively.
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(iii)

(iv)
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(v) The purchases of goods and raw materials were charged by Henan Lingtong
Xinlianxin Energy Co,, Ltd, Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment Co,, Ltd and
Henan Xinlianxin Shen leng Energy Co, Ltd from which the group purchased fuel
oil, spare parts and gas respectively.

(vi) The service income represents brand royalty and income of measurement and
testing paid by related parties.

(vii) Henan Hydrogenpower Energy Co,, Ltd and Henan Heli Energy Co., Ltd; borrowed
bank loans amounting to RMB10,000,000 respectively by which is secured
by Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment Co., Ltd. and Henan Xinlianxin
Chemicals Group Co,, Ltd.

All the related party transactions above constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(b) Compensation of directors and key management personnel of the

4. BEEFIRS (&

BieE - (&)

) REERMEM ST EERLELER
BEAF - AT OEMIREBERRA
B ROW RO LR 2 BER AR () B IR 2 B
o REEREBEREDE - TR MR

=
/e

(vi) BRAS U A5 G & 2 PR B LA 2 BR RS 77 S A< 9
stEIEBHA -

iy OAFEENEERA R A A KON AR N EEIR
BHOBERDR: BERITERABARE
10,000,000 7T * AFNAP T EOME TREHR
FRARKAELEMETEEGRAFIRE
HAELR o

EXOEBESRGBREERER S
FIERARIRER ETMRAE+HAZRR

b AEEEELRIZEEAEBNF

Group: B
Group
rEH
2019 2018
—2-nF s
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETFT
Directors'fees EFENRE 1,050 1,050
Salaries and bonuses e Mita 13,402 23,348
Contributions to defined contribution plans TR B E R E S 84 179
14,536 24577
]
Comprise amounts paid to: BREIMFIIALTHSEE
~ Directors of the Company -RARIESE 14,536 20,940
— Other key management personnel -HFEEEAR = 3,637
14,536 24577
]
Further details of the directors remuneration are included in Note 9to these ~ ZEH & M#E — T BHRA M FHEHRE
financial statements. BiEEQ ©
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42. ESEIFNEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as R ¥R & 8K Ao m TEMKREER
at the end of the reporting period are as follows: e

IFRS 9 measurement category

BN A SR RISE 9 ST BRI

2019
-
Fair value
through other
comprehensive
Fair value through income
profit or loss Amortised cost BAFERA Total
BAFEFARR B Hir2 S @t
Group Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
pis-. | FitsE ARETT AR®ET T ARET T AR®T T
Equity investments at fair value ROTERT B
through profit or loss RERE 19 27,611 - - 27,611
Trade and bills receivables ECTCEN
ERERE 3 245,413 148,006 - 393,419
Derivative financial instruments EtemTA 2 1,358 - - 1,358
Financial assets included in deposits 5T Af&4% B E AR
and other receivables HENSREE 20 - 68,033 = 68,033
Due from related companies VNG 4 - 745 - 745
Pledged time deposits EEATEERER 25 = 499,346 = 499,346
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 25 - 884,448 - 884,448
274,382 1,600,578 - 1,874,960
|
IAS 39 measurement category
Bl & 3T ERIZE 3955 2485
2018
“FN\E
Derivative financial Loans and Available-for-sale
instruments ~ receivables financial assets Total
TEeRIA  BERREUGE THESeREE @t
Group Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEE fitsx ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Equity investments at fair value ROFER AR
through profit o loss RERE 19 43886 - - 43886
Trade and bills receivables B HRMGFIER
e 23 - 96,899 234232 331,131
Derivative financial instruments EEemTA by 17,719 - - 17,719
Financial assets included in deposits 5T AR B E A B
and other receivables FENSREE 20 - 79498 - 79498
Due from related companies JEW FE N AR 2% - 30,384 - 30,384
Pledged time deposits el 25 - 258,839 - 258,839
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEYD 25 - 346,151 - 346,151
61,605 811,771 234,232 1,107,608
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

42. BB TFHERMTA (&)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

REBHEEAIENEMEE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —TN\F
Group Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
rEE Pt AR¥ T ARBFT
Trade payables B 5 R RIE 26 366,636 282,825
Bills payable FERTE& 27 809,050 280,105
Financial liabilities included in accruals ST AESTE AR AEM
and other payables ENSRIENSREE 28 1,180,407 1,174,263
Due to related companies FES BB A RFIA 24 7,543 21,052
Loans from a non-controlling interest IR B R 30 48,670 75,500
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5188877 K E M f&3X 31 6,513,256 5,342,891
Bonds payable ENREGES 33 888,697 692,833
Lease liabilities MEAE 170,400 -
9,984,659 7,869,469
FINANCIAL ASSETS THEE
IFRS 9 measurement category
WR B R 5 2E B 22 9 SR ST 2 28 R
2019
—B-NF

Fair value

through profit

Amortised or loss
cost BRAFEFA Total
Company Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
KATH Bt AR%T T AR®T T AR®TT
Equity investments IR E 19 - 20,903 20,903
Due from a subsidiary FEMIHT BB A RIFRIE 24 7,600 - 7,600
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 25 16,086 - 16,086
23,686 20,903 44,589
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42, BROFEIRNEHMTE (F)
(CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) EREE (8)

IAS 39 measurement category

BRERt RIS 395kt 2185

2018
— )\

Fair value through

profit

Amortised or loss
cost  IRATFERTA Total
3 IR 1Bm et
Company Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RAF] B EE ARBFT AREFT AREBFT
Equity investments MR & 19 - 37,178 37,178
Due from a subsidiary FEWPHE A RIRIE 24 134,213 - 134213
Cash and cash equivalents iﬁﬁ&fﬁiﬁfﬁ% 25 7,549 - 7,549
141,762 37,178 178,940

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES TRAasE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
REBHRATIRNERMEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —Z2-N\F
Company Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
¥ /N B AR®TT AREFIT

Financial liabilities included in accrualsand ~ sF AJEETE A K E b
other payables ENFIEN S Eﬁé% 28 24,695 27,631
Due to a subsidiary JERTFT A RIFR 24 - 114,400
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings Eﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ@%?ﬁ 37 181,381 178443
206,076 320474

]
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43. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHIES

The Group categorises fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy
that is dependent on the valuation inputs used as follows:

Level T — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the
measurement date,

Level2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly, and

Level3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

The following table shows an analysis of each class of assets and liabilities
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period:

Quoted
prices in

43. BEERBENAFE
DR EER

AREEXRARFEBEY A FEFELET
DR ZEMBURR I TMER OGBS

S - AEBEHEDTUESH
HREES A ENERDS

HFR1E CREEHE) -
FH - FABERBERINE

ESBBEZHABE  ATE
BEREESRRE K

£ - EEXAENTATEEHA
2UE -
BRAHERFENEEREE

TREFINBFERARRRFEFTENER
BERBEDN

Group
REE
2019
—E-nE
Fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period using

RANTBRRBEHARNAPEE

Significant

active markets observable inputs

for identical
instruments
(Level 1)

EHR T ERNER
TiZHERE
(%—#)
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Assets measured at fairvalue R AFEFENEE

other than Significant
quoted prices un-observable
(Level 2) inputs

WEUNEE (Level 3)
HREGAZE FEFAHEH Total

(B=R) ABIE(E=R) E2H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBTT AR®TR

Financial assets: 2HEE
Equity investments RIERE 20,903 - 6,708 27,611
Bills receivable FEWER = 245412 - 245412
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 & Bt T A - 1,358 - 1,358
Financial assets as at 31 R=ZE-NEF+=A

December 2019 =t+—HWEREE 20,903 246,770 6,708 274,381

HECEL —T—NFFR 201




)X )X I CXK )X )X )X )X )XY O CX )X I X)X OCX )OI XY )Y () (¢

ZANSVANVANZNEVAN VAN ZANE VAN VAN ZANS VAN VAN OZANG VAN VAN /ANG VAN S VANS VAN VA
ZUIN /U /TN /0N /TN /TN /TN /TN /TN /TN ZUN /U /U O /0N /TN /0N /TN /TN /TN
LA UXJUAX I U XTI AR IR IUEAX I AT AR DX DA DX AT AR AR X)X AR XD

Notes to Financial Statements

Ejﬁ%iﬁ%% M{I-ELI 37 December 2019 R =FE—NF+=-HA=+—H

43.
(CONTINUED)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

43.

BEERBENAFEGE)

BAFEFENEERERE (B)

Group
REE
2018
—T-)N\F
Fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period using

KRN TEARRERRNAFENE

Quoted
prices in Significant
active markets  observable inputs
foridentical other than Significant
instruments quoted prices un-observable
(Level 1) (Level 2) inputs
MR AN ERE WMEAINER (Level 3)
TISHWE FBRRARE ZETAEEH Total
(B—#%) (BZ/) AR E=R) wEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T AREEFTT AREFTT AREEFTT
Assets measured at fairvalue RATEHENEE
Financial assets: PHEE -
Equity investments IR & 37,178 - 6,708 43836
Bills receivable EWEE - 234,232 - 234,232
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 St T A _ 17,719 - 17,719
Financial assets as at 31 RZEB—N\FE+=A8
December 2018 =Et+—HNEMEE 37,178 251,951 6,708 295,837

Company
/N
2019
—B-hE
Fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period using
HAUTBRRBREHRNAFETE
Quoted
pricesin Significant
active markets observable inputs
for identical other than Significant
instruments quoted prices un-observable
(Level 1) (Level 2) inputs
HETRERAER REUNEE (Level 3)
TENRE TREGARE EEFTHEH Total
(SE—#%) (B=R) ABB(E=R) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T ARBT T ARBT T
Assets measured at fairvalue  EAFEFTENEE
Financial assets: THEE -
Equity investments e gy 20,903 - - 20,903
Financial assets as at 31 N-E—hE+=A8
December 2019 Et+t—HHERMEE 20,903 - - 20,903
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43. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

43. BEEREENAVEE

BAFEFENEERESE (A)

Company
/NS
2018
—ZE-N\F

Fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period using

KRN TEARRERRNAFENE

Quoted prices in
active markets

Significant

observable inputs

for identical other than Significant
instruments( quoted prices un-observable
Level 1) (Level 2) inputs
HRITARER WEUINES (Level 3)
TSHHRE ABERARE SZET0EHRE Total
(B—%) (BZf) A2®(BE=H) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T AREEFTT ARBTT AREEFTT
Assets measured at fairvalue R AFEFENEE
Financial assets: THEE -
Equity investments IRAEIR & 37,178 - - 37,178
Financial assets as at 31 R=ZZB-N\E+=A
December 2018 =t+t—HHEMEE 37,178 - - 37,178

LEVEL 2 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following is a description of the valuation techniques and inputs used
in the fair value measurement for assets and liabilities that are categorised
within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy:

BILLS RECEIVABLE

The fair value of bills receivable is estimated by discounting expected future
cash flows at market incremental lending rate at the end of the reporting
period.

DERIVATIVE

Foreign currency swap and future are valued using a valuation technique
with market observable inputs. The most frequently applied valuation
technique include forward pricing and swap model, using present value
calculation. The model incorporates various inputs including the credit
quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and
forward rate curve.

E=HATEIE

AT 2R FER ERTE R A ERMAME A
BUBRRR - RIS ERATFEERE =
RHBEENRARE

eSS

IR IR0 AT EBBIRE AT
B SRR TR BAARR SRR
it

PTET A

SMNERBNMIEERARETSABRREA
FENEERMETHE - xFRNMGEE
A B E A RER B rEHE & fis 2
A o ZEAMA TR ARE - BHER
SHFNERER INERE - EHIEX
KR HAE Rl 4R
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43. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

0) INFORMATION ABOUT SIGNIFICANT UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS USED
IN LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Unquoted equity investment

The fair value of the unquoted equity investment designated at fair
value through profit or loss, which was previously classified as available-
for-sale equity investment, has been estimated using a market-based
valuation technique based on assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires the directors to
determine comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, size,
leverage and strategy, and calculates an appropriate price multiple, such
as enterprise value to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation ("EV/EBITDA") multiple, price to earnings ("P/E") multiple and
price to net book value ("P/B") multiple, for each comparable company
identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of
the comparable company by an earnings measure. The trading multiple is
then discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and size differences
between the comparable companies based on company-specific facts
and circumstances. The discount for lack of marketability is applied to the
corresponding earnings measure of the unquoted equity investment to
measure the fair value.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at
31 December 2019:

43. EEREENAVEE

E=RAVENE

)  F=RRXFEAERAEREEDT
AR ASIBEREREER

FEEMRERE

EERAFEFABENIE L TRAES
(ERTRAIHEENRELESB)HNRQ
FEDERY EETBRRMERLL R
MBREEATSEER AR - HEEXK
EEHENTE  BE - BERRRBETH
R ARAR (ET) - WS LHERIMT]
HRARFEEENEREE - flndZE
EEARFIE - HIE - TERBEHETRF
(TEV/EBITDAD tLE - AR ([THAX]) &
MERE([MERE]) - ZBEIRAI LB QA
NEEBERUAENRBTGE - EBFE
SIEEFA LB AR Z EHIERE MR
BERSEEZRAZARNBENRARERL
BT ARGIR o B2 Al SHE MR ITIRE A
RIE LT IRER B R BERFIEE A=
NYE ©

TXTIR-_E-NAF+-_A=+—HER
TRARBENEATABERGABBEMRE
[FlA] FE & MURE DT

Significant

Valuation unobservable input
technique EARFAEHE Range  Sensitivity of fair value to the input
fh{E M WAHE gE AFEHEABBHSRE
Unquoted equity investment at fair Valuation multiples Average P/B 2019:1.25 5% (2018: 5%) increase in multiple
value through profit or loss) HERES multiple of peers (2018:1.2)  would result in increase in fair value by
BAHER ABEEAR T BT T —AF 125 RMB306,000 (2018: RMB306,000)

MR E MREEE (22— \F:12) EEUE N 5% (ZT—)\F : 5%) -

1B BN TEEINA R 306,000 7T
(ZZF—=)\F : AR¥3060007T)
Discount for lack of 2019:20% 5% (2018: 5%) increase in discount

marketability

BRZEIEIERRLER

(2018: 20%) would result in decrease in fair value

—Z—HLE : 20% by RMB76,000 (2018: RMB76,000)
(ZZ—=NF BEERIE AN 5% (= Z— \&F : 5%) -

20%) BEH AT ER D AR 76,000 7T
(ZE—N\F : AR¥760007T)
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43. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 43. BEEREEBHNAVEE)
(CONTINUED)

LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) E=ZMAFETTE ()

() VALUATION POLICIES AND PROCEDURES (CONTINUED) I HERERRER

It is the Group's policy to engage external valuation expert to perform  ANEBEMBE ZIEBF /I HEER YRR

valuation of unquoted equity securities. The management is responsible B HIIRZN & %"LTTH{E c BIREARIRE

for selecting and engaging valuation experts that possess the relevant  MEERERHRA) - 514H 77 A K EIBR B 75

credentials and knowledge on the subject of valuation, valuation WMEREE R RAFEFERS ] AE

methodologies, and IFRS 13 fair value measurement guidance.

Management reviews the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
and assumptions adopted, and the reliability of the inputs used in the
valuations.

There has been no transfer from Level 1 and Level 2 to Level 3 for the
financial years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NOT MEASURED AT
FAIR VALUE AND WHOSE CARRYING AMOUNTS ARE REASONABLE
APPROXIMATION OF FAIR VALUE

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
pledged time deposits, trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from/to related companies, trade and bills
payables, loans from a non-controlling interest and financial liabilities
included in accruals and other payables approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The corporate finance team reports
directly to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in
the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amounts at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

AEHBEESENENTEER

B E iR PR AR E AR R
Bl ARBERAEARZNR S IE

BE-_T-NFER-_ZFT-N\Ft-A=t
—BUMBEE - *%&Eﬁi F A meE

BEE=M -

IéFr‘"¥1E”rgﬂ,ﬁ\,ﬁ§ﬁﬁ’\fii&&
ERAFHENEHTANAFE

REEEMHE AeLkREFEY  BER
REMER  BZRUFIENMEREE

175 &ﬁ@ﬁ% R - RIS RN BER

AR - B RNFARENRE - IHE
&%é%m st ARERT B A R E A e K
BZemBEZ A FERERRERS

TERHEFMIREEEA -

AREBM X E B0 M KR
BEETAEERTAZA ¥1ﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁl%&

B  bEBREMEZRAERVHE LE
V%%ﬁﬁi& RERHFAY > CEME

PRI ANEEZESHYETERR
1HTEE’JE;<E+ AR - HEHERVHE
%F‘)ﬁ&%t/ﬁ BBt B & 5 R B A5 B i

HERRENERBHEREZEEETF
uFFH%ﬁ//\o
TREENBENATFTELNZIARER

%575 (MIFRBRER) BHZHTHA
ZHSTAT - THIHERBRT AR
HAFE -
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43. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NOT MEASURED AT
FAIR VALUE AND WHOSE CARRYING AMOUNTS ARE REASONABLE
APPROXIMATION OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of financial liabilities approximate to their fair values.
The fair value of the non-current portion of accruals and other payables,
loans from a non-controlling interest, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and bonds payable have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s
own non-performance risk for non-current accruals and other payables,
loans from a non-controlling interest, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and bonds payable as at 31 December 2019 was assessed to be
insignificant.

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities approximate their fair values as its
incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") used to measure lease liabilities is close
to market rate of interests for similar arrangement with financial institutions.

LIABILITY MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE:

The Group had no financial liability measured at fair value as at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and
the use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include credit
risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management
of these risks, which are executed by the chief financial officer and finance
manager.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group's exposure

to the above-mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and
processes for the management of these risks.
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44, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(A) CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial
instruments should a counterparty default on its obligations. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other receivables.
For other financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents, pledged
time deposits, available-for-sale investments, amounts due from related
companies, bills receivables and deposits and other receivables, the
Group minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating
counterparties.

The Group's objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising
losses incurred due to increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades only
with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
the majority of customers who wish to trade are required to pay cash on
delivery or in advance before collecting any goods. A minority of customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of
asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.

The Group has determined the default event on a financial asset to be when
the counterparty fails to make contractual payments, within 90 days when
they fall due, which are derived based on the Group's historical information.

44, BiEEREREBFERBEER (&)
(A FERRE
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(A)  CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

The Group considers “low risk” to be an investment grade credit rating with
at least one major rating agency for those investments with credit rating.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Company
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. The Group
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information which includes the following indicators:

- Internal credit rating

- External credit rating

- Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
change to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

- Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of
the borrower

- Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of
the same borrower

- Significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of
the borrower, including changes in the payment status of borrowers
in the group and changes in the operating results of the borrower.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increase in credit risk is
presumed if a debtor is more than 90 days past due in making contractual
payment.

The Group determined that its financial assets are credit-impaired when:

- There is significant difficulty of the issuer or the borrower

- A breach of contract, such as default or past due event

- It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation

- There is a disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulty

The Group categorises a loan or receivable for potential write-off when a
debtor fails to make contractual payments more than 360 days past due.
Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group. Where loans and receivables have been written off, the Company
continues to engage enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivables due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit
or loss.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, BIBEMEEEERBER (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(A)  CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

The Group's debt instrument at fair value through OCI comprised solely of
bills receivables that are graded in the top investment category by A and,
therefore, are considered at low credit risk.

The Group provides for lifetime expected credit losses for all trade
and other receivables using a provision matrix. The provision rates are
determined based on the Group's historical observed default rates analysed
in accordance to days past due by grouping of customers based on
customer type. The expected credit losses also incorporate forward looking
information such as GDP growth and central bank base rates.

The information about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s trade and
other receivables using provision matrix and the loss allowance movement
of trade and other receivables are disclosed in Note 23.

EXPOSURE TO CREDIT RISK

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each class of financial
assets recognised in the statement of financial position.

CREDIT RISK CONCENTRATION PROFILE

The Group assesses concentration of credit risk by monitoring on an on-
going basis the aged analysis of its trade receivables. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group. At 31 December 2019, the
Group's trade receivables of RMB672,000 (2018: RMB19,453,000) were due
from its 10 largest customers.

(B)  LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting
financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group’s exposure to
liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial
assets and liabilities. The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of stand-by credit
facilities.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by management to finance the Group's operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 44, BIHEMEEEERBER (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(B)  LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED) (B) REELEMRE(E)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end of the RIBEAMEFANTK  AEEeREE

follows:
Within 1 year
oron demand 1to3 years 3to 5years Over 5 years Total
1ERFREAR 123% 3E5E SERE Azt
Group RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
v | ARBTR ARBTT ARBTTR AEBTTR AEBTT
31 December 2019 RZB-NETZR=1-R
Trade payables 5k 366,636 - - - 366,636
Bils payable ERZE 809,050 - - - 809,050
Financial iabiltes included inaccrualsand — &T AERTE B REMEFFIRR
other payables SHAR 1,084,254 99,307 - - 1,183,561
Due o related companies ENEERERE 7548 - - - 7,543
Loans from a non-controling interest FERERER 26,171 23670 = = 49341
Interest-bearing bank HERTRAMER
and other borrowings 2,829:341 2,615,051 973,541 43,986 6,461,919
Bonds payable EfRERS 560,360 50720 436,760 - 1,047,840
Lease liabilities ek 110,834 47,019 8,296 18,686 184,895
5,794,189 2,835,827 1,418,597 62,672 10,111,285

31 December 2018 R-B-\E+-A=+-R
Trade payables BHEAZR 82805 - - - 282805
Bils payable ERZE 280,105 - - - 280,105
Financial iabilties included inaccrualsand 57 AE&TE R R £t 3UAR)

other payabes HAR 1,150645 3618 - - 1174263
Due to elated companes ERBELTHE 21092 - - - 21052
Loans from a non-controling interest FHERERER 53300 26007 - - 79507
Interest-bearing bank and HEBRABET

other borrowings 2851720 2522209 - - 5373929
Bonds payable ErRHEARS - 525667 493 - 760599

4639647 3097,701 234932 - 7972280
"
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 44, BiEEREREBFERBEER (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(B)  LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED) (B) wHBHESRE (&)
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at the end of the RIBEAMIEFBANTK  ARAREREE
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payment, is as RS EEEI’J?JHWEERZZDT :
follows:
Within 1 year
oron demand 1to3 years 3to 5years Over 5 years Total
1ERG R 1238 3255 SERE &t
Company RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
O AEETR AEETR ARETT ARETT ARETT
31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1-H
Financial abilties included inaccrvalsand 3 AEET B R (308K
other payables cREE 17,608 - - - 17,608
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 3T BT REM(E 184,810 - - - 184,810
202,418 - - - 202,418

31 December 2018 RZF-\ETZA=1T-H
Financial iabifties included inaccrualsand 5T AERTE B REMEFFIEN
other payables SHEE 7831 - - - 27631
Due to a subsidiary EfHBARNE 114400 - - - 114400
Interest-bearing bank and other borowings 5t BF/TRE Fai?ﬂ - 178443 - - 178443
142031 178443 - - 320474

(@) INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the
Group’s financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily from its loans and borrowings subject to a floating
interest rate.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(@ INTEREST RATE RISK (CONTINUED)

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR INTEREST RATE RISK

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the
reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

CASH FLOW SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR VARIABLE RATE INSTRUMENTS

For variable rate financial assets and liabilities, the Group has determined
the carrying amounts of cash and short-term deposits based on their
notional amounts, which reasonably approximate to their fair values
because these are mostly short-term in nature or are repriced frequently.
For interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, a change in interest rate at
the reporting date would increase/(decrease) profit or loss by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
foreign currency rates, remain constant.
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2019 2018

Increase in basis —E-hEF —N\&F

Group points RMB’000 RMB'000

rEE EEEm AR%T T AREETIT
Interest expense FERX

RMB AR 10 (177) (4,405)

UsD ET 10 (1 (218)
Interest income FLESA

RMB AR 10 10 507

usD ET 10 - 5

HKD BT 10 - 3

L]
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D) FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group holds cash and cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies for working capital
purposes. At the end of the reporting period, these foreign currency net
assets/(liabilities) (mainly in SGD, USD and Hong Kong dollars ("HKD")) are as
follows:

44, ,E\ZI-E&HF"%MIEEE&IE&%(HQ)

D) HMERMR

AEBFBMINETFENRE RS

VM BRITEELEESRE -
AZFAINEEE R

EFHIR

BC#&

FEE/ (8

B)(XTEBAFME T EXRBT(E
JTCINWT -

2019 2018
—E-hF —\%
Group RMB’000 RMB'000
TEH AR%TF AREF T
SGD FNE T 84 353
usb ET (153,647) (250,371)
HKD BT 2,158 2356
(151,405) (247,662)

N
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible TN &REREMAE HM ] #RHEZRFTE
change in the SGD, USD and HKD exchange rates (against RMB), with all T ANEEER (B RBIE kg ) B

other variables held constant, on the Group's profit, net of tax and equity.

FTT ~ KT RBTT (AR HE R

BIEM LB BURE

2019 2018

—ZE-hE —N\F

Group RMB’000 RMB'000

rEH ARETR ARETFT

SGD - strengthened 5% (2018:5%)  ¥THNEIT - 8558 5% (ZF — \F : 5%) 4 18

— weakened 5% (2018: 5%) - 8#555% (ZF—/)\F : 5%) (4) (18)

USD - strengthened 2% (2018:2%) 57T - 8858 006 (=T — )\ F : 2%) (3,073) (5,007)

— weakened 2% (2018: 2%) — 8855 200 (=T — )\ F : 2%) 3,073 5,007

HKD - strengthened 1% (2018:1%) /7T -85 1% (ZF—/)\F 1 1%) 22 39

— weakened 1% (2018: 1%) ~ 885519 (=T —/)\F : 1%) (22) (39)
I
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45. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2018.

As disclosed in Note 36, subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC are required
by the Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise Law of the PRC to contribute to
and maintain a non-distributable statutory reserve fund whose utilisation is
subject to approval by the relevant PRC authorities. This externally imposed
capital requirement has been complied with by these subsidiaries for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018,

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided
by total capital plus net debt. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, short-term and long-term bonds payable, trade and bills
payables, amounts due to related companies, accruals and other payables
and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits.
Capital includes equity attributable to owners of the parent less the
statutory reserve fund. The Group's policy is to keep the gearing ratio below
909%.
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45. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 45. EXREE (&)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETIT
Trade payables B FENTIE 366,636 282,825
Bills payable IS 809,050 280,105
Contract liabilities BHAE 582,181 689,951
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R H A FE ST 508 1,198,812 1,185,463
Due to related companies JEREE R RIFIA 7,543 21,052
Loans from a non-controlling interest IHERERE R 48,670 75,500
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTERIT REMER 6,513,256 5,342,891
Bonds payable ERTREES 888,697 692,833
Lease liabilities HEAE 170,400 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BERReEEY (884,448) (346,151)
Pledged time deposits [REEwCGE=IVEEN (499,346) (258,839)
Net debt BEFH 9,201,451 7,965,630
Equity attributable to owners of the parent SYNSIEZ2=DN Y far 2y 4,235,241 3,921,814
Less: Statutory reserve fund B OEERES (145,518) (45,753)
Adjusted capital EHRBER 4,089,723 3,876,061
Capital and net debt BEARKBETHE 13,291,174 11,841,691
Gearing ratio BRBELE 69.23% 67.27%
I
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46. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 46. RHBXTRNRE
Company
FIN/N]
2019 2018
S T N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Investments in subsidiaries KB R RRIEE 1,620,755 1,620,755
|
Particulars of Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: RATIMEARIFFHBNT -

Percentage of equity

Place of interest attributable
registration and Nominal value of to the Company
business registered capital ZN/AT]FE(L  Principal activities
Sk R A b B EMEREE BEESE FEXEK
Direct Indirect
HiE i3
Henan Xinlianxin Fertiliser PRC/Mainland China RMB1,845,480,000 78.37% - —Manufacture and
Co, Ltd** FRE, R B A AR trading of urea,
SARLE MR 1,845,480,000 7T compound fertiliser,
TEEEERD methanol, liquid
BRAR] ammonia and
ammonia solution
HEMIHERE
BEE - FiE -
BEER N B VAR
Xinjiang Xinlianxin Energy PRC/Mainland China RMB2,100,000,000 - 7837%  Investment holding,
Chemical Co, Ltd.@* FRE B A AR manufacture and
(“Xinjiang XLX") 2,100,000,000 7T trading of urea and
e OE LRI T compound fertiliser
BRAA]e KREER - £ER
([0 ) HEREZERESE
Akesu Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 7837%  Manufacture and trading
Compound Fertiliser R R R ARHEE of compound fertiliser
Co, Ltd. (“Akesu 200,000,000 7T SLENHEEATE
XX e
I‘ﬂ?ﬁ%/t\%ﬁé/b%’gé%
BRA
(FET%EM\ &0 ]) e
Manas Tianli Coal Co,, Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB114,000,000 - 7837%  Coal mining and sales of
(“Tianli™)e* FRE R B AR coal
FANET RIS 114,000,000 7T BRI MR R IEE
BREEAT
(FRF ) e
Manas Tianxin Coal Co,, PRC/Mainland China RMB580,000,000 - 7837%  Coal mining and sales of
Ltd. (“Tianxin " )e* FRE R R AR coal
HEANET R IR 580,000,000 7T HERR RIS
BREEAF
(FRARD) e
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46. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of
registration and
business

ok 2 A 1t B

Nominal value of
registered capital

AMELREE

46. RKERARRE (&)

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Company
RN B LS
REBDL

Direct

B

Indirect

3

Principal activities

Xinlianxin (Jilin) Fertiliser PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 7837%  Trading of urea and
Co, Ltd. (“Jilin XLX")e* FEFEAM AR 50000007 compound fertiliser

DL (FAR) LA HEXREREAR
BRAF]

(IEMROED ) e

Jiujiang Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 - 7837%  Manufacture and
Fertiliser Co,, Ltd. FREE,FR B A A AREE trading of urea and
(“Jiujiang XLX")e* 1,000,000,000 7T compound fertiliser

JUTUEMEAE SLENHERENE
BRAA S
(MA@ ) e

Henan Nongxin Fertiliser PRC/Mainland China RMB37,000,000 - 7837%  Manufacture and trading
Co, Ltd. (“Nongxin " )e* FERERM AR 37,000,000 7T of compound fertiliser

SEAMEEAR AT and related products
(T8 D) e SUENHERAER

MERAE R

Xinxiang Country PRC/Mainland China RMB97,165,400 - 7837%  Selling and distributing
Shoudian Co, Ltd. R RERH AR 97,165400 7T electricity
("Shoudian™)e* HERDIHEN

BB OBELER
BRAR([EE])er

Henan Xinlianxin Fertiliser PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 7837%  Testing equipments
Testing Co, Ltd.* * B FREARH AR 1,000,000 7T ORI R A

AL E UMb AR AR
BRAR]

Henan Hydrogenpower PRC/Mainland China RMB60,000,000 100.00% - Producing and selling
Energy Co, Ltd* B HRERH AR 60000000 7T furfuralcohol

AERNRERAR AR 3% K $H S 4 B
(BtE D) *#

Henan Xinlianxin Blue PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 7837%  Producing and selling
Environmental R FRERM AR 50,000,000 7T vehicles urea solution
Protection Technology BLERIHEER
Co, Ltd** REBR

A EE D B EIRIR
RHAR AR *"

Jiujiang Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 7837%  Producing and selling
Blue Environmental B RERH AR 20,000,0007T vehicles urea solution
Protection Technology RIS M HEE A
Co, Ltd* * (note b) REBR

JULOEOEERRE
RABRAR]

(Fi5ED)

Harvest international HK/Hongkong HKD5,000,000 - 7837%  International business
Business Limited BE 5,000,000 77T and trading
(note a) (&t a) BIREBRE S
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46. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of
registration and
business

ook 2 AR 1t B

Nominal value of
registered capital

AMELAEE

46. RKBERARRE (&)

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Company
DB ELS
REEDLE

Direct Indirect

=k L3

Principal activities

TEER

Henan Xinlianxin Tailan PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 3997%  Selling vehicles urea
Environmental R RERH AR 10,000,0007T solution
Protection Technology HEERKRZDR
Co, Ltd**

RO D RESIRIR
R BR AR

Henan Black Ecological PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 4498%  Manufacture and trading
Technology Co,, Ltd*# B B AR 20,000,0007T of humic acid

AR E AR SUE N HE B
BRAR]*"

Xinjiang Black Ecological PRC/Mainland China RMB85,000,000 - 4498%  Selling humic acid
Co, Ltd* * Technology REFREIRM AR 850000007T SHE Rk

e B e LR AR
BRAR]

Henan Shenleng Energy PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 42.25%  Manufacture and trading
Co, Ltd** (note ¢) B B A REE 100,000,0007T of gas

ATEDE IR REIR SUE M HERR
I BR AR >
(BzEC)

Henan Shenleng Gas Co,, PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 4225%  Selling gas
Ltd** (note c) BRI AR 1000000007T HEMR

R RE
BRAR* (M)

Xinjiang Shenleng Gas PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 42.25%  Manufacture and trading
Co, Ltd** (note ¢) R R B A RS 200,000,000 7T of gas

DELRZ R FUE M IHERR
BRAR (M)

Jiangxi Shenleng Gas Co, PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 42.25%  Manufacture and trading
Ltd** (note c) FREFRERL AR 100,000,000 7T of gas

TPRR AR FUE N HE AR
BRAR (M)

Henan Heli Energy Co., PRC/Mainland China RMB78,000,000 51.25% - Manufacture and trading
Ltd.** REHEIRH AR 78,000,000 7T of furaldehyde

AR TREIRAR D B R ERRE
BRAR

Xinxiang Huineng Yuyuan PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 51.25% - Distribution and selling
Power Generation Co, R RERH AR 30,000,000 7T of electricity

Ltd.**
HAMEREREE
BRAR "

DIHMIHEED
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46. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of
registration and
business

B AR it B

Nominal value of
registered capital

AfEAREE

46. RKERARRE (&)

Percentage of equity

interest attributable
to the Company
AR TR L
BERDE

Direct Indirect

Principal activities

FTBREY

B Dk

Urumqi Black Ecological PRC/Mainland China RMB35,000,000 - 4498%  Manufacture and trading
Technology Co, Ltdx# R FRERH AR 35000000 7T of humic acid
(note ¢) BIE M IHE R ERE
SEREBEEERRE
BRAEx (MEEc)
Xinxiang Agriculture PRC/Mainland China _RMB1,000,000 - 7837%  Agricultural production
Development Co, Ltd.* B FRERH AR 1,0000007T BEEE
*(note a)
%ﬁ?ﬂﬁ%/b@/b%%fﬁ%
BRAT (Mika)
Henan PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 7837%  International business
Xinlianxinlnternational R RERM AR 10,000,000 7T and trading
Business and Trade Co, BEEERES
_ Ld**(note a)
] EE O B P 2R D
ﬁ%ﬁfﬁ@\ﬁj e
(BtzEa)
Shanghai Yibo Water PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 7837%  Technological
Techmque Co, Ltd** B FREIRHE A BREE 200,000,000 7T development
(note a) B
/tﬁﬁ/&mﬂﬁ%ﬂ&*ﬁl@ﬁ
~alxr(fita)
Jiujiang Yibo Water PRC/Mainland China _RMB200,000,000 - 7837%  Technological
Technique Co, Ltd*# B HERH A RES 200,000,000 7T development
(note e) K g
71 ORISR A R
nE*(fizEe)
Henan Xinxing Chemical PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100.00% - Producing and selling
Co, Ltd* " (note d) REL PR AR 50,0000007T chemical production
ﬂfﬁ‘é\/bftlﬁﬁﬁ@ FEREE(CIER
a)*# (PfsEd)
Jiujiang Pengcheng PRC/Mainland China RMB35,000,000 - 7837%  Distribution and selling
Power Co, Ltd* ¥ B REIR AR 350000007T of electricity
NUTEHE DIHRIHEE
BRAR]
* The subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law. * 2P B R B RAR YR AR B A 2 s A S A9 A1
FEERE -
@ These subsidiaries are established in the PRC and registered under PRC law. %W B A B PR B AR N 0 AR 15 R B A A5
FEf o
# Not audited by Ernst & Young LLP, Singapore or another member firm of the Ernst ' I JEF Ernst & Young LLP, ¥7 003K sk &2k &
&Young global network RN BT 2 IR A bR B &A=

B PERZ -

hELED —T—
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46. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 46. RKBERARRE (&)

Notes: BEE

(@) On 18 January 2019, 21 June 2019, 15 July 2019, and 9 Oct 2019 Henan XLX (@) RZZE—NWF—A+N\H  ZZT—FN
established four new subsidiaries named Xinxiang Agriculture Development AzZ+—8 - ZFE—AFtA+tHRBE=
Co., Ltd, Henan Xinlianxin International Business and Trade Co,, Ltd., Shanghai Z—NFE+ANB - RFEOEOFTK
Yibo Water Technique Co., Ltd. and Harvest International Business Limited KB AR - BREAFBZLELEERM
with registered capital of RMB1,000,000, RMB10,000,000, RMB200,000,000 BAERRA - AELELEREEME
and HKD5,000,000 respectively. The main business of these subsidiaries are SBERRAR - EBRBKBRFZERA
Agricultural production, International business and trading and Technological 7]} Harvest International Business Limited
development respectively. FERE RS R A AR 1,0000007T © AR

#10,000,0007C ~ A R # 200,000,000 7T &
5000,000/87C « ZEWEBARMEZ R
DRIRBEEE - BFEENE S UKL
iTFa e -

(b) On 05 November 2019, Henan XLX Blue Environmental Protection Technology (b) RZE—NF+—ARB  AmOENE
established a new subsidiary named Jiujiang Xinlianxin Blue Environmental BEREARBBBERARFTK LI -—RIMER
Protection Technology Co., Ltd. with a registered capital of RMB20,000,000. The A BRANLIMELEGRREHEER
main business of the subsidiary is producing and selling vehicles urea solution. AR FAMERAE AR 200000007

ZBE LA EEEBERE RIHEER
PREER ©

(© Urumgi Black Ecological Technology Co., Ltd , Henan Shenleng Energy Co., (© EEAEZEEREMBEERAR @M
Ltd., Henan Shenleng Gas Co,, Ltd, Xinjiang Shenleng Gas Co,, Ltd and Jiangxi FEORRERBRMNBRATR - ARRLIR
Shenleng Gas Co,, Ltd were purchased from third parties. Details please refer to BAERAR - LDELFLZREBERARKL
Note 38 Business combinations. IARSRBERARHEEE =T - &

BB 8 EBED
(d) On 15 November 2019, China XLX established a new subsidiary named Henan (d) RZZE—NAF+—A+HEB FELE

Xinxing Chemical Co., Ltd. with a registered capital of RMB50,000,000. The main
business of the subsidiary is producing and selling chemical production.

On 23 July 2019, Shanghai Yibo established a new subsidiary named Jiujiang Yibo
Water Technique Co,, Ltd. with a registered capital of RMB200,000,000. The main
business of the subsidiary is technological development.
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47. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Since the outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease 2019 ("COVID-19") in January
2020, the prevention and control of the COVID-19 has been going on
throughout China.

The COVID-19 situation has certain temporary impacts on the Group's
production and operation. The degree of the impact depends on the levels
of the epidemic preventive measures, the duration of the epidemic and the
implementation of regulatory policies. The Company and its subsidiaries
have implemented strict measures in epidemic prevention.

The Group will keep continuous attention on the COVID-19 situation, assess
and react actively to its impacts on the financial position and operating
results of the Group. Up to the date of the report, the assessment is still in
progress.

48. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 30 March 2020.

BREMREE

BR-ZE-_ZFFE—-AN09BRRE
([COVID-19]) IBEELAZK - RS —H &
FERH FNEH COVID-19 ©

47.

COVID-19 By & S AN S B Y AR E A& 2
EXATERMEZE - ZERREIURNE
BREEER  RIEFENEUREEBUER
B - AR REWBARERZ A
EREUBRARFE I ©

NEEB WAL B 70 COVID-19 AR » 7T
HUEAEETBRRMELEEENTE
Wi ERRE - BEARE A - 7
OIEHEITH o

#EMBEHR

BEFep RN T ZF=-A=Z1+HILEY
R FEIHRE -

48.
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Flve-Year Fmanaal Summary

LTEMBERBE

A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out below.

AT EIIA R B R 8 E I B B E H4R
ERENRBEERBEHRE  DHREEECT
B RBRIWBERE -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-NF — N\ —F  —E-XRE —FRE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NGBS A REBETr ARETRT ARETT ARETL
Results E4
Revenue WA 8,928,255 9,194,676 7,561,547 5,710,698 5,788,181
Cost of sales SHER R (6,987,218) (6,955,245) (5.974,597) (4,687,090) (4,464611)
Gross profit EF 1,941,037 2,239,431 1,586,950 1,023,608 1,323,570
Other income and gains HABYA Rz 160,349 112,716 87,594 69,985 80,699
Selling and distribution HE kD HFAX
expenses (515,827) (508,048) (482,909) (435,334) (347,186)
General and administrative —RE AT
expenses (661,442) (496,623) (415/467) (318612) (317,496)
Other expenses HAbFZ (16,712) (223,416) (5,600) (33,192) (33,181)
Impairment losses on SREE
financial assets EEE (10,007) (22,241) - - -
Share of profits of associates ~ JE{E & A A
il 2,298 657 - - _
Finance costs BARSRAN (374,076) (325,329) (285,851) (266,366) (228,190)
Profit before tax BRBLAT R 525,620 777147 484,717 40,089 478,216
Income tax expense FriSfif s (111,557) (121,833) (61,185) (11,054) (69,945)
Profit for the year AE R 414,063 655,314 423532 29,035 408,271
|
Attributable to: LA A (L
Owners of the parent SRR A 316,495 624,932 397,778 30,120 408,780
Non-controlling interests IEE IR S 97,568 30,382 25,754 (1,085) (509)
414,063 655,314 4235532 29,035 408,271
|
Assets, liabilitiesand non- &7&E - BER
controlling interests R AR
Total assets BEE 16,490,865 13,655,296 11,905,762 10,919,995 10,835,284
Total liabilities mek (10,769,185) (8,742,497) (8,255,808) (7,637,034) (7,834,267)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR i A (1,486,439) (990,985) (283,279) (247,174) -
4,235,241 3921814 3,366,675 3,035,787 3,001,017
|
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Glossary
AR

In this annual report, unless the context states otherwise, the following
terms shall have the following meanings:

"AC" or "Audit Committee”

AGM”

“Board”

“Companies Act”

“Company”or “China XLX"

or "XLX"

“Constitution”

“Director(s)”

EGM”

“FY2018"

“FY2019"

"Group”

"Henan XLX"

"HKD"

“Listing Rules”

Audit Committee of the Company

Annual General Meeting of the Company

The Board of Directors

The Companies Act (Chapter 50) of Singapore

China XLX Fertiliser Ltd.

Constitution of the Company
Director(s) of the Company

Extraordinary General Meeting of the
Company

The financial year ended 31 December 2018

The financial year ended 31 December 2019

The Company and its subsidiaries altogether

Henan Xinlianxin Fertiliser Co., Ltd., a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of
Hong Kong

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the SEHK
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Glossary

ARER

"Model Code” Model Code for Securities Transactions by [ 1RZ4E<FAI]] B LWETAES
Directors of Listed Issuers, Appendix 10 to the ETEFZHH

Listing Rules

ZRESFRI( LT
R AIFTEE10)

“NC”or“Nomination Nomination Committee of the Company [REEES B ARFMERZE
Committee” Bg
“PRC” or “China” The People’s Republic of China [ B HEARHNE
“RC” or "Remuneration Remuneration Committee of the Company [(FHEES ] B ARFNFME
Committee” Bg
“RMB" Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC (AR B FEEEE®A
R
"S$” Singapore dollars [ ¥ 7T & FNET
“SEHK” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited [ B 22 P ¥ BAEABEXRHA
BRAR
"SFO" The Securities and Futures Ordinance [BHREEROI] 8 B BEGIFE57
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) EBHFMHEK
il
“SGX-ST" Singapore Exchange Securities Trading [ ¥ 22 FFr B FNEIERS
Limited FrBRRAR]
“Shareholder(s)" Shareholder(s) of the Company [R5 | & ARAMRE
"XLX Chem” Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co., Ltd. [ ME T B ABmLENMET
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